COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES

COM(82) 420 final

Brussels, 9 July 1982

TENTH REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES

OF THE EUROPEAN SOCIAL FUND

FINANCIAL YEAR 1981

	TABLE OF CONTENTS	Page
	FOREWORD	1
	INTRODUCTION	2
I.	THE EMPLOYMENT SITUATION IN THE COMMUNITY IN 1981	4
II.	NEW MEASURES RELATING TO THE MANAGEMENT OF THE SOCIAL FUND	7
III.	FINANCING AND BUDGET	8
IV.	ACTIVITIES BY FIELD OF INTERVENTION	
	1. Persons leaving agriculture	21
	2. Persons working in the textile and clothing sectors	23
	3. Migrant workers	25
	4. Young people	30
	5. Women	38
	6. Regions	42
	7. Technical progress	50
	8. Groups of firms	53
	9. The handicapped	56
V۵	PILOT SCHEMES AND PREPARATORY STUDIES	61
VI۰	REGIONAL IMPACT OF THE SOCIAL FUND	64
VII.	THE EUROPEAN SOCIAL FUND COMMITTEE	68

69

ANNEXES

	ANNEXES	<u>Page</u>
I,	DEVELOPMENT OF THE EMPLOYMENT SITUATION 1974-81	
	 Major economic variables Youth unemployment - 1981 Unemployment rates in the Member States 	70 71 72
II.	BUDGETARY RESOURCES AVAILABLE FOR 1981	
	 Commitment appropriations Payment appropriations 	73 74
III.	UTILISATION OF BUDGETARY RESOURCES FOR 1981	
	 Commitment appropriations Payment appropriations Breakdown by payment appropriations for the year and amounts carried over Expenditure account - 1981 	75 76 77 78/79/80
VI۵	RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMMITMENT APPROPRIATIONS AND APPLICATIONS FOR ASSISTANCE - 1981	81
V,	AMOUNTS REQUESTED AND REFUSED - 1981	
	1. By budget item 2. By Member State	82 83
VI.	APPLICATIONS FOR ASSISTANCE - 1981	
	1. By field of intervention and priority2. By region and sector	84 85
VII.	AMOUNTS COMMITTED - 1981	
	1. Breakdown by Member State and by budget item	86
/III。	ALLOCATION OF ASSISTANCE APPROVED - 1981	
	1. Absolute priority regions, 19812. Absolute priority regions, 1979-813. By region and sector, 1981	87 88 89
IX.	COMMITMENTS	
	1. Breakdown by country of origin of promoters 1973-77 2. Breakdown by country of origin of promoters 1978-81	90 91
X°	PAYMENTS BY COUNTRY AND YEAR OF COMMITMENT, 1973-81	92
ZI.	AMOUNTS PAID IN 1981, BY YEAR OF COMMITMENT	93 ·
XII.	AMOUNTS RELEASED FOR RE-USE IN 1981 (from 1980)	94
XIII.	ADVANCES PAID IN 1981 AGAINST COMMITMENTS MADE FROM 1976 TO 1981, BY COUNTRY AND AS PERCENTAGES OF TOTAL PAYMENTS	95

	ANNEXES (cont'd)	Page
XIV.	APPLICATIONS FOR ASSISTANCE AND COMMITMENTS SINCE INTRODUCTION OF THE WEIGHTED REDUCTION SYSTEM	9 6
XV.	COMMITMENTS 1973-77	
	(a) Payments (b) Amounts released (c) Still to be paid	97 98 99
XVI.	COMMITMENTS 1978-81	
	(a) Payments(b) Amounts released for re-use(c) Amounts released and cancelled(d) Still to be paid	100 101 102 103
XVII.	ESTIMATED NUMBER OF BENEFICIARIES BY SECTOR OF INTERVENTION 1980 AND 1981	104
xviii.	LIST OF PREPARATORY STUDIES AND PILOT SCHEMES APPROVED BY THE COMMISSION UNDER THE 1981 BUDGET	105
XIX.	LIST OF APPLICATIONS FOR ASSISTANCE APPROVED IN 1981	109
	- Belgium - Germany - Denmark - Greece - France - Italy - Ireland - Luxembourg - Netherlands - United Kingdom	

FOREWORD

This is the annual report of the European Social Fund for 1981 presented by the Commission to the European Parliament and the Council pursuant to Article 6 of Council Regulation (EEC) No 858/72¹, which reads as follows:

"Every year the Commission shall, before 1 July, submit to the European Parliament and to the Council a report on the activities of the Fund carried out during the past financial year giving inter alia a breakdown of the appropriations committed for operations during that financial year. The report shall also cover foreseeable developments in the coming three years regarding expenditure relating to actions undertaken pursuant to Articles 4 and 5 of Decision 71/66/EEC".

The report is based on the format adopted in 1980 which was approved by the Council.

In order not to delay presentation of this report, the Commission's forecasts of Social Fund expenditure over the next few years (which have yet to be made) are not included but will be given in the preliminary draft budget for 1983 (see Annex to Volume 7 - Triennial Financial estimates 1983-1986).

Under Article 5 of Commission Decision 78/706/EEC², Member States were required to forward to the Commission not later than 31 March 1982 their reports on operations assisted by the Fund. When all the reports are available, they will be incorporated in a separate annex to this report.

¹OJ No L 337, 27,12,1977, p. 5.

²OJ No L 238, 30,8,1978, p. 21,

INTRODUCTION

During 1981, which is the subject of this report, the European Social Fund found itself acting against the background of an employment situation characterized by an even greater deterioration and by a narrowing of the differences noted hitherto between most Member States. At the end of the year, more than ten million unemployed were registered in the Community, representing 9.2% of the working population, as against 6.8 million, or 6.2% of the working population, in 1980.

This deterioration in the employment situation, which has persisted for several years, explains the continuing increase in applications for assistance from the Fund. The overall volume of applications amounted to 1 924.21 million ECU in 1981, i.e. an increase of 18.4% over the previous year. Applications submitted by Greece, which became a full member of the Community on 1 January 1981, amounted to 30.25 million ECU.

At the same time, the volume of available commitment appropriations was 1 108.38 million ECU, representing an increase of only 8.46% over 1980.

The gap between applications and budget resources thus continued to widen in 1981, the total volume of applications exceeding that of resources by 74% (in 1980, applications exceeded resources by 59%),

The Commission took decisions on the applications, which were divided into two series (April and September), after consulting the European Social Fund Committee. This was done in conformity with the Guidelines for the management of the Fund in 1981-83.

These Guidelines are cited in respect of each area of intervention in Chapter VI of this report.

As in 1980, the Commission, while taking into account the social and economic situation in the Community, took the view that it was necessary to give priority to training operations closely linked to employment and to promote programmes for training skilled workers in those regions of the Community which are in decline, so as to attract investment.

Faced with the need to avoid exceeding the appropriations and at the same time to build up a reserve to cope with unexpected fluctuations in exchange rates, the sum of 996.17 million ECU in available appropriations was committed in 1981, i.e. a utilisation rate of almost 90%.

As in 1980, nearly 80% of Fund assistance was allocated to operations carried out under the regions field of intervention (42.2% or 422.36 million ECU) and the young people field of intervention (37.3% or 373.38 million ECU). At the same time, 87.4% of the assistance granted (873.98 million ECU) was allocated to operations in regions eligible for European Regional Development Fund aid; of which 434.57 m ECU, or 43.5% of total Fund assistance, was for operations in the six absolute priority regions (Greenland, the French overseas departments, Greece, Ireland, Northern Ireland and the Mezzogiorno). In 1980, some 33% of Fund assistance (334 million ECU) was granted to these areas. It may be noted that absolute priority regions qualify for a rate of intervention 10% higher than that applicable to other regions in the Community.

I. THE EMPLOYMENT SITUATION IN THE COMMUNITY IN 1981

1. Employment

Employment fell more sharply in the Community in 1981 than in previous years, while the existing gaps between most Member States in this field tended to narrow.

There was no improvement in the Community's depressed economic situation in 1981; with GDP declining in real terms by about 0.5% and cutput falling in most countries. At the same time, net job losses amounted to about one million. Over the same period the number of vacancies fell by more than 30% to an all-time low.

In the farming sector the slow decline, already evident prior to and during 1980, continued, with agricultural jobs accounting for only 7.3% of total employment in the Community as against 7.5% in 1980, 7.6% in 1979 and 8.6% in 1975.

Job losses in industry accelerated, some 1.4 million jobs being lost during the year. The decline was even sharper than in 1980, and jobs in this sector now account for only 37.5% of total employment as against 38.5% in 1980.

The services sector, too, was badly hit and the creation of new jobs slowed down to such an extent that the increase (645.000) was the lowest since 1976.

2. Unemployment

There were more than 10 million people registered as out of work in the Community at the end of 1981, i.e. 9% of the working population. This represents a further deterioration over 1979 and 1980 when the corresponding figures were 5.7% and 7% respectively.

The number of people without jobs rose by 28% in 1981 as against a 27% rise in 1980.

Leaving a ide Greece, differences in the employment situation between Membro States narrowed in 1981 compared with 1980, when the number of jobless role most steeply in the United Kingdom (+66%), Denmark (+56%) and the Netherlands (+49%), with the highest unemployment rates being recorded in Pelgium (9.4%), Ireland (8.4%) and Italy (8.1%).

The tiggest increases in 1981 were recorded in Germany (+52.4%) and the Netherlands (+46.9%), two countries whose unconjugate rates were well below the Community average.

Young people under the age of 25 continued to experience particular difficulties on the labour market. Youth unemployment now stands at 38.5% of the total jobless figure as compared with 40% in both 1979 and 1980, despite measures taken in a number of Member States to improve job prospects for this group.

For the first time since 1976 the number of young men out of work exceeded the number of young women. However, despite this relative decline, young women — in view of their lower activity role — continued to suffer an exceptionally high unemployment rate, accounting for more than 50% of total female jobless in France, Italy, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom.

Finally, although young job-seekers are better qualified than ever before, most of them have had to accept insecure jobs for which they are overqualified.

Women continue to be at a disadvantage on the labour market. Whilst their unemployment rate has dropped over the last three years as a percentage of the overall total (41.4% in 1981 as against 45% in 1980 and 45.8% in 1979), they are still encountering particular difficulties in finding jobs.

In the present situation unemployment is no longer simply a problem of mismatching. The economic crisis and the complexity of the problems facing the Community will have to be tackled with measures aimed at promoting economic growth and employment and at reorganising working time.

In the light of all this, the Commission, which is concerned to do what it can to remedy this serious situation, stated its position in a number of papers presented to the Council in 1981:

- in the context of the Mandate of 30 May 1980, the communication concerning priorities to be adopted in the field of job creation¹ was designed to promote measures aimed on the one hand at creating employment and providing vocational training for young people and on the other at encouraging small businesses to create new jobs;
- in the field of work sharing, the Commission stated its position on part-time work^2 and the age of retirement³.

¹COM(81) 638 final.

²COM(81)775 final.

³COM(81) 779 final.

II. NEW MEASURES RELATING TO THE MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

1. Higher rate of intervention for Greece

On 13 July 1981 the Council decided¹, following a proposal from the Commission², to apply to operations carried out in Greece from 1 January 1981 the 10% higher intervention rate provided for in Article 8 of Council Decision 71/66/EEC³, as amended by Decision 77/801/EEC⁴. This higher rate is already applied to operations in Greenland, the French Overseas Departments, Ireland, Northern Ireland and the Mezzogiorno⁵.

2. Guidelines for the Management of the Fund

The Guidelines drawn up for the period 1981-83 have been retained for 1984 (OJ C 119, 14.5.1980, p. 2) for the simple reason that while they should reflect changes in the economic and social situation in the Community, experience has shown that the national authorities and project promoters need a degree of stability to be able to adapt their programmes to the priorities laid down. Furthermore, the fundamental problem of imbalance between the volume of applications and the appropriations available, which is illustrated by the figures given in this report, cannot be resolved satisfactorily simply by amending the Guidelines.

3. Submission of applications for assistance

On 10 November 1981 the Commission adopted a Decision 6 amending Decision $^{78/742/EEC}$ on the submission of applications for assistance and claims for payment from the European Social Fund.

This Decision provides for the use of new forms for claims for advance payments, additional payments and payment of balances from 1 January 1982 onwards.

The new format will make for more efficient management of the assistance granted and will reduce or even eliminate the too numerous requests for supplementary information made necessary after an appraisal of the dossiers. The new forms will also pave the way for a gradual introduction of data processing methods in the management of the Fund.

 $_{2}^{1}$ Council Regulation (EEC) No 1989/81 of 13.7.81, QJ No L 194, 17.7.81, p. 4. $_{3}^{2}$ COM(80) 742 final of 17.11.1980.

³UJ No L 28, 4.2.1971, p. 15. ⁵OJ No L 337, 27.12.1977, p. 8.

Council Regulation (EEC) No 2895/77 of 20.12.1977, ibid., p. 7. Commission Decision No C(81) 1650 final of 10.11.1981, Of No L 360,15.12.81.

III. FINANCING AND BUDGET

A. COMMITMENTS

1. Available appropriations

The Commitment appropriations available to the Fund in 1981, which amounted to 1 108.38 million ECU, exceeded the total amount available in 1980 by 86.36 million ECU (8.46%).

The total was largely made up of appropriations under Chapters 50, 51 and 52 of the general budget of the Communities (963 million ECU as against 909.50 million ECU in 1980), with the addition of a further 145.38 million ECU made up as follows: unused appropriations amounting to 6.91 million ECU, an amount of 38.70 million ECU from commitments made prior to and during 1981 and made available for re-use following currency realignments decided in October 1981, and 99.77 million ECU in unused appropriations available for re-use.

In addition to the abovementioned appropriations released for re-use, funds amounting to 116.01 million ECU were made available but could not be re-used. These were appropriations returned to the Fund out of commitments entered into prior to 1 January 1980 and released for the most part in connection with final claims for payment submitted on winding up the operations concerned. These appropriations have consequently lapsed.

2. Utilisation of appropriations

Out of the commitment appropriations available, only 996.17 million ECU were committed, leaving 112.21 million ECU to be carried over to the next financial year.

There was a marked contrast between the rate of utilisation of appropriations in 1981 (89.88%) and that in 1980 (99.3%) owing to the fact that measures were taken in 1981 in response to the observations made by the authorities responsible for the administration and financial control of the Fund on the need to ensure that appropriations are not exceeded, as happened in 1980.

In order to take positive steps to allay the fears expressed by the Court of Auditors in its report on the financial year 1980, the Fund administration set up a reserve of appropriations in 1981 amounting to 8.9 million ECU to take account of any fluctuations in the exchange rate of the ECU against national currencies. This amount, which was deducted from the total of appropriations still available, was not drawn on when the decision relating to the last batch of approvals was made in September 1981.

Moreover, the rule according to which the Fund may, for any new commitment, use only those appropriations which have already been re-entered in the accounts after being released for re-use before the written procedure for granting approvals is introduced, effectively prevented the utilisation of a batch of appropriations released for re-use when the approval decision was taken on applications subject to the weighted reduction procedure.

Finally, quite apart from the effects of these measures, it should be noted that parity changes in 1981 had the opposite effect to those they engendered in 1980: total commitments, which stood at 1 028.89 million ECU in July 1981, underwent a net reduction as a result of the realignment of currencies within the European Monetary System in October, falling to 996.17 million ECU at the end of the year on the basis of the new exchange rates (December exchange rate).

3. <u>Volume of applications</u>

Applications for assistance from the Fund in 1981 amounted to 1 924.21 million ECU, 18.4% up on 1980. Available appropriations rose by only 8.46% compared with 1980, so that the gap between resources and needs widened further over the year.

The overall volume of applications exceeded available resources by about 74% compared with less than 60% in 1980.

In absolute terms, the volume of applications was highest in respect of "young people" (692.29 million ECU) and "regions" (660.51 million ECU).

In percentage terms, "young people" (+49%) and "agriculture/textiles" (+37%) recorded the largest increases. Finally, the discrepancy between applications and resources was most marked for "migrant workers" and "women" (506.9% and 313.6% respectively).

4. Classification of applications

An amount of 219.82 million ECU (about 11% of the total volume of applications submitted) was classified as inadmissible, not eligible or non-priority. The remainder (1 704.39 million ECU) was examined for priority, classified according to the Guidelines for the Management of the Fund and taken into consideration for financing within the limits of available appropriations.

The table below sets out the applications for assistance by field of intervention and level of priority.

	Priorities					m-1-3
Budget nomenclature	1	. 2	3	4	5	Total
5000 Agriculture	17,42	_	_			17,42
5000 Agriculture 5001 Textiles	20.14	12,28		_		32,42
5010 Young People - Training			221.01	_		435.65
5011 Young People - Employ-						
ment	9,84		68,82		-	129,25
5030 Migrant Workers	138,02		-	-	-	138,02
5060 Women	17.05	87,02	-	-		104.07
50	321,25	245.75	289,83		_	856.83
5100 Regions	288.86	11.67	62,53	27,53	254,53	645,12
5101 Groups of firms	12.24		-	-	-	12,24
5102 Technical progress	28.69	13,78	-	_	-	42,47
5110 Handicapped persons	35,60	112.13	-	-	_	147.73
51	365.39	137,58	62,53	27.53	254,53	847,56
5200 Pilot schemes	-		_	-	-	_
50 - 52 Total	686,64	383,33	352,36	27,53	254,53	1,704.39
%	40,29	22,49	20,67	1,62	14.93	100.00

It will be noted that the overwhelming majority of applications deemed eligible for Community financing were placed in the first three levels of priority (83% of the total corresponding to 1 422 million ECU).

OJ NO C 119, 14.5.1980.

Member States' authorities have clearly applied a selection procedure before presenting applications for assistance to the Commission, but a substantial proportion of the applications had to be turned down owing to the considerable shortage of funds.

5. Weighted reduction

Applications classified as priorities represented a total of 1 704.39 million ECU, exceeding the available appropriations by some 396 million ECU. The discrepancy between needs and resources was thus quite considerable, representing 53% of available appropriations as against 19.5% in 1980. Under existing rules the weighted reduction procedure had to be applied to narrow this gap and achieve a balance between resources and needs¹.

As set out in the Guidelines for the Management of the Fund the weighted reduction procedure is applied where, at the lowest priority level for which appropriations are still available, the volume of applications exceeds that of appropriations. The weighted reduction coefficient for each Member State is calculated on the basis of the average unemployment rate and gross domestic product per capita at current exchange rates. This takes account of the unemployment situation in the various Member States and the financial resources available to each country to deal with it.

The total amount to be deducted is obtained by applying the appropriate coefficient to the applications for each Member State classified at the priority level subject to weighted reduction. The amount thus obtained is apportioned by the Commission between the individual applications after consultation with the national authorities.

 $^{^{1}}$ For the reasons set out in paragraph 2 above, the availability of commitment appropriations in 1981 was affected by measures designed to reduce these appropriations. This is why the amount refused on the basis of the weighted reduction procedure amounted to 704,23 million (and not 596 million ECU).

The two tables below illustrate the effects of the application of the weighted reduction procedure by field of intervention and by country:

(a) Amounts approved by field of intervention after application of the weighted reduction procedure

(in million ECU)

Field of intervention		Committed without weighted reduction II	Amount sub- jected to weighted reduction III	Amount of III approved IV	Amount of weighted reduction (III-IV) V
Agriculture	5,69	-	17,42	5 , 69	11.73
Textile	15,48	-	32,42	15,48	16,94
Young people - training	269.72	214,64	221,01	55,08	165.93
Young people - employment	103,67	75.61	53,65	28.06	25.59
Migrant workers	30,55	0,33	137.70	. 30,22	107.42
Women	22,66	17.05	87,02	5,61	81.41
Regions	422,36	390.58	254,53	31,78	222,75
Groups of firms	8.11	_	12,24	8,11	4.13
Technical progress	32,14	28,69	13.78	3,45	10.33
Handicapped	89.78	35,60	112,13	54,18	57,95
Total	1,000.15(*)	762,49	941.90	237,66	704,23

^(*) The discrepancy between the figures relating to "amounts committed" in the various tables stems from the use of a single exchange rate - that applying in December 1981 - for the "non-budget" tables. In order to simplify the presentation of these tables, the monthly updatings for accounting purposes reflecting the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on the amounts of the appropriations still to be paid have been disregarded.

(b) Amounts approved after application of the weighted reduction procedure by country

(in million ECU)

Country	Applications subject to weighted reduction	Weighted reduction indicator	Amounts approved (*)	Amounts allocated as percentage of I IV
Belgium	20,41	1,24	6,56	32.1
Denmark	31,27	0.78	8,35	26.7
Germany `	285.76	0,42	25.76	9.0
France	234,48	0,85	51,22	21.8
Greece	-	_	-	_
Ireland	2,29	3,01	1.91	83,4
Italy	173,54	1,93	78,06	45.0
Luxembourg	0,63	0,07	0.02	3.1
Netherlands	22,77	0,,73	3≂91	17.2
United Kingdom	170,75	1,57	61.88	36,2
Total	941,90	-	237,66	25 • 2

^(*) The amounts approved do not depend solely on the application of the weighted reduction indicator to the volume of applications submitted by each country and classified at the lowest level of priority, but also on the degree of mismatch in each field of intervention between the total volume of applications by each country and available appropriations.

These two tables show that in 1981 the weighted reduction procedure had to be applied for the first time to all fields of intervention. The overall amount affected was 704.23 million ECU (as against 234.14 million in 1980), i.e. 41.3% of the total volume of applications classified as priorities (as against 18.5% in 1980). This was an increase of more than 200% over the twelve month period.

The weighted reduction was highest for "regions" and "young people" (222.75 million ECU and 191.52 million ECU respectively). However, the proportion of applications to which it was applied was highest for "migrant workers" and "women". In both cases, the amount of the reduction was far in excess of the amount committed.

5. Article 9(2) of Council Decision 71/66/EEC

This provision requires that at least 50% of the budget of the Fund be reserved each year for operations carried out under Article 5(1) of the above Decision in the European Regional Development Fund regions.

The effect of this provision in 1981 was as follows:

	·	(million ECU)
I.	Budget allocation	963,00
ΙI。	Commitment appropriations entered in the budget	
	for operations under Article 5(1) of Council	
	Decision 71/66/EEC	518,00
III.	Commitment appropriations to be set aside pursuant	;
	to Article 9(2) of the abovementioned Decision	
	(50% of total)	481,50
I۷۰	Remaining commitment appropriations available	
	for use under Article 5(1) of Decision 71/66	
	for operations outside ERDF regions	36,50

As a result of this calculation, only 36.50 million ECU were available to finance operations in the categories "technical progress", "groups of firms" and "handicapped persons" in regions other than ERDF regions.

B. PAYMENTS

1. Appropriations available

Payment appropriations amounted to 819.08 million ECU in 1981, made up of the budget allocation of 620.40 million ECU plus 198.68 million ECU carried over from the previous year. Total appropriations, therefore, were 12.3% or 114.78 million ECU below those available in 1980.

The significant carryover of appropriations into 1981 (198.68 million ECU) represented the unused part of appropriations made available under the supplementary budget approved on 23 December 1980 when the Fund was credited with payment appropriations amounting to 326.4 million ECU. The Commission had requested only 100 million ECU and was able to use only 127.72 million ECU before the end of the financial year.

Transfers of appropriations during 1981 were made within individual chapters. Accordingly, although the amounts available under each budget heading may have changed the transfers did not alter the overall amount of appropriations allocated to each chapter.

2. Utilisation of appropriations

An amount of 745.85 million ECU was used in 1981 out of a total of 819.08 million ECU available¹. The bulk of the appropriations remaining at the end of the year (73.23 million ECU) was carried over to the following year (73.01 million ECU), whilst a very small part of the unused appropriations was cancelled (0.22 million ECU).

The discrepancy between the figures relating to "amounts paid" in the various tables is due to the use of a single exchange rate - that of December 1981 - for "non-budget" tables. These tables have been set out in a simplified form disregarding monthly updatings in the accounts and taking into account the amounts paid at the exchange rate for the month concerned.

These figures show that the rate of utilisation of available appropriations (91.06%) was lower than in 1980, when appropriations available at the beginning of the year were used up by November necessitating the submission of a request for a supplementary budget.

Utilisation of available appropriations was particularly low in the categories "pilot schemes" (chapter 52) and "regions" (heading 5100), at less than 45% and a little more than 80% respectively. The latter area of intervention (with some 69.25 million ECU unused at the end of 1981) had the greatest impact on the management of appropriations during the financial year.

Paradoxically, whilst 73.23 million ECU were still unused at the end of 1981, a volume of applications for assistance amounting to 85.91 million ECU could not be satisfied for lack of appropriations under the budget headings concerned. These applications concerned in the main claims for payment of advances relating to commitments made in September 1981. Of this total, over 63 million ECU related to "young people".

In normal circumstances it would have been possible, by means of transfers between chapters, to provide the budget headings concerned with at least a large part of the appropriations required. However, this could not be done as the bulk of these claims was not submitted to the Commission until December and it was therefore not possible to complete the necessary procedure before the end of the financial year.

3. Payments made

In 1981, payments relating to commitments made during the year amounted to 289.99 million ECU, about 29% of the appropriations committed.

This figure might have been higher if there had been an adequate volume of appropriations to meet a final batch of claims for payment submitted at the end of the year, amounting to 85.91 million ECU. Of this total, some 69 million ECU related to commitments made during 1981.

The table below gives a breakdown of payments made in 1981 by Member State and year in which appropriations were committed:

(million ECU) 1979 1980 1981 Total 1975 1976 1977 1978 Country 4,97 0,02 1,64 7,21 13,84 Belgium Denmark 0,16 2,51 5,32 10.57 18,56 9.02 27,37 20,77 0.14 2,77 7,96 68,03 Germany 0.16 0.02 9,84 62,44 52,27 24,43 150,80 France 1,67 6.64 6,64 Greece 2,70 4,74 48.36 Ireland 1,11 3,63 60.54 Italy 0.01 6,70 43,50 32,28 54,73 74,73 211.96 0,43 0.50 Luxembourg 0.07 Netherlands 0,28 0.03 3,32 8.41 2,21 14,25 55,24 35,33 192.04 United Kingdom 0,39 1.48 2,26 97.34 Total 0,16 0,56 4.01 66.47 171,62 194,34 289.99 737,16

4. Pattern of payments

The following two tables illustrate some of the most significant trends in the pattern of payments in recent years:

(a) Annual variation in appropriations committed and unclaimed balances at the end of each year (1977 to 1981)

Year	Appropriations committed	% change	Appropriations unclaimed at year end	% change
1977 1978 1979 1980 1981	616.63 568.08 774.45 1,014.93 996.17	- 7.87 +36.32 +31.05 - 1.85	953.37 1,221.15 1,341.00 1,399.88 1,375.70	 + 28.09 + 9.81 + 4.24 - 0.30

(b) Advances and other forms of payment as part of total payments made (1979 to 1981)

(million ECU)

Year	Advance payments	Additional and final payments	Total	
1979	441.79 (74.3%)	152.81 (25.7%)	594,60 (100%)	
1980	479.08 (65.6%)	250.82 (34.4%)	729,90 (100%)	
1981	470.27 (63.79%)	266.89 (36.21%)	737,16 (100%)	

An analysis of these two tables shows that payments of balances and additional payments are being made at a satisfactory rate. Appropriations used in the form of payments of balances or additional payments have increased regularly from year to year both in terms of volume and percentage (see table (b) above). Moreover, over the last three years there has been no abnormal accumulation of appropriations committed and unclaimed at the end of each financial year (see table (a)).

There has in fact been a marked reversal in the overall trend. Up to 1978 the volume of appropriations remaining unclaimed at the end of the year was rising roughly in proportion to the volume of appropriations committed each year. Moreover, at the end of that year, a significant increase in unclaimed appropriations was recorded even though there had been a decline in appropriations committed.

From 1979 the above trend was reversed: the amount of appropriations unclaimed at the end of the year has risen much less steeply over the past two years than the amount of appropriations committed. At worst, the volume of unclaimed appropriations is likely to follow the trend in appropriations committed, as was the case in 1981.

It is worth noting that this reversal in the respective trends of appropriations committed and appropriations remaining unclaimed coincided with the introduction in 1979 of a rule setting a time limit of 18 months for the submission of claims for payments of balances¹. This time limit, which begins at the end of the scheduled completion date of the operations being carried out, has significantly expedited the submission of such claims. Payment of balances now no longer poses the same publicms as in the past and payments are being made at a satisfactory rate.

As for advance payments, the state of affairs is less satisfactory. Whilst 29% of appropriations committed in 1981 were paid during the year (as was the case in 1980), the rate of payment of advances has not progressed significantly in recent years. In fact, these payments have tended to diminish both in volume - as was the case in 1981 compared with 1980 - and in percentage - as was the case in 1980 and 1981 compared with 1979 (see table (b))².

Article 4 of Commission Decision EEC/78/706, 27,7,1978 (OJ No L 238/20, 30,8,1978),

^{230.8.1978).}The situation as regards payment of advances would have been quite different in 1981 if it had been possible to meet claims for payment submitted at the end of the year for an amount of 85.91 m ECU, as explained at the end of para 2 above.

This situation probably stems from under-utilisation of the second advance procedure. A more systematic recourse to this procedure by the Member States could help accelerate the rate of payments and reduce the size of balances unclaimed at the end of the financial year.

These conclusions are borne out by estimates according to which, in addition to payments actually made, an amount of 376.7 million ECU could have been claimed in 1981 (see the following table):

	millions	ECU
- Appropriations unclaimed at 31 December 1981		1,395.00
Less:		
- Probable volume of cancellations	100.00	
- Commitments made prior to 1 January 1981 relating to 1982/83 (estimate)	200.00	
 Commitments made in 1981 for which payments could not have been claimed in the same year (estimate) 	500,00	
- Requests for payment of advances not met owing to lack of appropriations	85,90	
- Unused appropriations released for re-use in 1982 out of appropriations committed in 1981	80,00	
- Payment claims being processed by the Commission	52,40	
Total:	1,018.30	
Unclaimed balance		376,70

This state of affairs notwithstanding, the payments situation in 1981 represented an improvement on 1980 given that the unclaimed balance of payment appropriations was about 20% lower (376 million ECU as against 472 million in 1980).

ON-THE-SPOT CHECKS

1. On-the-spot checks were carried out on 50 dossiers in 1981. This entailed scrutiny of supporting documents and an examination of the way in which operations receiving ESF assistance were being conducted. In some instances it was necessary to collect additional information for an appraisal of other applications for assistance or claims for payment submitted by the organisations in question.

Where checks revealed significant discrepancies between the nature of the operations and the description given in the relevant approval decision, the Commission took steps to reduce the amount of assistance granted and to recover part or all of the advances improperly claimed.

The discrepancies concerned for the most part insufficient grounds for expenditure, non-compliance with special criteria applying to certain types of operation and time scales at variance with those proposed. Time lags in completing projects would appear to be one of the main reasons for failure to use appropriations committed.

On-the-spot checks carried out by Social Fund staff and Financial Control related in the main to projects where claims for payment were incomplete or gave rise to doubt. In considering such discrepancies no general conclusions should be inferred for the rest of the schemes being financed.

2. Financial Control, in conjunction with the authorizing departments and the Court of auditors, is analysing the management and financing systems used by the national authorities and the main organisations receiving Community aid. In 1981, four Member States' systems were analysed: Belgium, France, Italy and the Netherlands.

IV. ACTIVITIES BY FIELD OF INTERVENTION

1. Persons leaving agriculture

Volume of applications and commitment appropriations

The rise noted in the volume of applications for assistance from the Fund submitted under Council Decision 72/428/EEC¹ to assist persons leaving agriculture tended to level out, the total amounting to 18.1 million ECU compared with 16.3 million ECU in 1980 - a relatively modest increase (11.8%).

Once again the largest volume of applications was submitted by France (over 51% of the total) and Italy (over 34% - a 50% increase against the previous year). Applications submitted by the Federal Republic of Germany and Ireland represented 6% and 7% respectively. No applications were submitted by the other countries.

For the first time, the budgetary appropriation for this field of intervention was distinguished from that for textiles: it amounted to 5 million ECU. The amount not taken up in 1980 brought the available appropriation to 5.8 million ECU.

Selection criteria and general characteristics of applications

As in 1980, only one level of priority was accorded in the agricultural sector, to operations:

- coming within the framework of specialised measures for the agricultural sector or for the rural environment;
- taking place in disadvantaged areas (with an income below the Community average, or certain hill farming areas)² intended for persons who have left or are leaving agriculture.

OJ No L 291, 27.12.1972, p. 158; OJ No L 337, 27.12.1977, p. 10.

²Areas specified in Council Directive 75/268/EEC, CJ No L 128, 19,5,1975, p. 1.

Most of the operations formed part of programmes financed by national public bodies (Germany, France) or regional bodies (Treland, Italy).

The operations were similar to those implemented in 1980, namely training for workers leaving agriculture, essentially for occupations in the tourist industry and to meet the needs of small and medium-sized firms or for agriculture-related trades (for example, repairing machinery).

Assistance granted equalled the total appropriation available, namely 5.8 million ECU. Since the volume of priority applications totalled 17.9 million ECU, a weighted reduction had to be applied for the first time in 1981. It concerned an amount of 12 million ECU, i.e. 67% of this total.

Beneficiaries

Bearing in mind the fact that the weighted reduction method had to be applied, the programmes approved in 1981 should benefit about 5,822 people.

2. Persons working in the textile and clothing sectors

Volume of applications and commitment appropriations

The volume of applications for assistance submitted for workers in the textile and clothing sectors as provided for under Council Decision $76/206/\text{EEC}^1$ arounted to 36.6 million ECU against 22.6 million ECU in 1980 - a 61.9% increase.

The budgetary provision for this sector was 13 million ECU. However, taking refunds into account the total available appropriations amounted to 16,06 million ECU against 18.9 in 1980. In other words, resources amounted to 84,9% of those available the previous year while the volume of applications was 62% greater.

For the first time, there was a shortfall in the resources available to finance eligible operations.

Selection criteria and general characteristics of applications

As opposed to previous years when only one level of priority was established, in 1981 two levels were applied:

- A. First level priority was accorded to operations for:
 - persons leaving the sector in areas with a high unemployment rate;
 - persons remaining in the sector, when the operation formed part of a conversion or restructuring programme.
- B. Second level priority was accorded to:
 - other operations, either for persons remaining in the sector or leaving it, where training corresponded to the requirements of jobs assured in advance by employers.

About 60% of the operations classified as first priority concerned training for workers leaving the sector in textile-producing areas where unemployment is higher than the national average. These workers select a wide range of sectors, in particular construction, metal or woodworking, the chemicals and pharmaceuticals industry. Forty percent of these applications related to vocational retraining for viable activities within the textile sector.

¹OJ L 39, 14.2.1979, p. 39, OJ L 337, 27.12.1977, p. 10.

All these applications for assistance were associated with the need for modernisation, adaptation to technological change, requirements of fashion, creation of new jobs and reorganisation of work.

Given the extremely high influx of applications in the textile sector in 1981 and the requirement to allocate two priority levels, in examining applications consideration was first given to conversion and restructuring operations with wide-ranging and significant implications, frequently entailing transition from one type of production to another.

Applications classified as first priority alone amounted to about 20.8 million ECU. On the basis of the weighted reduction method, financing was approved for 16.04 million ECU - 77% of total first priority.

Applications classified as second priority could not be financed.

Beneficiaries

Programmes approved in 1981 are estimated to benefit about 8,800 workers.

3. Migrant Workers

Volume of applications and commitment appropriations

In 1981, there was an unprecedented gap between the volume of applications for Social Func assistance for migrant workers and their families under Council Decision 77/803/EEC¹ and the appropriation for this sector. The total volume of applications rose from 153 million ECU in 1980 to 189 million ECU in 1981 while the appropriations earmarked for this field of intervention were cut from 38 million in 1980 to 30 million in 1981.

Nor was it possible - as it had been in previous years - to transfer funds from other fields of intervention, with the result that the resources available represented 16.5% of the total volume of applications.

Faced with this exceptional budgetary situation and having consulted the Fund Committee, the Commission requested a group of experts to carry out a study on Fund aid to migrant workers.

It is already known that the increase in the volume of applications is not due to an increase in the number of migrant workers in the Community. Statistics show no substantial change in the total number of migrants workers in the Community since 1980, returns to the country of origin being offset by the arrival of families in the host countries and refugees from non-member countries.

It is clear, however, that with the increase in unemployment in the Community affecting all categories of workers, those who have been hardest hit are the migrant workers and particularly their children, many of whom are unqualified and swell the ranks of young job-seekers.

This accounts for the substantial increase in the volume of applications following Member. States' efforts to deal with the ever more acute problems facing migrant workers.

¹OJ No L 337, 27,12,1977, p. 12.

Selection criteria and general characteristics of applications

Three types of action are eligible under Council Decision 77/803/EEC1:

- integrated programmes, defined as measures necessary to ensure the effectiveness and continuity of action throughout successive phases of migration, and limited to migrants moving from one Community country to another;
- integration measures i.e. programmes to assist integration into the social and working environment which, although not part of an integrated programme, facilitate the social and occupational integration of migrant workers and their families, and are not limited to migration within the Community;
- training of teachers and welfare workers.

Given this context, the guidelines contained a single level of priority to:

- integrated programmes covering at least two phases of the migration process;
- training of social workers and teachers;
- demonstration projects aimed at improving the standard of special teaching for migrants' children for a maximum of three years;
- language tuition or vocational preparation which includes a substantial element of language teaching.

These provisions also applied to migrants arriving in the Community in emergency conditions,

Integrated programmes

As in previous years, integrated programmes were submitted mostly by Italy and Germany, while a small Irish programme approved in 1980 to assist the return of emigrants to take up employment in key sectors at home was continued. The German applications related to Italian and Greek migrant workers and their families.

OJ No L 337, 27.12.1977, p. 12.

The Italian programmes were mainly geared to assisting adults and their children to re-integrate on their return to Italy. Teaching of the mother tongue combined with courses peculiar to the Italian school system leading to certificates such as the "licenza media" were emphasised. These courses are given in four private institutions abroad that are recognised by the Italian Government.

The development of interest in reverse migration was illustrated by the increase in the number of programmes to facilitate the reintegration of migrant workers in their country of origin submitted by various regional authorities.

The programmes submitted by Germany, on the other hand, were designed to further the integration of migrant workers into the German labour market. The measures aimed at improving working conditions and the life-style of the persons concerned as well as arousing interest in the concept of the environment; therefore, tuition in the German language became a key element in the operation. Another aspect worthy of note was the emphasis on reception, information and guidance activities to be carried out by groups of counsellors set up to facilitate workers' adaptation.

The total cost of integrated programmes amounted to 27 million ECU, or 19.6% of the total volume of priority applications.

Integration measures

Most of the applications submitted under this heading and given a priority rating included vocational training courses with a substantial element of language teaching,

The French applications covered a wide range of vocational preparation measures. Some programmes began with elementary instruction (e.g. reading and writing) while others were entirely devoted to vocational training.

Vocational preparation programmes aimed at young migrants were also submitted by Germany, Belgium and Denmark.

Examination of the programmes submitted to the Social Fund shows that the Bundesanstalt für Arbeit (the Federal Labour Office) has expanded its concept of vocational integration for the young migrant. Following the lead given by this body, the applications submitted by public and private bodies concerned special programmes devised by each promoter.

Only a few demonstration projects were submitted, mainly concerning the children of migrant workers. They were mostly the product of private bodies in Germany, Belgium, France, Greece and the Netherlands.

One Greek programme was designed to improve the integration of the children of returning migrant workers by exploiting the experience gained by the children during their stay abroad, notably via the follow-up to the German programmes.

On the other hand, other programmes in this category tended in the main to emphasise the adaptation of children to life in foreign countries, either by concentrating efforts on environmental measures or through the formation of groups to take action beyond the purely educational tasks performed by the teachers.

Applications in this area classified as priority totalled 110 million ECU, or 80.3% of total priority applications.

Training of social workers and teachers

Applications under this field of intervention reflected a keen desire to supplement traditional teacher training by training more adapted to the needs of migrant workers' children. This was particularly true in the case of certain Länder in Germany and in France and the Netherlands.

Greece submitted a programme of this type mainly designed to prepare teaching staff for the education of Greek children abroad.

Programmes specially designed for staff in charge of preparatory training and language courses for migrant workers and their children were also submitted by France and the United Kingdom.

The integrated programmes referred to earlier submitted by Italy included this type of action.

In the United Kingdom, certain programmes included on-the-job training for workers.

Lastly, some projects included training especially designed for social workers and language teachers to help instruct migrant workers employed in Germany, Belgium and Denmark.

Programmes approved in this category were estimated at one million ECU.

Beneficiaries

It is estimated that Fund operations approved in 1981 would contribute to the education of some 87,000 migrant children and assist courses adapted to the linguistic and occupational needs of 169,000 young migrants and adults and specialised training courses for 2,300 teachers and social workers.

4. Young people

Volume of applications and commitment appropriations

The volume of applications under Council Decision EEC/75/459¹ for assistance for young persons reached 685 million ECU in 1981, a 13% increase over the previous year. Of this, 520 million ECU concerned training programmes and 165 million ECU concerned employment promotion under Council Regulation (EEC) No 3039/78². A spectacular increase in 1980 was followed by a slow-down in the growth of the volume of applications despite the rising rates of inflation and the number of applications submitted for the first time by Greece. This is particularly true of applications relating to training schemes, which increased by approximately 10% between 1980 and 1981 as against 30% between 1979 and 1980.

The budgetary allocation of 372 million ECU (264 million ECU for training and 108 million ECU for employment aids) was augmented by refunds of 37 million ECU to bring total available appropriations in this field to 409 million ECU, i.e. 6.3% higher than in the previous year.

General characteristics of applications and selection criteria

The intention to achieve simplification and harmonisation, which was the hallmark of the reshaping of the Guidelines for the management of the Social Fund in 1981, was given practical effect in the following way with respect to assistance for young people:

- (1) with regard to the geographical scope of priority "young people" regions³, ordinary applications for assistance were classified according to the following three levels:
 - (a) six regions qualifying for the higher rate of intervention⁴ (Greenland, French overseas departments, Ireland, Northern Ireland, Mezzogiorno, Greece);

¹OJ No L 199 of 30.7.1975, p. 36; OJ No L 337 of 27.12.1977, p. 10.

²OJ No L 361 of 23,12,1978, p. 3.

 $^{^3}$ See list published in OJ No C 42 of 27.2.1981, p. 3.

⁴OJ No L 337 of 27,12,1977, p. 7; OJ No 194 of 17,7,1981, p. 4,

- (b) areas with weak economic structures affected by restructuring or conversion measures;
- (c) other regions and areas for operations identical to those classified under (a) and operations which, though eligible, could not be classified under (b).

Priority "young people" regions are established on the basis of unemployment among young people as revealed in the biennial labour force survey produced by the Statistical Office of the Communities. They must have an unemployment rate over 30% higher than the national average in countries in which the regions overall have a rate lower than the Community average.

Restructuring and conversion areas are defined on the basis of per capita gross domestic product and unemployment rate (to assess the general economic and social situation) and the degree of dependence on employment in four sectors (coal, iron and steel, textiles/clothing and shipbuilding).

Following discussion with the Member States concerned, a list was drawn up of the areas in which employment showed a concentration in several of these four sectors or a high concentration in one of them.

- (2) Certain applications were exempt from the geographical conditions defined in (1) above. Subject to certain conditions, these involved:
 - (a) programmes for the training or re-training of young women to promote a more even mix of job opportunities in new occupations and jobs in which women are under-represented;
 - (b) programmes financed exceptionally for a maximum of three years with the aim of either:
 - improving local training structures;
 - providing new training/work experience schemes on an experimental basis for a limited number of persons (not more than 200).

OJ No C 1, 3.1.1980, p. 1 (Council Resolution of 18.12.1979 on linked work and training for young people).

Lastly it should be noted that in all cases the operations figuring in the application had to have a link with the labour market. Moreover, training operations were reserved for first job seekers and, in restructuring or conversion areas, were to support conversion and restructuring programmes.

Training programmes

In general, more than 90% of approved applications related to major national programmes. National public authorities (notably in Belgium, the United Kingdom, France and Ireland) or public or private bodies with national scope (Italy) were involved. In other cases (Germany and Italy), the regional authorities ensured the implementation of national programmes while also organising their own programmes. Lastly, there was an increase in the number - still modest - of programmes implemented by local authorities (e.g. in Denmark and the United Kingdom).

First priority was accorded:

- in the six regions receiving the higher rate of intervention:
 - to vocational preparation and pre-training programmes conducted to fill non-skilled or semi-skilled jobs or for admission to skilled training courses (including upgrading and active vocational guidance measures);
 - . to training or re-training programmes.
- Throughout the Community:
 - . to training schemes for young women.

As in the preceding years, the programmes submitted were principally concerned with vocational preparation for disadvantaged young people without training, who make up the large majority of the long-term unemployed. Most of the Member States experimented with measures and gradually set up reception structures for this category of young people, who were unable to make use of traditional channels to obtain preliminary training.

The training programmes for young women involved approximately 18,000 persons, i.e. 41% more than the previous year; those submitted by Germany were on the largest scale. It was possible to distinguish between three types of programme in this country, according to the level at which they were promoted. The national authorities financed multi-skill programmes in the regions according to the type of technology involved (mechanical or electrical engineering, forging, etc.) leading subsequently to various specialisations related to labour market needs. The programmes directly financed by the Länder were more influenced by the job vacancy situation and were consequently more or less specialised. Lastly, at local level, there were small specialised programmes linked to jobs specified by employers.

The sums involved in the programmes classified as first priority amounted to 118.1 million ECU.

Programmes implemented in restructuring or conversion areas with weak economic structures were accorded second priority. In the case of vocational preparation or pre-training, the schemes had to be linked to labour market needs. Training and retraining schemes had to support conversion or restructuring programmes.

In both cases it appeared, when the applications were submitted and examined, that the Member States had particular difficulty in meeting the selection criteria mentioned above, especially where it was a question of completing the simple calculation based on the estimates for the application of national measures in these areas. While leaving the Member States to choose the means, the Commission was bound to ensure that the operations it supported were well-adapted to labour market needs in these areas where employment is threatened by the decline of dominant industries to a degree which has resulted in the implementation of Community policies.

Programmes classified as second priority amounted to 93.5 million ECU.

Programmes classified as third priority amounted to 222.3 million ECU. A weighted reduction of 166.9 million ECU, i.e. 32% of the total volume of applications relating to training schemes, was applied to this last level of priority.

Experimental training schemes

- Improvement in local training structures

Among the operations financed on an exceptional basis to promote an improvement in local training structures, the pilot schemes at Arhus and Strorstrøm ("amtskommuner") in Denmark are worthy of mention. These operations were implemented on behalf of 1,950 young long-term unemployed. The girls were particularly interested in training for jobs traditionally occupied by men. The originality of this operation consisted in the guarantee provided by the employment board on completion of the guidance and preparation period. This guarantee covered either:

- advanced training (long courses), or
- short training periods alternating with practical work experience in a firm, or
- a job under normal conditions in the private sector for at least nine months.

Linked work and training

The new training/work experience operations related to the Council Resolution of 18 December 1979¹. In this Resolution, the Fund was requested to cooperate with the Member States in the spirit of Article 7 of the Regulation with regard to preparatory studies and pilot schemes. In application of the guidelines referred to above under item 2(b) second indent, the Commission approved 18 applications involving approximately 3,000 young people.

These applications covered a varied range of operations. For the most part they were programmes implemented by the local authorities for particularly disadvantaged young people. This was notably the case in the United Kingdom, with schemes for small groups which made it possible to provide individual follow-up. These groups received theoretical training of 360 hours adapted to the specific features of occupations in four sectors (distributive trades, hotel and catering trades, tourism and travel agencies, printing and paper manufacture) besides various manufacturing industries. In particular, the experiment was concerned with adapting theoretical training through the adoption of a modular

OJ No C 1 of 3,1,1980, p. 1.

system lesigned to enable each young person to attain the highest level of training within his capacity. In France, in the Rhône-Alpes region, a programme was set up for young people from rural areas wishing to find jobs in the catering industry or in connection with mountain sports. The objective in this case was to provide an officially recognised diploma and a guarantee of employment in the region.

In Northern Italy, the problem was one of updating teaching methods and meeting the specific needs of sectors in which there was no training appropriate to the jobs on offer. For example, cartography, illuminated advertising signs, cinema and television trades (Lombardy), textiles, electronics and electrical engineering (Tuscany), wine-growing, horticulture, animal husbandry (Emilia Romagna). In some cases training was directly linked to measures to improve the living environment, e.g.: renovation of the historic centre of Parma, safeguarding the nature reserve in Ticino (Lombardy).

Lastly, in the Netherlands, linked training and work experience was used for girls to help them to embark on courses of training customarily reserved for boys - two-year training for skilled jobs in the construction, metal and woodworking sectors.

The results obtained by these experimental programmes will be set out in future annual reports.

Employment aids

The number of beneficiaries under this heading is estimated at approximately 141,460, divided as follows: two-thirds under recruitment subsidies to firms providing additional jobs and one-third under job-creation measures relating to community work projects designed to meet unfulfilled needs. In volume terms, France and the United Kingdom (each with 42%) accounted for the greatest shares of applications relating to recruitment subsidies, while Germany (12%), Belgium (22%) and the United Kingdom (48%) were in the lead as regards community work projects.

First priority was accorded to operations in regions qualifying for the higher rate of intervention (referred to under 1(a) above) which received 9.89 million ECU, representing respectively 6.8% (recruitment subsidies) and 2.8% (community work projects) of total resources available for employment aids. Second level priority was accorded to operations in the areas referred to under 1(b) above; the total granted was 49.5 million ECU, representing respectively 35% for recruitment subsidies and 13.2% for community work projects.

Third level priority was accorded to operations in the remaining priority "young people" regions referred to in 1(c) above; in this case the total granted was 43.17 million ECU, representing respectively 27.3% for recruitment subsidies and 14.8% for community work projects.

A weighted reduction of 25.82 million ECU was applied to third level priority recruitment subsidy operations, while the appropriations were sufficient to enable all applications concerning community work projects to be approved.

Beneficiaries

It is estimated that operations approved in 1981 will help to train 295,300 young persons and find employment for some 141,460 young people under the age of 25.

Application presenting special problems

The public authorities of a Member State decided to implement a measure aimed at setting up additional local structures for pre-training and vocational preparation organised by local authorities - or groups of local authorities - for young long-term unemployed.

The features of the operation are as follows:

- tripartite management high quality of staff and facilities integration of the preparatory and guidance stages;
- guarantee of an appropriate outlet for individual capacities (long training course; short training periods alternating with work experience; semi-skilled employment for nine months).

Before a more general application of this measure, the Fund was requested to contribute to the financing of a first experimental application in two communes.

In view of its limited geographical scope, this kind of scheme is generally accorded third level priority.

The problem was whether the measure was innovatory, and if so, whether the application for assistance could consequently be given first priority.

The ESF Committee was consulted and gave a favourable opinion.

The Commission exceptionally accorded this application first priority since its aim is to set up at local level an original training structure for a category of disadvantaged young people while at the same time providing an opportunity for each of them to escape unemployment permanently.

5. Women

Volume of applications and commitment appropriations

The volume of applications relating to measures for women provided for by Council Decision $77/804/\text{EEC}^1$ reached 103 million ECU in 1981, i.e. 45% more than in the preceding year.

This increase is attributable on the one hand to the Commission's continued promotional work as regards opportunities for assistance from the Fund and, on the other hand, to the attempts of Member States to implement a greater number of schemes eligible for first priority classification.

Germany alone submitted applications amounting to 89.9 million ECU, or 87% of the total volume under this heading. The budgetary allocation for this area of intervention was 22 million ECU, while refunds amounting to 0.5 million ECU brought the available appropriations to 22.5 million ECU, an increase of 6.6% over 1980.

There was therefore a more marked shortfall in the funds available to finance eligible applications than in preceding years.

Selection criteria and general characteristics of applications

The Commission had fixed the same priorities for 1981 as in 1980, namely:

- A. first priority was accorded to:
 - operations to promote a better mix of job opportunities in new occupations and occupations in which women are under-represented;
- B. second level priority was accorded to:
 - operations concerned with jobs traditionally occupied by women, but:
 - . intended for women who were victims of mass dismissals, or
 - . enabling women to obtain more highly skilled jobs.

¹OJ No L 337 of 27,12,1977, p. 13,

An increase in the volume of first priority operations, already noted in previous years, was again recorded in 1981.

This rise was particularly marked in Germany, Belgium, Italy and the United Kingdom. Greece - a new Member State, admittedly - and Luxembourg made no applications under this heading.

The training programmes accorded first priority, while more numerous, did not differ appreciably from those of preceding years, which reflected a consistent approach on the part of the promoters to the problems of women job-seekers.

This stability also resulted partly from the fact that for most operations approved, the promoters and organisers were the same as in 1979 and 1980.

Moreover, the fact that identical guidelines have remained in effect from year to year has facilitated the running-in necessary to the implementation of operations in a relatively new sector.

Among the first priority applications, an innovatory programme in the United Kingdom is worthy of note. Among other things, this programme included a request for assistance with respect to the remuneration of a nursery nurse in charge of a nursery used by the children of trainees. There is no need to underline the advantage of a programme meeting in this way - for the first time, it must be emphasised - the increasingly urgent demands of women confronted by the dual responsibilities of work and family.

The Italian applications were mainly lodged by private bodies or regional authorities. They concerned the training of women for various occupations such as storekeeper, industrial accountant, hotel industry employee (porter, receptionist, manager, book-keeper) or for administrative and managerial activities.

Others, continuing the trend which emerged in 1980, were based on the creation of cooperatives aimed at training women for managerial jobs in craft industries.

In this respect mention should be made of a programme carried out by a private body to train some 50 women in the Mezzogiorno in crafts occupations or for positions of responsibility in small local firms. These cooperatives, situated in Sardinia, Campania and in the Abruzzi were set up by the promoter, prior to the training courses, to guarantee employment.

In Belgium, a scheme to provide training for administrative posts and positions of responsibility has been launched in the small business sector. Apart from the motivation stage in which individual aptitudes are developed, this operation comprises theoretical and practical training supplemented by preparation for working in a self-employed occupation.

Also in Belgium, pre-training schemes were set up in line with models which have been tested in France over some years. They consisted of three stages: assessment of individual aptitudes and the development of basic skills, information on the labour market and the acquisition of practical on-the-job experience in the chosen occupation.

The two promoters included psychological back-up and individual assessment of progress for the trainees in their programmes.

It was possible to finance the applications accorded first priority in their entirety, involving a sum of 17 million ECU as against 14 million ECU in 1980, an increase of 21.4%.

It is worth noting that little use has been made of the opportunity to benefit from the higher rate of intervention. Operations carried out in absolute priority regions accounted for only 9.3% of commitments in 1981. Apart from Ireland, an absolute priority country, Italy alone implemented operations in the Mezzogiorno accounting for 42% - a not insignificant proportion - of the total volume of applications as against 58% for the rest of the country.

Second level priority operations to prepare women for more highly skilled jobs totalled 84.6 million ECU. Since the resources available after the first priority applications had been financed totalled 5.5 million ECU, a weighted reduction of 93.4% had to be applied to the total amount for this category of application.

Germany remained the principal beneficiary of the assistance granted, receiving 12.9 million ECU as against 14.1 million ECU in 1980, i.e. 57% of available funds as against 66% followed as in 1980 by Italy and France.

Beneficiaries

The number of women aged over 25^{1} estimated to be benefiting in this intervention field was approximately 10,900. Among these, 7,000 were channelled into new occupations or occupations in which women are under-represented. It should be noted that women are also beneficiaries under other fields of intervention,

As was pointed out in part 4 (Young people), approval was given under the heading of aid for young people to schemes to train young women under 25 for occupations in which women are under-represented or for new types of employment accessible to both male and female workers, amounting to expenditure of 23.59 million ECU and involving 18,500 young women.

In the other intervention fields of the European Social Fund, men and women are of course placed on an equal footing; figures provided by the Member States show that, as in 1980, a little over 30% of Social Fund beneficiaries are women.

 $^{^{1}}$ OJ No L 337 of 27,12,1977, p. 14.

6. Regions

Volume of applications and commitment appropriations

The volume of applications for assistance relating to measures for the benefit of workers in less-developed or declining regions submitted under Article 5 of Council Decision 71/66/EEC amounted to 675 million ECU in 1981, a 12.5% increase on 1980. The 1980 increase on 1979 was almost identical: 12%. The budgetary provision devoted to "Regions" in 1981 amounted to 395 million ECU, the same figure as for 1980; the latter figure, however, also included appropriations for technical progress and groups of firms.

Taking into account refunds which, as in 1980, were very substantial, the total volume of commitment appropriations available came to 466 m ECU as against 455 million in $1980 - i_{\pi}e_{\pi}$, a slight increase (2%).

The relative shortage of funds available to meet eligible applications was therefore more marked than in previous years.

Selection criteria and characteristics of applications

As in the previous year, the Guidelines for 1981 included five levels of priority:

1. First priority

Operations for persons with inadequate skill levels, training operations, recruitment operations where jobs were created, and resettlement operations following recruitment decided in advance by employers, for the benefit of workers in Greenland, the French overseas departments, Ireland, Northern Ireland, the Mezzogiorno and Greece. Training operations for unemployed workers were to be linked to labour market requirements.

¹OJ No L 28, 4.2.1971, p. 15; OJ No L 337, 27.12.1971, p. 8.

2. Second level priority

Resettlement operations following recruitment decided in advance by employers; training operations for unemployed workers or workers threatened with unemployment. These operations were carried out in connection with recruitment decided in advance by employers or aimed at maintaining employment.

The operations were for the benefit of workers in regions and areas eligible for assistance from the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) and affected by serious industrial restructuring or conversion problems with regard to which Community policies have been adopted.

3. Third level priority

Operations identical to those classified as second level priority, for the benefit of workers in other regions and areas eligible for assistance from the European Regional Development Fund.

4. Fourth level priority

Operations to provide training in basic skills, training schemes or recruitment programmes involving job creation, for the benefit of workers unemployed for more than 6 months; recruitment programmes involving job creation for the benefit of unemployed workers recruited by firms employing fewerthan 25 people. These operations were for the benefit of workers in the regions and areas referred to under (2) and (3) above.

5. Fifth level priority

Other training operations for workers either unemployed or threatened with unemployment, and recruitment programmes involving job creation, for the benefit of workers in regions and areas referred to under (2) and (3).

Of the 466 million ECU available, it has been possible to commit only 434 million ECU, a figure which takes account of the late notification of refunds.

As in 1980, all the applications classified under the first four priorities were funded in full. However, only 12.7% of those classified as fifth level priority were funded, as against 34% in 1980.

First priority was accorded to applications relating to measures carried out in the six regions referred to.

The volume of applications classified at this level rose in 1981 to 300 million ECU as against 228 million ECU in the previous year, i.e. an increase of 31.6%. Consequently, the share of commitment appropriations allocated to these six regions in relation to the total available under this heading in 1981 represented 69% of those appropriations as against 52% in 1980, 64% in 1979 and 62% in 1978. The fact that Greece has now been added to the five other regions does not explain the sharp increase in first priority applications since, excluding Greece, the share of the five regions stood at 66% of total aid available under this heading. This growth has been continuous since 1978 and corresponds, in national currency, to nominal annual increases of: Greenland, 30%; Mezzogiorno, 25.7%; Ireland, 21.4%; the French Overseas Departments, 17% and Northern Ireland, 2.1%.

Thus, the first priority regions have for years been receiving sizeable sums of aid corresponding to 40% of the appropriations available for the entire Fund, although they accounted for only 8% of the Community's working population. The Commission attaches very great importance to the concentration of aid in those regions. It now has to hand a study - on which consultations were begun in 1981 - showing the impact of this aid.

Of the operations financed, two merit special attention:

- one, carried out in Greenland, was a training scheme for Greenlanders designed to give them access to jobs so far held by Danish staff in view of the latters' qualifications;
- the other, carried out in Greece, was aimed at giving about 70,000 persons a brief period of instruction involving elements of vocational training and adult education.

Second level priority was granted in the main to operations carried out in France and the United Kingdom and aimed at helping toward the conversion of the steel industry. The training programme carried out in Lorraine, for example, was designed to assist the conversion of subcontracting firms to the field of electrical equipment repair. The sum granted in respect of these operations amounted to 12 million ECU as against 7.49 million ECU in 1980.

Applications classified as third level priority concerned training operations with guaranteed jobs for the successful trainees, carried out in the other ERDF regions $^{\rm l}$.

Measures satisfying this requirement received assistance amounting to 64.4 million ECU, i.e. 36% less than in 1980. This drop is due to the fact that a considerable number of applications initially classified at this level of priority were found, once the documentation had been studied, not to provide the job guarantees required; hence, they had to be re-classified as fifth level priority.

i.e. the "DATAR" areas of metropolitan France, the "Assisted Areas" of England, Wales and Scotland, the "depressed or mountain areas" of North or Central Italy, the "Gebiete der Gemeinschaftsaufgabe" of the Federal Republic of Germany, the districts in receipt of regional aid in Belgium, the assisted regions in the Netherlands, the "Afraensning af egnsudviklingsområderne" in the case of Denmark.

It should be remembered that the application of the Guidelines as regards guaranteed re-employment requires an undertaking on the part of employers to recruit a number of workers at least equal to the number of trainees involved, which must be given in advance of the operation. It is worth comparing and contrasting operations accorded first level priority with those classified as third level.

In the first case, the Fund makes an overall contribution to the development of the six first priority regions; in the second case, it provides aid in the other ERDF regions for the execution of selected non-continuous operations intended either to create new avenues of development or to link vocational training more closely with job creation measures. These operations were conducted in a variety of sectors characteristic, in most cases, of the main lines of economic development of the regions concerned. The two forms of aid complement each other: they were made possible in 1981 only by adopting a rigorous approach to the management of the operations.

The programmes classified as fourth priority accounted for a total of 27.7 million ECU, i.e. a fall of 16% as against 1980. However, this decline was by no means uniform; from year to year, operations present very different features.

Operations aimed at providing basic skills amounted in 1981 to 12.8 m ECU as against 31.4 m ECU in 1980. They chiefly concerned Germany, Belgium, France and the United Kingdom.

Attention should be drawn to the operations carried out in Belgium in the declining regions of Liège and Charleroi and, in the United Kingdom, in the Merseyside region. The provision of training in basic skills is proving to be a form of aid which is particularly well suited to the problems occurring in the older centres of employment as a result of industrial conversion measures.

Operations concerning wage subsidies (Aid E) showed a marked and continuous decline. In 1981 they accounted for only 3.9 million ECU against 15.3 million ECU in 1980 and 26 million ECU in 1979. This fall, which mainly affected the United Kingdom, is explained by the ending of wage subsidies to small and medium-sized undertakings, which now receive only a modest amount of assistance from local authorities.

It should be pointed out, however, that an additional sum of 3.3 million ECU in aid to wage costs was granted in respect of first priority regions, mainly to Italy.

With regard to operations concerning workers who have been unemployed for more than six months, whese concerned only Germany in 1981. Approvals relating to such programmes totalled 6.3 million ECU. Mention should be made of a programme carried out in Berlin for the benefit of young people who had been unemployed for more than six months, oriented towards communal work, notably through a cooperative engaged in renovating public or private buildings.

Improvement of local training structures

The Guidelines for 1981 provided for "assistance (to be) provided (in exceptional cases and for a maximum of three years) towards operations aimed at improving the effectiveness of local training structures".

Projects submitted on this basis received assistance amounting to 4.6 million ECU for the continuation of programmes already under way, mainly in the paramedical sector in Italy and for training/local development operations carried out in rural and industrial regions in France (Languedoc-Roussillon-St. Etienne).

Action in this area, which goes beyond the traditional idea of training, seems to be an avenue worth exploring, given the present job market crisis.

Within this framework, the object of training is to stimulate the inhabitants of an area to devise and organise projects aimed at launching new economic activities or develop existing activities. This type of "training/development" scheme, by mobilising local activities, results in the creation of new jobs.

The volume of applications classified as fifth priority amounted to 257 million ECU as against 203 in 1980. Appropriations available amounted to only 33 million ECU instead of 69 million in 1980.

Hence, the weighted reduction had much more severe effects than in previous years. In agreement with the Member States, this reduction was often applied to major national programmes; however, special treatment was accorded to regional programmes with the aim of sparing small-scale public or private bodies the consequences of a cut-off in Fund commitment during the year while programmes submitted were already in progress.

Beneficiaries: It is estimated that 500,000 people will benefit from programmes approved in 1981.

Special measures for the Mediterranean regions

Under the Mandate of 30 May 1980, the Commission laid down the lines of action for programmes in aid of the Mediterranean regions.

It is worth pointing out that many operations which benefit from the Pund are part of this development, both in south-western France and the Mezzogiorno. Examples include the major effort being made in the foodstuffs, fisheries, refrigeration, aquaculture and biological restocking sectors, and combined activities in rural areas geared to the creation of jobs or additional jobs in the tourist and craft industries. Finally, in the context of the development of new sources of energy (solar, geothermal, biomass) and microelectronics technology, the Fund has participated in many training operations for the benefit of small and medium-sized undertakings in these regions.

Applications presenting special problems

Applications from the Greek Ministry of Education

The Ministry of Education is organising courses throughout Greece lasting on average 120 hours and covering various trades (building and construction, timber work, etc.) and activities (dressmaking, weaving, embroidery, ceramics, etc). This is a major operation since 14,000 persons are following these courses in Athens and Thessaloniki and 56,000 in the rest of the country. These courses fall partly within the field of vocational training (long training for a skilled trade) and are partly oriented towards leisure, free time or life enrichment (short courses).

The problem raised was whether, in view of Greece's economic and social situation, this programme, which, the Ministry maintained,

met recognised needs in rural areas and could be developed into a series of skilled or basic training courses, could be wholly financed by the Fund.

With the aim of encouraging Greece's gradual adjustment to the Fund's priorities, the entire programme, with the exception of the training courses geared towards leisure activities, was classified as first priority for 1981.

Aid to promote better conditions of employment (Aid E)

The object of wage cost subsidies is to cover expenditure on allowances paid by firms to newly-recruited workers for a maximum of six months, representing 30% of the gross average wage paid by the firm in question for corresponding jobs.

The question arose as to whether the ceiling of 30% applies to ESF assistance or whether, since Rund assistance is limited to 50% or 55% of eligible expenditure, the proportion payable by the Fund should be limited to 15% or 16,5% of the related wages.

Although, from the legal viewpoint, a broad interpretation of the legislative text is possible, hitherto the level of intervention has always been 15% and the ESF Committee held that this rate should be maintained.

Council Regulation (EEC) No 2396/71 of 8 November 1971, as amended by Regulation (EEC) No 2893/77.

OJ No L 249, 10.11.1971, p. 54; OJ No L 337, 27.12.1971, p. 1.

7. Technical progress

Volume of applications and commitment appropriations available

The volume of applications for assistance submitted in respect of this field of intervention, in accordance with Article 5(1)(b) of Council Decision 71/66/EEC¹, as amended by Decision 77/801/EEC², was 55.47 million ECU as against 26.72 in the previous year.

The fact that this volume has more than doubled was undoubtedly a result of the deepening of the crisis which, for several years, the Community as a whole has been experiencing. Workers found their jobs increasingly threatened, while competition forced firms to modernise their methods of production management and to seek ways of squeezing energy costs to a minimum.

The budgetary allocation for this area was 25 million ECU, to which were added 2.5 million in carryovers from 1980 and 2.5 million in refunds. Appropriations available finally came to 30.5 million ECU.

This was the first time that a separate budget had been allocated to the "technical progress" field.

Selection criteria and characteristics of applications

Although four levels of priority had been recognised in previous years, in 1981 the Commission decided to establish only two:

A. - first priority was accorded to:

operations which contributed towards safeguarding employment in sectors of economic activity in which the introduction of new technologies or production techniques jeopardized employment levels (threat of unemployment);

¹OJ No L 28, 4.2.1971, p. 15.

²OJ No L 337, 27,12,1977, p. 8,

- operations implemented to encourage the modernisation of production and management techniques in small and medium-sized undertakings;

B. - second level priority was reserved for:

- operations designed to apply, for the first time in a Member State, a new technology capable of benefitting an entire sector;
- operations implemented in expanding branches of economic activity, where the introduction of new technologies or production techniques leads to the creation of new jobs, in so far as the skills in demand were innovative and there is such a shortage of labour that the development of new technology was liable to be jeopardised.

Operations referred to above could be designed to retrain workers or keep them in the same occupation (training in new skills), but in either case they should not involve simple routine adaptation measures (in particular, training courses had to last at least 200 hours for those who are unemployed, threatened with unemployment or underemployed).

Technical progress was assessed on relative terms depending on the siting and size of the firms concerned.

First priority applications relating to sectors of economic activity in which the introduction of new technologies jeopardised job levels were submitted mainly by Germany and the United Kingdom and, to a markedly lesser extent, by France, Italy and Greece.

They concerned the printing industry, graphic arts, watch- and clock-making, telecommunications and the aerospace industry.

Most of the operations to encourage modernisation of production and management in small and medium-sized undertakings were carried out in Italy and, to a lesser extent, Belgium and France.

Applications classified as first priority amounted to 29.5 million ECU, and they were financed in full.

Of applications classified as second level priority, only Italy submitted projects concerning the initial implementation of new technologies in the sectors of solar energy, renewable forms of energy, special steels, micro-electronics, telematics and robotics.

Operations in expanding sectors of activity were carried out in Germany in the area of protection against radioactivity and isotope technology; in France, mainly in the nuclear, microwave and high frequency sectors, and in the data processing, electronics, computerised office systems and energy saving sectors; in Italy, in particular in the engines, automation and data processing sectors.

Applications classified as second level priority amounted to 14,700,000 ECU. The weighted reduction method had to be applied — for the first time in this field—in line with the appropriations remaining available, i.e. 674,266 ECU, bringing the amount approved to 5% of the total sum relations to these operations.

In all, assistance granted in 1981 for "technical progress" therefore amounted to 33 million ECU.

<u>Beneficiaries</u>

Allowing for the weighted reduction, the number of persons benefiting from Fund aid was estimated at 23,997.

8. Groups of firms

Volume of applications and commitment appropriations

The volume of applications for assistance submitted in respect of this field of intervention, in accordance with Article 5(1)(c) of Council Decision $71/66/\text{EEC}^1$, as amended by Council Decision $77/801/\text{EEC}^2$, amounted to 19.8 million ECU as against 2.65 the previous year, i.e. almost a tenfold increase.

This striking increase in volume is undoubtedly a result of the efforts made in the Member States, confronted by the magnitude of the economic crisis, to develop new technologies in industry.

For the first time in 1981, this field of intervention received a separate budgetary allocation. This amounted to 8 million ECU, supplemented by 0.4 million in refunds.

Selection criteria and characteristics of applications

The selection criteria laid down were partly amended in relation to the 1980 criteria. Two categories of operation were accorded priority status, namely:

- (a) those aimed at solving employment problems in sectors affected by serious industrial restructuring or conversion problems, with regard to which Community policies had been adopted;
- (b) those aimed at assisting the mobility of workers in other sectors, who are affected by large-scale redundancies and for whom stable re-employment is assured in an expanding field of activity.

Of the priority applications, 10% were from Denmark, 85% from Italy and 5% from the United Kingdom.

¹OJ No L 28, 4.2.1971, p. 15.

²OJ No L 337, 27,12,1977, p. 8,

Only the Italian programmes corresponded to category (a) above and concerned the steel industry and shipbuilding.

The other programmes fell within the scope of category (b) and concerned the training of workers with the aim of securing their re-employment in other sectors, mainly electronics, electrical engineering, numerical control, precision engineering and computer aids to management.

An application by the United Kingdom concerned the transfer of 300 dockers from the old Port of London to the new docks at Tilbury which are equipped to handle containers.

Since the volume of priority applications came to 12.7 million ECU, a weighted reduction of 4 million ECU (or 31%) had to be applied to this sum, thereby bringing the total amount approved into line with the appropriations available, i.e. 8.4 million ECU.

Assistance granted in respect of priority operations amounted to 7.7 million ECU in Italy, 0.4 million ECU in the United Kingdom, 0.3 million in Denmark, i.e. 85%, 5% and 10% respectively of the volume of priority applications.

The remainder of the applications, totalling 7.1 million ECU, could not be met.

Beneficiaries

Allowing for the weighted reduction, 6,029 persons should benefit from operations in this field.

Applications presenting special problems

Since the port installations of a large city had been relocated, the Member State concerned requested that the Fund should bear the cost of expenditure incurred in respect of aid to geographical mobility for the dockers. The employer pays them a resettlement allowance and reimburses the costs of daily travel for a maximum of eight months.

The problem raised was whether the allowances paid could be financed by the Fund under the 'resettlement' heading, since the change of residence had not yet taken place.

The European Social Fund Committee, consulted on this matter, held that the Fund could finance the allowances in question, adducing the following arguments:

- changes of residence usually encounter resistance on the part of workers for material and psychological reasons;
- the purpose of the allowances paid is to encourage such transfers and these can only be carried out gradually;
- the relevant Fund Regulation stipulates that the purpose of resettlement aid is to "facilitate the transfer of persons who are obliged to change their place of residence in order to pursue an occupation", but does not require such transfer actually to have taken place when the assistance is granted.

The Commission approved the application.

9. The Handicapped

Volume of applications and commitment appropriations

The volume of applications for assistance concerning the integration or re-integration of the disabled into working life under Article 5(1)(d) of Council Decision $71/66/\text{EEC}^1$, as amended by Decision $77/801/\text{EEC}^2$, amounted to 154 million ECU in 1981 compared with 127 in 1980 - a 22% increase on the previous year.

Year after year the increase in the number of applications testifies to the concern felt by the Member States and the responsible bodies for one of the most disadvantaged categories of people in the Community.

At the same time, ever-greater budgetary resources have been made available to this field of intervention. In 1981, 90 million ECU were allocated to this sector, to which were added another 3.8 million derived from refunds, thus bringing the total to 93.8 million.

This sum is 20% greater than the 1980 appropriation of 78 million ECU.

¹OJ No L 28, 4.2.1971, p. 15.

²OJ No L 337, 27,12,1977, p. 8,

Selection criteria and general characteristics of applications

As in 1980 the Commission established two levels of priority for this field of intervention.

- A. First level priority was accorded to:
 - demonstration actions related to employment and innovative in character;
 - programmes for the integration of the handicapped into open employment in Greenland, the French Overseas Department, Northern Ireland, the Mezzogiorno and Greece.
- B. Second level priority was accorded to:
 - vocational training or rehabilitation operations, adaptation of jobs, work places or equipment and the recruitment of handicapped persons in the open economy.

As in the past, most applications were received from public authorities responsible for the occupational integration of handicapped people.

Several private bodies also submitted programmes which, although limited in scope for lack of adequate resources, were far from lacking in interest on account of their innovative approach and the impact they could have on the rehabilitation of the persons concerned.

Eleven demonstration projects were awarded first level priority. They were submitted by Denmark, France, Italy and the United Kingdom.

Two operations submitted by France were carried out by private bodies.

One of these projects concerned for the first time continuous training. The tuition given included general basic courses for persons who have been totally or partially deprived of such training with the idea of giving them the independence essential for practical living. Other courses encouraged the development of creativity and facilitated access to various occupations. This project served as an example in terms of quantity and quality.

The other project applied teaching methods with a view to pinpointing the human and occupational potential of handicapped persons wishing to enter working life or who were in need of retraining in the immediate future.

The six applications presented by Italy were also of interest as regards their novel approach. Operations related respectively to the training of handicapped people in a normal environment and experiments in their direct participation in industry; the long-term teaching of severely handicapped people; assisted training at the work place; modular training and lastly vocational training and the integration of civilian disabled in economic activities.

Attention should also be drawn to two programmes submitted by the ${\tt United\ Kingdom}$,

One experimented with a teaching method especially adapted to young handicapped people intellectually ill-prepared for employment in the open economy, to help them overcome their difficulties.

The other focused on courses for handicapped people with a higher intelligence quotient than the average mentally handicapped person. The aim of the experiment was to give the persons concerned a different type of training, closer to the actual conditions of working life.

In view of the effort to overcome the severe difficulties encountered by handicapped people both these operations deserve to be encouraged.

Lastly, attention should be drawn to the efforts made by Denmark, which carried out an experiment involving the direct integration of handicapped people in firms located far away from areas with special centres. This action demonstrates the desire to overcome the misgivings of the local population.

The applications relating to schemes of an experimental nature listed above totalled 7.1 million ECU. It should be stressed that many of them would not have been put into effect without Fund assistance.

Most of the applications classified as first priority related to programmes carried out in the six absolute priority regions.

These programmes included many of the demonstration projects referred to above as well as to other operations eligible for assistance from the Fund in this area of intervention.

As in the past, it was found possible to finance in full all first priority applications under this heading, for a total of 36.3 million ECU.

Second level priority was accorded to vocational training and rehabilitation operations that were not innovative in approach and did not take place in first priority regions.

These programmes, amounting to 113.2 million ECU, could only be approved in part; a weighted reduction of about 50% therefore had to be applied to the total volume applications classified at this level,

In 1980, application of Article 9(2) of Council Decision 71/66/EEC as amended by Decision 77/801/EEC had confined Fund financing to operations taking place in ERDF regions.

However, as stated on p. 15 of this Report, there was much greater room for manoeuvre in 1981 as regards resources available for programmes outside Regional Fund territory, which obviated the need to reject applications for financing.

LOJ No L 28, 4.2.1971, p. 15. OJ No L 337, 27.12.1977, p. 8.

Beneficiaries

Operations approved in 1981 should make it possible substantially to improve the situation of 55,280 handicapped persons in working life.

Seminar on handicapped people

Lastly, with a view to making the most of Fund intervention, in October 1981 the Commission organised a seminar in Mulhouse, France on the occasion of the International Year for the Disabled.

The aim of the seminar was to carry out a joint assessment of the results of demonstration projects previously financed by the Social Fund in the Member States.

Views were exchanged on the aims, methods, means and results of each operation.

A summary report of the discussions of the seminar was prepared and will be forwarded to all the authorities concerned in 1982.

The conclusions of the seminar should assist the Commission and the Member States to define their policies as regards the vocational rehabilitation of handicapped people as well as serving as a guide for responsible bodies regarding the most appropriate rehabilitation methods to be applied.

V. PILOT SCHEMES AND PREPARATORY STUDIES

- Interest in this field has been growing for some years now and 1981 saw the volume of applications (4.56 million ECU) exceed the appropriations available (3.54 million ECU) for the first time. Some of the applications received in 1981 and accorded priority classification were therefore put before the Social Fund Committee in July 1981 as possible candidates for assistance from the 1982 budget.
- 2. A small proportion of the funds available were set aside to finance the Commission's efforts to devise a method of evaluating training programmes financed by the Fund as contributions towards the development of local economic potential.
- 3. Annex XVIII gives a list of preparatory studies and pilot schemes, broken down by field of intervention and indicating the nature of the study or schemes, the name of the promoter and the amount approved.

The basic aspects of the studies and pilot schemes approved in 1981 may be summarised as follows:

- (a) in the migrants field, an experimental scheme was aimed at training group leaders to work on the establishment of new activities designed to help migrant workers to return to their home country;
- (b) The two main aims of schemes for young people were: to train young unemployed people either to create jobs for themselves or to manage small businesses; to train specialised technicians in trades with good job prospects.
- (c) As regards women, a scheme involved the application of techniques used in other sectors to the training of adult women in rural areas with a view to specialised independent jobs in agriculture.

- (d) In the regions field, three schemes were aimed at contributing to the development of backward areas via the training of local development officers, the training of unemployed adults with a view to helping them find jobs in an assisted area and the training of shopkeepers in modern management techniques designed to prevent closure of their businesses, likewise in an assisted area.
- (e) In the field of technical progress, one scheme involved a training programme to assist firms in adapting to new technologies, a second related to the training of unemployed mature engineers in computer-aided design and manufacture technology, whilst a third entailed the training of operators as instructors for new entrants to the data-processing profession.
- (f) A further two schemes were approved in this field one relating to the training of highly qualified maintenance technicians and the other to the training of supervisory staff for the meat industries.
- (g) Four projects were approved in the field of small and medium-sized firms. Two involved training in management techniques for the heads or managers of firms, whilst the other two involved training with a view to the creation or management of non-traditional small businesses.
- (h) Finally, in recognition of the International Year of the Disabled the Commission accorded priority approval to one preparatory study and six pilot schemes for the handicapped. The study entailed a review of vocational training activities for handicapped adult workers in specialised centres in France in 1980.

The goals of the pilot schemes were as follows: to train staff whose role would be to promote greater stability of employment for the mentally handicapped; to train advisory staff with a view to eliminating barriers to the employment of handicapped people in firms; to test specific possibilities for the employment of handicapped people using telematics; to test a guidance and help service aimed at facilitating the integration into open employment of handicapped people requiring long-term assistance.

VI. REGIONAL IMPACT OF THE SOCIAL FUND

As specified in Chapter IV.6 Social Fund assistance approved in 1981 for programmes in regions eligible for assistance from the European Regional Development Fund amounted to 434 million ECU. With the addition of approvals in other fields of intervention, total Social Fund assistance for these regions amounted to 873.98 million ECU in 1981. Of this amount 434.57 million ECU, or 43.5% of Fund commitments were allocated to operations in the absolute priority regions.

A breakdown by field of intervention for each of the six absolute priority regions is given in Annex VIII.l.

These regions - listed in Council Regulations (EEC) Nos 2895/77 of 20.12.1977 and (EEC) 1989/81 of 13.7.1981 - are in a special position compared with the other ERDF regions. First priority is accorded to operations to be carried out in these regions regardless of category, in accordance with the guidelines on certain fields of intervention (in particular "regions" and "young people").

This demonstrates the importance - reflected in both rules and management procedures - ascribed by the Fund to the problems of these regions. The following table shows the amounts approved for these regions each year.

Financial	Total	%	Total approvals for absolute priority regions	%
year	approvals	change		change
1979 1980 1981	774.45 1,014.93 996.17	+31.05 - 1.84	299 . 10 335.15 434.57	- +12,05 +29,66

The list is drawn up pursuant to Article 8(3) of Decision 71/66/EEC which establishes the principle of a higher rate of intervention for these regions. The following regions were listed in 1981: Greenland, French Overseas Departments, Ireland, Northern Ireland, the Mezzogiorno and Greece.

An effort was made in 1981 to redress the situation of these regions, which had deteriorated in relation to the others. Accordingly, commitments entered into for these regions rose by nearly 30% compared with the previous financial year. In 1980, however, the increase in appropriations was out of step with the increase in total commitments (about 12% against 31%).

The increase in appropriations committed in absolute priority regions actually corresponded to an overall cut in real terms in 1980 if account is taken of the increase in prices, which is traditionally higher in these regions than elsewhere.

It is worth noting that this decline had been largely due to a fall-off in applications for assistance. This was true in particular of applications for the Mezzogiorno and Greenland in 1980.

The average per capita aid in the six absolute priority regions decreased from 42 ECU in 1980 to 37 ECU in 1981 (Table II). This reduction results from the inclusion of Greece in the list of absolute priority regions.

Detailed information on the other regions

The fact that Social Fund assistance is mainly allocated to very large-scale programmes makes it difficult to compile detailed information regarding the impact on individual regions (apart from absolute priority regions). It is difficult to break down the statistics by region in these cases.

The Commission has decided to rectify this state of affairs and is gradually introducing a computerised system of regional information for all Community funds. Preliminary work begun in 1981 is under way.

Field of intervention	: Absolute priority regions		Other ERDF regions		Other Community regions		TOTAL
	million ECU	Z	million ECU	%	million ECU	U R	million ECU
Agriculture	2.12	37.3	2.00	35.2	1.57	27.5	5.69
Textiles	6.53	42.2	6.14	39.7	2.81	18.1	15.48
Young people	95.75	25.6	223.56	59.9	54.07	14.5	373.3 8
Migrants	3 ,96	13.0	7.64	25.0	18.95	62.0	30.55
Women .	2.03	9.0	11.40	50.3	9.23	40.7	22.66
Regions	291.03	68.9	131.33	31.1	0.00	-	422.36
Technical progress	4.09	12.7	11.27	35.1	16.78	52.2	32.14
Groups of firms	0.05	0.6	1.98	24.4	6.08	75.0	8. 1 1
Handicapped	29.01	32.3	44.09	49.1	16.68	18.6	89.78
CONTRACTOR OF THE PROPERTY OF	And the second s		- P- and All Control of the All		are well distributions of the second		7.01
TOTAL	434.57	43.5	439.41	43.9	126.17	12.5	1000.15

- 66 -

TABLE]

COMMITMENTS 1981

Aid per head of working population, by region

Region	Active population ('900s)	Commitments (m ECU)	Aid per capita (ECU)
Greenland French overseas	approx. 25	7,41	296,4
departments	291	28.91	99,4
Greece	3,608	29.87	8.3
Ireland	1,208	105,68	87 . 5
Mezzogiorno	5 , 975	209,80	35.1
Northern I Ireland	634	52,90	83,4
TOTAL	11,741	434,57	37.0

Source:

For Greece: Eurostat, "Labour Force Sample Survey - Estimates 1981"

For Northern Ireland: Department of Manpower Services statistics - 1981

For Ireland: Eurostat statistics - 1980

For the Mezzogiorno: Eurostat, "Labour Force Sample Survey - 1979"

For Greenland: "Programmes - The Regional development programmes 17"

(1978 figures)

For French Overseas Departments: "Statistical Yearbook of France - 1978"

(1967 figures)

VII. EUROPEAN SOCIAL FUND COMMITTEE

In the course of 1981, as in previous years, the European Social Fund Committee, an advisory body made up of representatives of governments, trade unions and employers set up by the Treaty, continued to give valuable assistance to the Commission.

The Committee met in plenary session three times in 1981 to consider:

- two sets of applications for assistance from the Fund;
- draft guidelines drawn up by the Commission for the management of the European Social Fund for the period 1982-1984;
- draft budget for 1982.

ANNEXES

Ţ. DEVELOPMENT OF THE EMPLOYMENT SITUATION 1974-81

1. Major economic variables

Annual averages (1000s)

	1974		1975		1976		1977		1978		1979		1980	(1)	1981 (1)
I. Civilian employment	102.741		101.619	(2) - 1,10	101.525	(2) - 0,03	102,028	(2) • 0,40	102,552	(2) • 0,51	103,421	(2) - 0,ట	n.a.	(2)	n.a	(2)
II.Unemployment	3.057		4.612	∘50,4	5,239	-13,6	5.738	• 9,5	5.973	- 4,1	6.060	- 1,5	6.65	•12,3	e , \$65	-31,&
III. Civilian work- ing population (1 + II)	105.808		106, 231	- 0,40	106.764	0,50	107.752	÷ 0,93	108,525	- 0,71	109.481	• 0,83	110.405	• û,S4	n.a.	
IV. Inactive and others (III)	151.973		152,177	• 0,13	152.040	- 0, 10	151.505	. 0,30	151.257	- 0,15	150.954	. 0,20	150.878	- 0,05	ņ.a.	
V.Total population (III + IV) /I. Gross Domestic	257.781		258.408	• 0 ,24	258, 804	- 0,15	259.287	• 0,1:	259.782	∘ 0,20	260.435	• 0,25	261.264	- 0.35	n∴a.	
Product (a)		1,7		- 1,5		- 4,9		- 2,8		- 3,2		• 3,3	,	a 1,4		- 0,5
/II.Unemployment rate VIII.Activity rate	2.9 L		4,3 %		4,9 Z		5,3 %		5,5 🕏		5,5 💈		C6,2 I		8,1 %	
Overall Men Women	42,0 56,2 28, 5		42,0 55,9 28,9		\$2,2 55,9 29,3		42,5 55,8 29,9		\$2 .7 55.8 30,2		42,9 55,7 30,8		43,1 55,7 31,1		n.a. n.a. n.a.	-
IX. Productivity per worker(a)	, ,,,,	· 2,8		- 1,2		- 9,3	h	£ 2,5		- 2,8		+ 4, 0		• 1,3		. 2,3
					·								, N.,	÷,		

Source : Eurostat "Employment and Unemployment" 1980 and 3/1982 (a) European Economy.

n.a. = not available

(1) Provisional figures on Eurostat estimates.(2) Year-on-year changes are given in %.

I.2 SHARE OF UNDER-25s IN TOTAL UNEMPLOYMENT (%)

Situation at end October 1981

COUNTRY	FEMALE	MALE	TOTAL
BELGIUM	42.4	39.8	41.3
DENMARK	37.8	25.7	31.0
GERMANY (1)	31.8	27.9	29.8
FRANCE	52.9	40.3	46.9
IRELAND	39.6	23.8	27.5
ITALY	61.3	46.7	53.8
LUXEMBOURG	65.6	39.8	51.8
NETHERLANDS	65.7	38.3	47.4
UNITED KINGDOM	54.3	34.0	40.0
COMMUNITY (EUR-9)	51.3	37.0	43.1
·.			
			La Company

(1) Situation at end September.

Source: Eurostat, "Employment and Unemployment", 3-1982 - April 1982.

1.3 UNEMPLOYMENT RATES IN THE MEMBER STATES

(in %)

The state of the s	Angelon (1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1	1979	Tag-ra si fare V _e cess		1980	ir Tilgyyrinani, pilynari yny ar	er werk I f i Mikinger a Mikinger a Miking	1981	en e
COUNTRY	W	М	T	W	М	Τ	W	М	Τ
Belgium	14.5	5.2	8.7	15.5	5.7	9.4	7.9	17.7	11.6
Denmark	5.9	4.8	5.3	6.3	6.0	6.2	8.7	7.8	8.3
Germany	4.6	2.6	3.4	4.6	2.7	3.4	4.1	6.1	4.9
France	8.1	4,6	6.0	8.9	4.8	6.4	6.3	10.2	7.8
Ireland	6.1	8.0	7.4	7.1	8.8	8.3	11.1	8.7	10.5
Italy	9.8	6.3	7.5	10.8	6.5	8.0	7.1	12.4	8.9
Luxembourg	1.1	0.5	0.7	1.2	0.5	0.7	0.7	1.5	1.0
Netherlands	5.0	3.7	4.1	5.5	4.5	4.8	7.3	7.6	7.4
United Kingdom	4.1	6.1	5.3	5.4	7.8	6.9	12.3	7.7	10.5
Greece	1.3	8.0	0.9	1.5	0.9	1.1	1.1	1.6	1.2
Community (EUR-10)	6.5	4.8	5.4	7.2	5.3	6.0	7.3	8.9	7. 9

Source: Eurostat "Employment and Unemployment" April 1982.

1.1 BUDGETARY RESOURCES AVAILABLE FOR 1981

Commitment appropriations

por 1000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0			-		million ECU
	Budget nomenclature	Appropriations entered in 1981 budget	Appropriations released for re-use from 1980 x)	Transfer of appropriations (+ or -)	TOTAL
5000 5001 5010 5011 5020 5030 5050	Agriculture Textiles Young people - training Young people - employment Handicapped persons Migrant workers Women	5.00 13.00 264.00 108.00 - 30.00 22.00	2.40 4.44 36.98 10.23 - 0.43 3.50	- 0.70 - + 0.70	7.40 17.44 300.26 118.23 - 31.13 25.50
50		442,00	57.98	0.00	499.98
5100 5101 5102 5110 5120	Regions Groups of firms Technical progress Handicapped persons Industrial conversion	395.00 8.00 25.00 90.00 token entry	71.22 1.12 10.05 4.80	- 0.33 -	466.22 9.12 35.05 94.47
51		518.00	87.19	- 0.33	604.85
5200	Pilot schemes	3.00	0.21	÷ 0.33	3.54
50 - 52	TOTAL	963.00	145.38	0.00	1108.38

x) Includes carry-overs and allowing for parity changes.

11.2 BUDGETARY RESOURCES AVAILABLE FOR 1981

Payment appropriations

Budge	t nomenclature	Approps. entered in 1981 budget	Automatic carry-overs	Transfer of approps. (+ or -)	TOTAL
5000 5001 5010 5011 5020 5030 5050	Agriculture Textiles Young people - training Young people - employment Handicapped persons Migrant workers Women	5.00 6.00 172.20 69.60 1.00 21.00	0.00 1.71 22.38 21.58 0.11 3.94	+ 2.00 - 0.80 - 9.00 - 14.00 - 6.20	7.00 7.71 193.78 82.18 1.00 35.11 9.74
50		286.80	49.72	0.00	336.52
5100 5101 5102 5110 5120	Regions Groups of firms Technical progress Handicapped persons Industrial conversion	269.20 3.00 14.60 44.80	139.42 5.00 2.59	- 15.00 - + 15.00	393.62 3.00 19.60 62.39
51		331.60	147.01	0.00	478.51
5200	Pilot schemes	2.00	1.95	O4	3.95
50 - 52	TCTAL	620.40	198.68	0.00	819.08

III.1 UTILISATION OF BUDGETARY RESOURCES FOR 1981

Commitment appropriations

I I	Budget nomenclature	Total available for 1981	Commitments made in 1981	Utilisation rate (%)	Commitment approps. available on 51.12.1981
5000 5001	Agriculture Textiles	7,40 17,44	5.67 15.11	76.62 86.64	1,73 2,33
5010	Young people - training	300.28	269.79	89.85	30.49
5011	Young people - employment	118.23	104.00	87.96	14.23
5020	Handicapped persons	65	- Andrews	L-	
5030	Migrant workers	31.13	30.60	98.30	0.53
5050	Women	25.50	22.63	88.75	2.87
			NOTE TO A CONTRACT OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROP		
50		499.98	447.80	89.56	52.19
5100 5101 5102 5.10 5120	Regions Groups of firms Technical progress Handicapped persons Industrial conversion	466.22 9.12 35.05 94.47 token entry	416.28 8.11 31.87 88.89	89.29 88.93 90.93 94.09	49.94 1.01 3.18 5.58
51		604.86	545.15	90.13	59.71
5200	Pilot schemes	3.54	3.22.	90.96	0.32
50 - 52	TOTAL	1108.38	996.17 (1)	89.88	112.22

⁽¹⁾ Differences in the figures for amounts committed in the various tables are accounted for by the use of the conversion rate in effect on 31.12.1981 in the non-budgetary tables.

111.2 UTILISATION OF BUDGETARY RESOURCES FOR 1981

Payment appropriations

million ECU

76

THE RESERVE THE PERSON OF THE	THE CHARLES AND ADDRESS OF THE CHARLES THE CHARLES AND ADDRESS OF THE CHARL	1	*	£	A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR	Ilon ECU
Budge	t nomenclature	Approps. available for 1981	Amounts paid in 1981	%	Appropriations cancelled	Approps. available on 31.12.1981
	*Land				·	
5000 5001	Agriculture Textiles	7.00 7.71	6.52 7.69	93 . 14 99 . 74		0.48 0.02
5010	Young people - training	193.78	193.54	99.87	940 440	0.24
501 1	Young people - employment	82.18	82.09	99.90		0.09
5020	Handicapped persons	1.00	0.30	30.04	22	0.70
5030	Migrant workers	35.11	34.92	99,48		0.18
5050	Women	9.74	9.70	99.61	- Country and	0.04
	T A CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACT	E Section 2017 Her Trades	July 4 T. C. Constant		ACC-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-	
50		336.52	334.77	99.47	On the second se	1.75
5100 5101 5102	Regions Groups of firms Technical progress	393,62 3,00 19,60	324.42 2.99 19.56	82,42 99,67 99,80		69.20 0.01 0.04
5110	Handicapped persons	62.39	62.38	99.98	and the state of t	0.01
5120	Industrial conversion	Age Colong State Colon C	n deligante con esta deligante c	-	d d	e
S. A.	TO THE PARTY AND	478.61	409.35	85.53	44	69.26
5200	Pilot schemes	3.95	1.73	43.88	Care Care Care Care Care Care Care Care	2.22 (2)
50 - 52	TOTAL	819.08	745.85 (1)	91.06	~	73.23 (2)

⁽¹⁾ Differences in the figures for amounts paid in the various tables are accounted for by the use of the conversion rate in effect on 31,12,1981 in the non-budgetary tables.

⁽²⁾ Of which 0.22 million ECU were cancelled.

III,3 UTILISATION OF PAYMENT APPROPRIATIONS

Breakdown by payment appropriations for the year and amounts carried over

	Budget nomenclature		s. for		Paymo	ents	·	** ***********************************				f approp		ions	
	ouget nomenciature	Provided for in	Ayail-	made		carrie	l over	cancel	lec	Amo	unt	Paid		Cancel	led
		budget	1981	absolut	3 %	absolut	9/2	abs.	(;/ /0	origin	final	absolute	1/3	abs,	12
5000 5001	Agriculture Textiles	5.00	7,00 6,00	6.52 5.98	93.2 99.7		6.8 0.3	- 7	1 1	- 1.71	- 1,71	 1-71	_ 100	material extrema Autority 64	
5010	Young people - training	172.20	171.40	171.16	99.9	0.24	0.01	-	-	22.38	22,38	22.38	100	_	-
5011	Young people - employment	69.60	60.60	60.51	99.9	0.09	0.01	-	-	21.58	21.58	21.58	100	-	-
5020	Handicapped persons	1.00	1.00	0.30	30.0	0.70	70.0				••	-	-	-	-
5030 ·	Migrant workers	21.00	35.00	34.82	99.5	0.18	0.5	-	-	0.11	0.11	0.11	100	-	-
5050	Women	12.00	5.80	5.76	99.3	0.04	0.7	o	-	3.94	3.94	3.94	100	-	-
50	жений базынага поменто поменто учен да да да да да на на населения да да на населения да да населения да да д	286.80	226.80	285.05	99.4	1.75	0.6	-		49. 7 2	49.72	49.72	100	and the second s	-
5100 5101 5102 5110 5120	Regions Groups of firms Technical progress Handicapped persons Industrial conversion	269.20 3.00 14.60 44.80	3.00 14.60	9	99.7 99.8	0.01	27.2	;m		139.42 - 5.00 2.59	- 5 . 00		1.00	di d	0.
2750	industrial conversion	and the second						-							
51		331.60	331.60	262.35	79.1	69.25	20.9	-	-	147.01	147.01	147.01	100	-	-
5200	Pilot schemes	2.00	2.00		-	2.00	100.		-	1.95	1.95	1.73	38.7	0.22	11.3
50 - 52	-mint Describe the American American American State (September 1995) and the American State State Supposed State Supposed State State State Supposed State S	620.40	620.40	547.40	68.2	73.01	11.8	-	-	198.63	198.68	198.46	100	0.22	-

ARNEN - EUPOPEAN SOCIAL FORD APPROPRIATIONS

INCOMOGNA BY CONSTITUTE YOUR CE ANALYTIS HENDERED TO BE PAID AT 31 DECEMBER 1961

	Southerndary to be paid at the close of financial year 1981	ĝ,					15.359,193,63	- Security	THE PERSON NAMED AND ADDRESS OF THE PERSON NAMED AND ADDRESS O	24.671.649,39	40.260.843.02	cong. jeru	arrest Ethys, Iggilleth, Logy, P.C.		.06.659.765.13		143.749.416.12	\$ 25,131,604,088
DE LEVE	1	EI - 010		· 			Ц							1				
100		1				ر سیرے حصوبیہ	4.243.761,17			13.496.919,49	17,742.650,66				158.654.569.38		90.799.322,18	259.483.693.56
Punice (a) Vene	Payments Tade	12					1.424.010,29			1.614.556,76	3.038.567,05				71.106.414,37		13.196.685,10	AL 401,099,42
Appendix	Comments for the firstend year						5.667.771,46			19.113.476,25	20.781.247,71	•			269.790.983.75		103.996.007,26	101 286 901 01
Amounts pursuada		15 - 6 40 9)			250,957,13 250,626,35	857.130,79 467.597,52 5.645.597,52	11.24532,46	137,245,34	1,264,712,65	11.372.725,90	22.518.352,36		403.969.72 164.365.62 4.577.875.06 22.555.734	53.033.311,36	207.975.195.75	17.509.149,50	52.930.093,94	92 000 300 070
10000	replying spring attons ferundle	8				747.585.01	147.565.01		3.622.677.67	3.622.677,67	4.370.262,68			- 1	26.545.454.26	7.043.893,59	7.043.893,59	4 4 4 4
Complete		3			22.475.057.50 2.475.057.50 3.755.272.75	3.33.136.44 495.550.63 362.5~2.69 352.708,24	11.149.199,46	27.28.28.25.25.25.25.25.25.25.25.25.25.25.25.25.		6.554.555.39	17.733.72*.65		1.779.522,22 411.230,23 119.757,29 12.655,26 12.655,956	}	26.209.782,64	321.467,02	\$20,554,056	
	Adjustment of failures of compression to kel there-	7			1		- 609.699,93	8.618,45 - 17.977,64 - 109.026,54 - 51.949,00		- 516,000,69	+ 1.625.90€,EO		19.767.28 31.999.03 14.424.15 662.035.95 16.97.366.17	- 2.399.516.97	- 10 -07 050 29	1.644.335.97	3.171.775,85	of ord Real to
	Payments such	. 9			7.708.84	1.172.664,08 4.380,72 11.261.71 3.460.104,41	3.095,304,98	62.870.38 114.361	2,276,167,55	6.073.446.75	21.158.751,73		1.162.660.24	57.345.847.67	122.434.050,31	17.340.928.74	6E.896.031,91,	
	Amounts outstand- ing to be paid averal of Thurstal year	\$			1.246.176.58	7.207.251,28 502.347,27 1.261.731,60 8,425.646,44 7.154.955,69	38.547.421,62	264.037,65 708.376,41 1.687.731.36 3.513.136,21 86.051	5.011.197.35 3.569.542.00 11.515.284.14	25.465.356,60	57.416.808,42		1,799,010,10 8,66,776,98 256,570,26 10,828,533,41 50,861,681,59	115.864.629,67	393.571.543,67	36-833.950,23	132.386.311,26	
	Crestment firencial year	,			1975 1976 aut. 1977	1977 aut. 1973 1976 1979 1920		1975 1975 242, 1977 1977	1978 1979 1950				1975 1976 3ut. 1977 1977 aul. 1978	1979		1950		
	Pecaling	•	OWTR 50 - SCHAL PRO POSCHINE IN ID WOOD 4 G GOVER IN THOSE OF I PERSON 1931	Aid to the agricultifical and	Aid to the epitochterial		Tat: 5000	פארוסל הפרוסל	-	. Betal 5001	TOTAL ART, 500	ordered functions removed	Auds in the field of woodstood fraining and geographical redulling		0105 170	Aid to promote Andlyment	1105 1704	65 451
	Ita	~			8								çő,			5011		
i	g.	**		Ħ								K						

			4									·	
1-1	2	3	 	5	6	7	· a	, ,	10	11	12	13	
502		Heanutes for handscapped persons	1975 1977 aut. 1978	233.007.56 1.580.708.21 7.214.51	300,662,32	- 2.567,91 - 3.962,82 - 79.36	230.444.65 1.159.576.86 7.135.15		216.504,21				
1	}	TOTAL ART. 502		1.820.930,28	300.662,32	6.605,09	1.397-155,66	-	116.504,21	-		- 1	116.504,21
503		M-asures for sigrant workers	1975 1976 1976 aut. 1977 1977 1978 1978 1979	316.179,53 1.332.651,21 5.101.105,20 5.085.614,51 7.746.855,38 4.543.015,09 15.619.823,80	153.003,53 66.829,73 658.920,00 4.098.330,50 2.105.215.35 9.187.431.69 11.028.557,64	. 56.437.49 • 35.618.17 • 62.570.95 • 46.449.06	310.255,26 765,260,41 523,323,62 1.292,953,63 170.433,67 397.357,63 418.279,24	93.014,21	387,493,04 4,567,369,34 3,169,336,65 3,-17,520,02 2,265,621,17 6,265,524,64 16,855,434,13				
		TOTAL ART. 503		20.246.846,18	27.299.268.88	• 171.931.56	4.077.933,66	93.014,21	38.948.560,99	30.596.120,72	7.625.723.02	22.970.357,70.	61.918.958.65
505		Measures for vonen	1978 1979 1980	4.747.685.67 8.084.431.50 13.805.102.46	144.711.52 1.705.079,13 2.533.844,11	 90.210,92 	1.528.57£,06 729.159,81	3.381.303,84	2.890.604,82 5.742.403.48 8.051.519,25				:
		TOTAL ART. 505		26.637.219,63	4.381.634.76	• 67,984,39	2.257.757.87	3.351.303,84	16.684.527.55	22.630.929.63	5.319.163,89	17.311.765.7-	33.596.293,25
		NOTAL CHAPTER 50	1975 1976 aut. 1977 1977 aut. 1978 1978 1978	3.878,381,42 5.627.015,24 11.192.510.94 36.815,265,62 9.475,356,00 67.428.264,58 184.623.003,64 363.003,623,20		- 115.589,35 - 967.991.91	2.884.842,56 4.203.497,57 5.034.157,63 21.629.7-8.09 1.455.000,55 11.573.538,44 5.181.744,56	\$1, \$33.93E, 60	761.116.31 1.149.869.23 5.905.355.01 10.786.233.95 3.736.303.65 33.215.721.56 84.302.749.15 195.331.704.71				
]]				662.079.659,64	234.480.449.91	- 14.971.426.63	52.000.799,70	41.433,938,60	339.193.044,60	447.795.289.09	100.286.55* 53	3-7.508.735.66	666.701.7Ep.46
510		OWPIES 51 SOCIAL FUE DEPICTION USER AFFICE 5 OF COUPTIN DELISION OF 1 FIRSURY 1971 Seasures to improve the employment situation in certain regions, economic sectors adapting to tachnical progress or groups of undertakings										. (
	5100	Aids to improve the employment situation in certain regions	1975 1976 aut. 1977 1977 aut. 1978 1978 1979 1980	6.120.067,77 18.367.954,52 16.420.279,32 30.739.739,35 9.222.579,48 59.412.693,21 144.839.768,78 284.695.361.23	7.617,63 393.853,40 8.167,954,33 1.813.077,59 36.873.031,98 67.069,265,66 66.002.777,04	- 766.643,61	3.829.483,71 12.877.069.04 6.15.808.12 11.792.511.03 3.290.00.16 7.730.137.5- 6.932.307.84	51.115.775,16	2.149.552,93 5.274.542,44 6.643,974,13 10.105,698,57 3,664.227,94 21.331.644,99 64.551.652,59 159.390.104,33				
		Total 5100		579.818.443,66	160.327.577,63	- 20.107.217.25	55.076.077,74	51.115.773,16	273.191-797,85	416.278.742.75	144.091.629.51	272.187.113.24	545.378.911.22
	5101	Aid to improve the cm-loyment situation in Certain groups of undertakings	1976 3ut. 1977 1977 1978 1979 1980	216.205,41 6.183,74 974.355,95 29.784,45 519.621,88 2134.680,81	220.930,47 266.221,90 15-532,10	• 10.229,86 - 44,54 - 54.232,11 - 276,33 - 16.906,74 - 68.493,99	225 854,19 29,568,07	990.625,24	564,08 6.139,20 699.197,37 236.493,24 1.060.029,48				
1		Total 510l		3. 800. 839,24	502.664,47	- 129.723,90	255.302.26	990.625,24	2.002.4-3,37	E.107.950.39	2.457.657.64	5.620.282.75 ·	7.622.726.12

.

1	1 2	3	4	3	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	15	14
	5102	Aid to improve the employment situation in certain economic sectors adopting to technical progress	1975 1976 aut. 1977 1977 aut. 1978 1978 1979	311.997,36 2.501.630,45 5.629.709,59 2.085.158,11 2.613.686,66 12.081.324,60 4.639.633,04	404.194.77 1.791.775.13 172.834.96 67.940.53 1.317.977.14 1.539.677.44 3.353.215.15	- 306.813,46 - 16.213,99 - 38.317,89 - 727.347,06 - 158.895,61	177.673,20 3.318.721,03 135.710,66 804.165,35 309.215,30 1.786.210.54 269.987,71	2.949.012.58	130.086,03 705.069,87 3.595.410.64 1-091-973.61 2.198.212.86 8.249.769,86 2.651.272.28 8.962.524,29				
		Total 5102 .		45.514.985.84		- 1.852.244,62	b.821.683.79	2,949.012,58	27.584.459,64	31.872.538.45	10.885.993,37	20.986.545.08	. ₩2.571.05±.
		TOTAL ART. 510		629.614.265,74	189.507.847,52	- 22.119.155,56	60.153.123.79	35.055.410.98	302.778.700,89	456.259.231,59	157.465.290,52	298.793.941.07	601.572.541.
5 11		Measures for handicapped persons	1975 1976 aut. 1977 1977 aut. 1978 1978 1979 1980	2.133.71 1.734.600,33 48.517.66 112.945,59 63.194,47 7.226.418.66 25.673.397.79 49.531.261.28	4.196.652,41 13.792.464,42 12.031.534,02		2.110,23 1.721.077.86 46.531,30 160.769,74 62.1315.65 942.312.39 952,323,88	3.242.451,79	1.829,32 7.471,34 20.287,19 1.910.936,23 10.341.088,98 33.597.336,19				
		TOTAL ART. 511		84.512.769.79	50.020.670,85	- 1.543.238,87	3.827.459.05	3.242.451.79	45.878.949,23	88.889.172,50	32.359.257,38	56-529,915,18	102,405.55
		TOTAL SOAPTER \$1	1975 1976 aut. 1977 1977 aut. 1978 1978 1979	6.494.193.84 22.820.593.71 22.304.940.61 33.9:2.203.30 11.919.460.83 88.750.220.92 175.672.621.49	8.561.689.76 1.881.016,42 42.387.661.53 82.667.649,42	- 1.073.95P.65 - 666.226.35	4.009.267.15 16.142.727.12 6.742.050.03 12.597.744.12 3.661.757.11 10.496.158.94 8.174.561.43	55.297.862 . 77	2.279.635,96 5.980.216,39 10.247.553.55 11.984.541.09 5.882.727,99 31.492.370,66 77.780.707,39 203.010.094.29				
				714.127.035,53		- 23-662.424,43	53.98c.562.84	38.297.862,77	348.657.650,12	545,148,404,09		355.323.856,25	
		ONAPTER 52 - SOLIAL TIME PILOT SOCIETS AND PREPARATORY STUDIES	1977 1978 1979 1950	35.714.81 192.257.85 1.267.427.54 2.124.602.22	18.753,36 32.459,56 207.369,66 645.286,6;	- 2.571.59 - 22.929.51	29.466,97 357,37 -	37.7kz,ho	35.403,18 156.869,33 1.036.628,37 1.396.715,10		***************************************		
		TOTAL CHAPTER 52	0.43.44.74	3.670.002,42	904.369,20	72.450,50	29.824.34	37.742,40	2.625.615,98	5.222.709,78	828.481.57		
	1	GANCO TOTAL	1975 1976 4ut. 1977 1977 1978 1978 1978 1978	10.312.575,26 28.447.608,95 33.497.501,35 70.613.181,73 21.394.658,63 156.370.743,35 361.563.052.67 717.477.176,25	155.640.76 564.815.93 2-323.037.45 12.009.731.76 5.990.673.50 62.940.439.97	! 222.069,53	£.894.109,70 20.351.219,69 13.852.207,71 34.355.961,18 51.19-76.766 22.070.334,65 13.356.603.29	99.769.543,77	3.040.755.27 7.130.055.62 16.157.708.36 22.808.179.25 9.621.031.84 64.864.931.55 165.170.084.91				•
	1	!	1,00	1.399.876.700,59		- 35.706.301,56	136.611.206,861	39.769.543.77	690.476.510.90	975.166.402,96	290.939.582,84	705.226.820.12	1,395.703.131.5
	1	<u> </u>	1===									<u> </u>	

million ECU

THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY O			REILION ECO				
Budget no	menclature	Appropriations available	Amount requested	Shortfall (%)			
5000 5001 5010 5011 5020 5030 5050	Agriculture Textiles Young people - training Young people - employment Handicapped persons Migrant Workers Women	7.40 17.44 300.28 118.23 - 31.13 25.50	17.66 35.52 524.98 167.31 - 188.93 105.46	138.6 103.7 74.8 41.5 506.9 313.6			
50 ⁻		499.98	1039.86	108.0			
5100 5101 5102 5110 5120	Regions Groups of firms Technical progress Handicapped persons Industrial conversion	466.22 9.12 35.05 94.47	660.50 19.05 53.67 151.13	41.7 108.9 53.1 60.0			
51		604.86	884.35	46.2			
5200	Pilot schemes	3.54	4.55	28.5			
50 - 52	TOTAL	1108.38	1928.76	74.0			

AMOUNTS REQUESTED AND REFUSED - 1981

By budget item

million ECU

			3		Amour	nts refused		
Budge	et nomenclature	Amounts requested	Amounts approved	non- acceptable	non- eligible	non- priority	Weighted reduction	TOTAL
5000 5001	Agriculture Textiles	17.66 35.52	5.69 15.48		<u>-</u>	0.24 3.10	11.73 16.94	11.97 20.64
5010 5011	Young people - training Young people - employmen	524.98 167.30	269.72 103.67	~	0.24 0.21	89.09 37.84	165.93 25.59	255.26 63.64
5020	Handicapped persons	æ		ċ =	ā~	6 -		<u>~</u>
5030	Migrant workers	188.94	30.55	- ·	~-	50.92	107.48	158.39
505 0	Women	105.46	22.66	- ÷	0.37	1.01	81.41	82.79
50		1039.86	447.77	=	0.82	182.20	409;08	592.09
5100 5101 5102	Regions Groups of firms Technical progress	660.50 19.05 53.67	422.36 8.11 32.14	0.30	0.75 0.03	14.34 6.81 11.18	222.75 4.13 10.33	238.14 10.94 21.54
5110	Handicapped persons	151.12	89.77	, -	-	3.39	57.95	61.34
5120	Industrial conversion	04	••	~	m	-	-	0=
51		884.34	552.38	0.30	0.78	35.72	295.16	331.96
5200	Pilot schemes	4.55	3.52	-		0.49	-	1.04 ×)
50 ~ 52	TOTAL	1928.76	1003.67	0.30	1.60	218.41	704.24	925.09

X) The difference of 0.54 million ECU is accounted for by the applications rejected due to lack of funds.

By Member State

			Amounts	refused		years and the second
Amounts requested	Amounts approved	non-acceptable	non-eligible	non-priority	Weighted reduction	TOTAL
40.72	22.73	~		4.13	13.86	17.99
48.34	24.40		0,48	0.54	22.92	23.94
343.45	73.69	-	0.39	9.37	260.00	269.76
326.40	141.12	-	0.01	2.02	183.25	185.29
30.25	29.87	-	0.38	es,		0.38
106.33	105.68	-	_	0.27	0.38	0.65
465.80	340.77	0.30	0.35	28.90	95.48	125.03
1.18	0.57	— ·	-	0"	0.62	0.62
53.41	12.68	44		21.87	18.85	40.72
508.33	248.64	•	pu pu	150.82	108.86	259.68
1 02/ 21	1 000 15	0.20	1 61	217 02	70// 22	924.06
	40.72 48.34 343.45 326.40 30.25 106.33 465.80 1.18 53.41	requested approved 40.72 22.73 48.34 24.40 343.45 73.69 326.40 141.12 30.25 29.87 106.33 105.68 465.80 340.77 1.18 0.57 53.41 12.68 508.33 248.64	requested approved non-acceptable 40.72 22.73 - 48.34 24.40 - 343.45 73.69 - 326.40 141.12 - 30.25 29.87 - 106.33 105.68 - 465.80 340.77 0.30 1.18 0.57 - 53.41 12.68 - 508.33 248.64 -	Amounts requested Amounts approved non-acceptable non-eligible 40.72 22.73 - - 48.34 24.40 - 0.48 343.45 73.69 - 0.39 326.40 141.12 - 0.01 30.25 29.87 - 0.38 106.33 105.68 - - 465.80 340.77 0.30 0.35 1.18 0.57 - - 53.41 12.68 - - 508.33 248.64 - -	requested approved non-acceptable non-eligible non-priority 40.72 22.73 - - 4.13 48.34 24.40 - 0.48 0.54 343.45 73.69 - 0.39 9.37 326.40 141.12 - 0.01 2.02 30.25 29.87 - 0.38 - 106.33 105.68 - - 0.27 465.80 340.77 0.30 0.35 28.90 1.18 0.57 - - - 53.41 12.68 - - 21.87 508.33 248.64 - - 150.82	Amounts requested approved non-acceptable non-eligible non-priority weighted reduction 40.72 22.73 4.13 13.86 48.34 24.40 - 0.48 0.54 22.92 343.45 73.69 - 0.39 9.37 260.00 326.40 141.12 - 0.01 2.02 183.26 30.25 29.87 - 0.38 106.33 105.68 0.27 0.38 465.80 340.77 0.30 0.35 28.90 95.48 1.18 0.57 0.62 53.41 12.68 21.87 18.85 508.33 248.64 150.82 108.86

VI. APPLICATIONS FOR ASSISTANCE - 1981

1. By field of intervention and priority

million ECU Priorities Total nonhonnon-Budget nomenclature eligible requested priority accept-5 4 able 3 1 17.65 0.24 5000 Agriculture 17.42 35.52 5001 Textiles 3.10 20.14 12:28 524.93 0.24 89.09 5010 Young people - training 118.78 95.86 221.01 167.30 0.21 37.84 5011 Young people - employment 9.84 50.59 68.82 5020 Handicapped persons 188.94 5030 Migrant workers 50.92 138.02 105.45 0.37 1.01 5050 Women 17.05 87.02 1039.85 0.82 ΈŪ 182.20 321.25 245.75 289.83 660.51 0.75 0.30 5100 254.53 14.34 27.53 288.85 11.67 62.53 Regions 19.05 5101 6.81 12.24 Groups of firms 53.63 0.03 11.18 5102 Technical progress 28.69 13.78 151.12 3.39 Handicapped persons 5110 35.60 112.13 Industrial conversion 5120 884.35 0.78 0.30 51 35.72 254.53 365.39 27,53 137.58 62.53 4.55 Pilot scheme 0.49 5200 3.52 1928.75 1.60 0.30 218.41 254.53 50 - 52 TOTAL 690.16 383,33 352.36 27.53 100.0 0.1 11.3 88.6

⁾ The difference of 0.54 million ECU is accounted for by the applications rejected due to lack of funds.

VI. APPLICATIONS FOR ASSISTANCE - 1981

2. By region and sector

million ECU

ITEM	HEADING	Absolute priority regions	Other ERDF regions	Other Community regions	TOTAL
5000	Agriculture	3.31	6.91	7.44	17.66
5001	Textiles	7. 81	16.70	11.01	35.52
5010	Young people - training	91.44	284.20	149.34	524.98
5011	Young people - F3 employment F4	5.28 1.64	94.17 24.65	23.67 17.90	123.12 . 44.19
5030	Migrant workers	5.43	68.18	115.32	188.93
5050	Women	2.21	65.39	37.86	105.46
5100	Regions	296.90	363.32	0:28	660.50
5101	Firms	0.17	3.7 8	15.10	19.05
5102	Technical progress	5.10	19.25	29.32	53.67
5110	Handicapped	29.01	81.61	40.51	151.13
				746	
	TOTAL	448.30	1028.16	447.75	1924.21

1.476,46 = 76,73 %

VII. AMOUNTS COMMITTED - 1981

Breakdown by Member State and by budget item

million ECU United TOTALS Belgium Luxemb. Denmark Germany France Greece Ireland Italy Netherland Kingdom MECU MECU % ď, MECU % MECU % MECU MECU % MECU % MECU MECU MECU MECU % 5000 | Agriculture 2,3 1.90 0,13 33,4 2.84 43.9 0,82 5,83 . . . MA Textiles -0,24 1,6 0,21 1.4 1,53 9,9 0.69 9,35 60,4 3,48 15,48 150 22.3 Sin Young people - Young people - Young people - Sin Employment 0.8 2,42 0,9 11, 8 15, 22 233,72 2,13 22.63 8.4 31,81 30,54 55,61 20,6 0,28 1.84 0.7 107,24 39,8 12,00 7,59 11.5 7,3 29.76 0,27 41.2 :03,59 100 3,15 3.0 42.74 25.7 6.08 5,9 1.08 1,0 0.3 0.63 1.0 5020 Handicapped Migrant workers ≥0,54 0,31 1.0 10,24 33,5 6,50 21,3 5,2 30,55 1,8 0,33 1,1 0,35 9,48 31,0 1,21 4.0 1,59 5000 Women 3,4 0.78 13,28 3,77 16.6 22,65 3,02 13.3 0.87 0.45 0,49 2.2 3.8 100 50 - 15,98 3,57 10,03 2.2 11.1 49.64 74.52 10,6 15,55 3.5 82,13 18,3 34.8 347,76 38.93 0,55 0,1 4,52 155,90 1,0 5:00 Regions 4,10 8,45 1,0 2,0 13.9 422.35 16,99 54,90 2,8 49,87 11,5 212,44 50,3 58,53 100 4,0 13,0 11,94 5,14 1,2 5101 Groups of firms 0.36 4.4 7,37 90.9 0,39 8,11 100 4.5 Technical progress . 1,41 4,4 1,90 5,9 6,55 20,4 0,56 1.7 16,48 51,3 1,37 4.3 3,85 12,0 32,14 190 Handicapped 1,4 5,56 6,2 :.1,23 18,1 5,16 5,8 5,14 5,7 1,83 2,0 22,36 24,9 0,01 1,54 29,97 33.4 16.89 1,8 80.78 Ind. conversion 51 6,74 1.2 14,37 2,6 24,05 06.59 12.1 14.33 2,6 65.76 12,1 253,65 45,8 92.75 15.8 552,33 100 0,01 1,5 8,15 0.47 0,95 27.0 Pilot schemes 13.3 0.08 2.3 0.67 19.0 0.69 19,6 0.03 0.9 0,23 5,5 0,40 3,52 10-50 TOTAL 23, 19 2,3 4,49 2.4 74,64 141,78 14,1 30,57 105,72 10.5 341.01 34.0 0,56 0.1 12.67 3.1 249,05 1003,67

VIII.1 ALLOCATION OF ASSISTANCE APPROVED - 1981

Absolute priority regions

Region	Sector	Amount approved	Total amount approved per region
Greenland	Regions	7.41	7.41
French Cverseas Departments	Young people Handicapped Regions	0.31 28.48 0.12	28.91
Greece	Young people Migrants Regions Technical progress Handicapped	15.22 0.33 11.94 0.56 1.83	29.87
Ireland	Agriculture Textiles Young people Migrants Women Regions Handicapped	0.82 0.69 36.62 0.35 0.45 49.87 16.88	105.68
Mezzogiorno	Agriculture Textiles Young people Migrants Women Regions Groups of firms Technical progress Handicapped	1.30 5.70 12.74 2.96 1.59 177.68 0.04 3.52 4.27	209.80
Northern Ireland	Textiles Young people Regions Technical progress Handicapped	0.14 31.18 15.66 0.01 5.91	52.90
TOTAL		e and experience of the properties of the properties and the properties of the prope	434.57

REGION		unt approve year (m E0		Approvals as % of total amounts approved by financial year 1)				
	1979	1980	1981	1979	1980	1981		
Greenland	. 60	5.70	7.41	0.72	0.56	0.74		
French Overseas Departments	24.00	29.16	28.91	3.10	2.87	2.90		
Greece	and the state of t	No.	29.87		tues	3.00		
Ireland	58.60	82.50	105.68	L. C.	8,13	10.61		
Mezzogiorno	173.50	172.79	209.80	22 . 5	17.03	21.06		
Northern Ireland	37.40	45.00	52.90	4.83	4.43	(7)		
TOTAL	299.10	335.15	434.57	38.62	33.02	43.62		

1) Total amounts approved in 1979 : 774.45 million ECU

1980 : 1 014.93 million ECU

1981: 996.17 million ECU

VIII.3 ALLOCATION OF ASSISTANCE APPROVED, 1981

By region and sector

Item	Heading	Absolute priority regions	Other ERDF regions	Other Community regions	TOTAL	
5000	Agriculture	2.12	2.00	1.57	5.69	
5001	Textiles	6.53	6.14	2.81	15.48	
5010	Young people - training	88.83	141.97	38.92	269.72	
5011	Young people - employ- F3 ment F4	5.28 1.64	61.62 19.97	4.77 10.38	71.67 31.99	
5030	Migrants	3.96	7.64	18.95	30.55	
5050	Women	2.03	11.40	9.23	22.66	
5100	Regions	291.03	131.33	0.00	422.36	
5101	Firms	0.05	1.98	6.08	8.11	
5102	Technical progress	4.09	11.27	16.78	32.14	
5110	Handicapped	29.01	44.09	16.68	89.78	
•						
	TOTAL	434.57	439.41	126.17	1.000,15	
		873,98 =	87,38 %			

IX.1 COMMITMENTS 1973-1977

Breakdown by country of origin of promoters

million ECU

		سيالات اسمي ن يحمد ان شالان	millic	n u.a.			_						
Member State		s commi				committed	Percentages						
	operations to be carried out in							1973 1974 1975 1976 1977/8 19					
	19/3	13/4	13/0	<u> </u>	C.	<u> </u>		12/5	1 2/3	1 1771		1977	
Belgium	7.20	6.54	8.02	7.85	1.85	9.33	3.9	2.6	2.2	1.8	0.7	1.5	
Denmark	5.05	11.97	8.94	10.43	0.59	11.78	2.8	4.7	2.4	2.4	0.2	2.3	
Germany	19.94	27.93	41.73	44.42	15. 88	59.29	10.9	10.9	11.2	10.2	5.9	9.6	
France	32.19	49.95	73. 83	76.60	49.80	125.74	17.7	19.6	19.8	17.5	18.6	20.4	
Greece	-		-		-	~	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Ireland	9.79	16.87	22.57	31.67	19.63	46.97	5.4	6.6	6.1	7.2	7.3	7.6	
Italy	43.70	72.3 3	95.53	146.46	154.16	120.00	24.0	28.4	27.7	33.3	57.5	19.5	
Luxembourg	0.04	0.01	0.03	0.07	0.23	0.01	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	 -	
Netherlands	6.77	6.71	10.94	1 2.58	0.09	12.26	3.7	2.6	2.9	2.9	-	2.0	
United Kingdom	57.40	62.27	1 10.24	106.39	26.14	228.25	31.5	24.5	29.6	24.4	9.7	37.1	
TOTAL	182.08	254.5 8	371. 83	436.47	268.37	616.63	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	

IX.2 COMMITMENTS 1978-81

Breakdown by country of origin of promoters

Member State	Amo	ounts co	ommitted				Per	centage.	S	in i promine delle in i i pare su com	
	1978	1979	1980	1981		1978	1979	1980	1981		
Belgium Denmark Germany France Greece Ireland Italy Luxembourg Netherlands United Kingdom	44.41 233.10 0.23 9.81	14.70 52.88 134.82 - 58.13 281.23	19.43 107.96 194.96 - 79.69 327.15 0.93 18.30	24.40 73.69 141.12 29.87 105.68 340.77 0.57 12.68		2.0 2.5 10.1 15.2 - 7.8 41.0 - 1.7 19.7	2.1 1.9 6.8 17.4 - 7.5 36.3 0.1 2.5 25.4	2.9 1.9 10.6 19.2 - 7.9 32.3 0.1 1.8 23.3	2.3 2.4 7.4 14.1 3.0 10.6 34.1 0.1 1.3 24.9		
To the second se	CATATACATACATACA										
TOTAL	568.08	774.45	1014.22	1000.15		100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	:	

$\boldsymbol{\chi}$, payments by country and year of

COMMITMENT, 1973-1981

Momboss		million u	laaa				million ECU					
Member State	1973	1974	1975	1975	1977	1978	1979 (2)	1980 (3)	1981 (4)			
							•					
Belgium	4.23	4.70	5.23	5.93	8.83	6.20	9.88	7.53	4.97			
Denmark	4.66	11.79	8.49	9.71	12.05	12.26	13.21	13.36	10.57			
Germany	16.16	25.08	39.32	30.84	54.69	52.21	38.62	56.97	20.77			
France	26.60	43.33	57.04	59.54	103.47	71.29	111.40	113.89	24.40			
Greece	-	-	•	_	-	-	-	. -	6.64			
Ireland	8.68	13.04	16.56	25.91	44.29	33.67	44.65	45.42	48.36			
Italy.	32.48	60:10	72.58	114.64	150.32	167.40	143.74	127.89	7 4.73			
Luxembourg	-	0.01	0.04	0.04	0.07	0.19	0.44	0.07	-			
Netherlands	5.96	-5.51	7.74	9.36	10.43	6.32	11,/30	8.36	2.21			
United Kingdom	52.95	58.49	93.90	99.79	204.07	95.24	149.68	124.47	97.34			
TOTAL	151.72	222.05	300.90	355.76	588.22	444.78	522.92	497.96	28 9.99			

at the December 1978 rate. at the December 1979 rate. at the December 1980 rate. at the December 1981 rate.

XI - AMOUNTS PAID IN 1981 BY YEAR OF COMMITMENT

					y			million	ECU
Member State	1974	1975	1976	1977	1978	1979	1980	1931	TOTALS
Belgium	700 '	and and a second a	-	-	0.02	1.64	7.21	4.97	13.85
Denmark	es '	G. G	4	~	0.16	2.51	5.32	10.57	18.56
Germany	-	28 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	0.14	2.77	7.96	9.02	27.37	20.77	68.03
France		0.16	0.02	1.67	9.84	62.44	52.27	24.40	150.79
Greece	CAC CACAGORICA	- Control of the cont	-	6		emental Civiliana de Civiliana	e	6.64	6.64
Ireland	± • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	6	~	1.11	2.70	4.74	3.63	48.36	60.54
Italy	. September 1	50 20	0.01	6.70	43.51	32.28	54.73	74.73	211.95
Luxembourg	- C-	- + + Constitution		40	-	0.43	0.07	20	0.50
Netherlands	42 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		Ages	0.28	0.03	3.32.	8.41	2.21	14.25
United Kingdom	-	STATE OF THE STATE	0.39	1.48	2.26	55.24	35.33	97.34	192.05
	SALEQUE STYTZARS.		**************************************						redictions metres
TOTAL	COR	0.16	0.56	14.01	66.48	171.62	194.34	289.99	737.16 (1)

⁽¹⁾ December 1981 exchange rate

XII - AMOUNTS RELEASED FOR RE-USE IN 1981 (1) (from 1980)

POW WIND LISTED TO UP THE								•	n	million	ECU	(2)	
Item	5000	5001	5002	5010	5011	5030	5050	5100	5101	5102	5110	TOTAL	% of total committe by count
Belgium Denmark Germany France Greece Ireland Italy Luxembourg Netherlands United Kingdom	0.70 0.03 	0.58 - 1.21 - 0.17 1.21 - 0.15 0.20		1.54 0.91 0.35 3.75 - 3.72 4.04 - 1.17 10.91	0.15 1.41 0.43 5.16	0.01	0.31 1.76 0.97 - 0.38	0.34 0.19 5.75 - 6.09 21.01 - 1.41 14.68	0.41	0.10 - 1.62 - 0.77 - 0.37 0.02	1.48 0.60 - 0.07 - 0.32 0.82	2.53 1.81 4.49 13.93 - 11.39 27.60 - 3.35 32.34	2.5 9.3 4.2 7.2 14.3 8.4 -21.1 13.7
TOTAL	0.73	3.52		26.39	7.15	0,09	3.42	49.47	1.01	2.88	3.79	97.95	
% of total committed by budget item	4.7	19.1	786	9,3	6.6	0.2	15.3	11.7	38.11	12.6	4.3		9.7

Excluding item 5200 - Pilot Schemes. December 1981 exchange rate.

XIII - ADVANCES PAID IN 1981 AGAINST COMMITMENTS MADE FROM 1976 TO

1981 BY COUNTRY AND AS PERCENTAGES OF TOTAL PAYMENTS

	1

	1077/76	1070	1070	1000	1001	Total	% of total
MEMBER STATE	1977/76	1978	1979	1980	1981	advances	payments
					4		
Belgium	-	ca-	0.01	7.12	4.97	12.10	1.6
Denmark	cn cn	-	giu	2.50	10.57	13.07	1.8
Germany	çea	-	0.30	25.16	20.77	46.23	6.3 .
France	0.07	0.05	0.09	22.21	24.40	46.82	6.4
Greece	ے	Cas.	a.	-	6.64	6.64	0.9
Ireland	₩	ees	~	1.12	48.36	49.48	6.7
Italy	0.20	5.31	18.37	53.02 .	74.73	151.63	20.6
Luxembourg	4 239 .	6 00	COS	-	-	-	-
Netherlands	0.28	•	0.05	.8.38	2.21	10.92	1.5
United Kingdom	1.01 (1)	0.07	1.79	34.92	95.57	133.36	18.1
Totals	1.56	5.43	20.61	154.43	288.22	470.25	63.8

⁽¹⁾ 1976 = 0.39.

XIV. APPLICATIONS FOR ASSISTANCE AND COMMITMENTS SINCE

INTRODUCTION OF THE WEIGHTED REDUCTION SYSTEM

	Applicatio	ns for assis	tance	Сопп	nitments			duction as %		Indic (1978	
Year	Amount in ECU	Indices (1978= 100)	Change on preceding year (%)	Amount in ECU	1	Change on preceding year (%)	Approps. available in ECU a.	Weighted reduction in ECU b.	b. as % of a.	a	b
								_			
1978	1.095.44	100.0	-	568.08	100.0		571.16	206.91	36.2	100.0	100.0
1979	1.316.72	120.2	÷ 20.2	774.45	136.3	+ 36.3	823.75	299.57	36.4	144.2	144.8
1980	1.625.55	148.4	+ 23.5	1.014.22	178.5	+ 31.0	1.021.92	234.14	22.9	178.9	113.2
1981	1.924.21	175.7	+ 18.4	996.17	175.4	- 1.8	1.108.38	704.23	63.5	194.1	3 40. 4
	Programme and the second secon		THE PERSON OF TH								

XV ~ COMMITMENTS 1973-1977

a) Payments

million u.a.

diam provide private delical group delical glycon copies o		Commitm	ents						Payme	ents			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Year	1973	1974	1975	1976	1977	197	3	197	4	197	5	1976		191	7.7
Member State						abs	Ä	abs	%	abs	8	abs	Z	abs	er ar
Belgium	7.2 0	6. 54	8.02	7. 85	10.85	4.23	58.75	4.70	71.87	5.23	65.21	5.93	75. 54	8.83	81.32
Denmark .	5.0 5	11.97	8.94	10.43	14.34	4.65	92.23	11.79	98.50	8.49	94.97	9.71	93.10	12.05	84. 03
Germany	1 9.94	27.93	41.73	44.42	74.52	16.16	81.04	25.08	89.80	39.32	94.22	30.84	69.43	54.69	7 3.39
France	32. 19	49.95	73.83	76.60	157.91	26.60	82.63	43.33	86,75	57.04	77,26	59.54	: 77. 73	103.47	65. 52
Greece	-	-	-	-	۳.	cu cu	-	-	-	-	-	,	-	-	-
Ireland	9.7 9	16.87	22.57	31.67	62.53	8.68	88.66	13.04	77.30	16.56	73.37	25.91	81.81	44.29	70 .83
Italy	43.70	72.33	95.53	146.46	233.14	32.48	74.32	60.10	83.09	72.58	75.98	114.64	78.27	150.32	64. 48
Luxembourg	0.04	0.01	0.03	0.07	0.14	"	*	0.01	100	0.03	100	0.04	57.14	0.07	50
Netherlands	6.77	6,71	10.94	12.5 8	12.35	5,96	88.04	5.51	82.12	7.74	70.74	9.36	74.40	10.43	84. 45
United Kingdom	57.40	62.27	110.24	106.39	248.01	52.95	92.25	58.49	93.93	93.90	85.18	99.25	93.29	204.07	82.28
						,								·	
TOTAL	182.08	254.58	371.83	436.47	813.79	151.72	83.32	222.05	87.22	300.89	80.92	355.22	81.38	588.22	72. 28

XV - COMMITMENTS 1973-1977

b) Amounts released

million u.a. Commitments Amounts released 1973 1974 1975 1976 Year 1977 1973 1974 1975 1976 1977 Member State abs ads % % 2 abs abs abs Belgium 7.20 6.54 8.02 7.85 10.85 2.97 41.25 1.84 28.13 2.79 34.79 1.92 24.48 1.55 14.29 Denmark 5.05 11.97 8.94 10.43 14.34 0.39 7.72 0.18 1.50 0.45 5.03 0.72 6.90 2.11 14.71 19.94 27.93 41.73 44.42 74.52 3.78 Germany 18,96 2.85 10.20 2.41 5.78 13.58 30.57 18.15 24.35 France 32.19 49.95 73.83 76.60 157.91 5.59 17.37 6.62 13.25 13.63 18.46 15.28 19.95 49.62 31.42 Greece 9.79 16.87 22.57 31.67 62.53 1.11 11.34 3.83 22.70 6.01 18.06 Ireland 26.63 5.72 12.30 19.67 Italy 43.701 72.33 95.53 146.46 233.14 11.22 25.68 12.23 16.91 22,54 23,59 20.89 14.26 42.60 18.27 Luxembourg 0.04 0.07 0.14 0.01 0.03 0.04 100.-0.03 42.86 0.07 50.-Netherlands 6.77 6.71 10.94 12.58 12.35 0.81 11.96 1.20 17.88 3.20 29.25 25.6C 3.22 0.92 7.45 57.40 62.27 110.24 106.39 248.01 4.45 7.75 3,78 6.07 15.33 United Kingdom 14.81 7.12 6.69 42.61 17.18 TOTAL . 182.08 254.58 371.83 436.47 813.79 30.36 32.53 12.78 67.36 18.12 68.48 15.69 169.93 16.53 20.88

ξī

13

XV - COMMITMENTS 1973-1977

c) Still to be paid

million v.a.

		Commitme	nts			Still to be paid											
Year	1973	1974	1975	1976	1977	197	73	197	74	197	5	197	6	197	7		
Member State						abs	2	abs	%	abs	z	abs	ž	abs	o' k		
Belgium	7.20	6.54	8.02	7.85	10.85	-	-	_	_	-	1	-	+	0.47	4.33		
Denmark	5.05	11.97	8.94	10.43	14.34	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	0.18	1.20		
Germany	19.94	27.93	41.73	44.42	74.52	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	5	1.68	2.25		
France	32.19	49.95	73.83	76.60	157.91	-	-	-	-	3.16	4.28	1.78	? . ?2	4.82	3.08		
Greece		*	-	••		•		-	-	- '	-	-	 .	-	· · -		
Ireland '	9.79	16.87	22.57	31,67	62.53	-	-	-	-	-	**	0.04	0.13	5.94	9. 50		
Italy	43.70	72.33	95.53	146.46	233.14	-	ps	-	-	0.41	0.43	10.93	7.46	40.22	17.25		
Luxembourg	V. 04	0.01	0.03	0.07	0.14	-	-	-	-	-		-		-	-		
Netherlands	5.77	6.71	10.94	12.58	12.35	- ·	-		-	-	-	· -	_	1.00	8.10		
United Kingdom	57. 40	\$2.27	110.24	106.39	248.01	-	-	_	-	0.01	0.01	0,02	0.02	1.33	0. 54		
, ·																	
TOTAL	182.08	254.58	371.83	436.47	813.79	-	-	-	-	3.58	0.96	12.77	2.93	55.64	6. 84		

99

1

XVI - COMMITMENTS 1978-1981

a) Payments

MUCE

	Commitments			Payments										
Year	1978	1979	1980	1981	197	8	197	9	198	0	19	81		
Member State				_	abs	g/ /2	abs	%	abs	%	abs	%		
Belgium Denmark			29.30 19.43		6.20	53.91 85.85	9.88 13.21		7.53 13.36	25.70 68.76	4.86 10.57	21.38 43.32		•
 Germany	62.2 6	52.8 8	107.96	73.69	52.21	83.86	38.62	73.03	56.97	52.77	20.33	27. 59		
France Greece	103.14	134.82	194.96 -	141.12 29.87	71.29	69.12	111.40	82.63	113.89 -	58.42 -	24.16 6.46	}	·	
Ireland Italy				105.68 340.77	33.67 167.40	71.73 65.33	44.65 143.74		45.42 127.89	57.00 39.09	48.35 7 4.67	1		
Luxembourg	0.36	1.00	0.93	0.57	0.19	52.78			0.07	7.53	-	~		
Netherlands United Kingdom	9.81 115.71			12.68 248.64	6.32 95.24		11.30 149.68		8.36 124.47	45.68 52.63		j		•
TOTAL	620 22	774 45	1014.00	1000.15	144.78	71 71	522.92	67 F2	497.96	49.10	288.45	28.84		

¹⁾ Pilot schemes only.

XVI -. COMMITMENTS 1978-1980

b) Amounts released for re-use

MUCE

	Co	Commitments					An	nounts r	eleased	for re	-use		<u> </u>	
Year	1978	1 979	1980	1981		1978	3	197	79	198	30.	19	981	
Member State					abs.		z	abs.	6/ /2	abs.	%	abs.	8	
Belgium	11.50	15.94	29.30	22.7 3	2.	41	20.96	4.08	25.60	2.56	8.74	-	-	
Denmark	14.28	14.70	19.43	24.40	1.	38	9.66	0.65	4.42	4.35	22.39	-	-	
Germany	62.26	52. 88	107.96	73.6 9	6.	68	10.73	0.84	1.59	4.34	4.02	-	-	
France	103.14	134.82	194.96	141.12	0.	10	0.10	3.99	2. 96	14.51	7.44	-	-	
Greece	-		~	29. 87			<u>.</u>	-	•-	· -	- ,	-	-	
Ireland	46.94	58.13	79.6 9	105.68	9.	61	20.47	3.73	6.42	12.22	15.33			
Italy	256.22	281.23	327.15	340.77	12.	00	4.68	30.46	10.83	30.64	9.37	_	-	
Luxembourg	0.36	1.00	0.93	0.57			-	-	-	-		_		
Netherlands	9.81	19.32	18.30	12.68	0.	18	1.8 3	5.43	28.11	3.91	21.37	-	-	
United Kingdom	115.71	196.43	236. 50	248.64	11.	33	9.7 9	21.51	10.95	35.62	15.06	-	-	
														-
TOTAL	620.22	774.45	1014.22	1000.15	43.	69	7. 04	70.69	9.13	108.15	10.66	-	-	

XVI - COMMITMENTS 1978-1981

c) Amounts released and cancelled

	Cc	Commitments					Amoun	ts relea	ised and	cancel	led				
Year	1978	1979	1980	1981		197	78	197	9	198	30	19	81		
Member State						abs	. e ⁄	abs	e/ /e	abs	%	abs	%		
			1												
Belgium	11.50	15.94	29.30	22.73		0.93	8.09	0.06	0.38	-	-	-	-		
Denmark	14.28	14.70	19.43	24.40		0.29	2.03	0.26	1.77	-	- .	-	-	•	
Germany	62.2 6	52. 88	107.96	73.6 9		3,33	5.35	1.81	3.42	-	- .	-	-		
France	103.14	134.82	194.96	141.12		17.94	17.39	2.18	1.62	- ·	-	` -	a-i		
Greece	-	-	- ,	29. 87		-	-	-	<u>.</u> -	-		-	-		
. Ireland	4 6.94	58.13	79.6 9	105.68		2.58	5.50	1.62	2.79	-	-	-	-		••,
Italy	256.2 2	281.23	327.15	340.77		14.63	5.71	0.96	0.34	•	-	-	-		
Luxembourg	0.36	1.00	0.93	0.57		0.15	41.67	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Netherlands	9.81	19.32	18.30	12.68		0.89	• 9.07	0.30	1.55	-	-	-	-		•
United Kingdom	11 5.71	196.43	236.50	248.64		6.96	6.02	5.56	2.83	-	-	_	-		
TOTAL	620.22	774.45	1014.22	2000.15		47.70	7.69	12.75	1.65	-		-	-		

XVI - COMMITMENTS 1978-1981

d) still to be paid

MUCE

		Commitments						Still to	be pa:	id				all Page State Transcomment by a State State of State State State of State
Year	1978	1979	1980	1981		197	8	197	9	198	0	198	31	and the management of the Canada State Control of the Park
Member State	'					abs	7.	abs	4,	abs	%	abs	%	
													ar agranda agr	•
Belgium	11.50	15.94	29.30	22,73		1.96	17.04	1.92	12.05	19.21	65.56	17.87	78.62	
Dermark	14.28	14.70	19.43	24.40	Ť	0.35	2.45	0.58	3.95	1.72	8.85	13.83	56.58	
Germany	62.26	52.8 8	107.96	73. 69		0.04	0.06	11.61	21.96	46.65	43.21	53.36	72.41	** · *
France	103.14	134.82	194.96	141.12		13.81	13.39	17.25	12.79	66.56	34.14	116.96	82.88	,, "-e ,
Greece	-	-		29.87		~	-	-	2	-	**	23.41	78.37	
Ireland .	46.94	58.13	79.6 9	105.68		1.08	2.30	8.13	13.99	22.05	27.67	57.33	54.25	e e feetha
Italy	2 56.22	281.23	327.15	340.77		62.19	24.27	106.07	37.72	168.62	51.54	266.10	78.09	
Luxembourg	0.36	1.00	0.93	0.57		0.02	5.5 6	0.56	56	0.86	92.47	0.57	100	
Netherlands	9.81	19.32	18.30	12.58		2.42	24.57	2.29	11.85	6.03	32.95	10.47	82.57	•
United Kingdom	115.71	196.43	236.50	248.54		2.14	1.85	19.68	10.02	76.41	32.31	151.80	61.05	
	Outlings appropr						•							
TOTAL	620.22	774,45	1014.22	1000.19		84.01	13.55	168.09	21.70	408.11	40.24	711.70	71.16	amendil Person come i publica di la lipica come del person i con ani

XVII. ESTIMATED NUMBER OF BENEFICIARIES
BY SECTOR OF INTERVENTION, 1980 AND 1981

Sector	Beneficiaries						
	1980	1981					
Agriculture	16,700	5,822					
Textiles and clothing	17,300	8,800					
Migrant workers	267,500	258,300					
Young people	655,000	436,760					
Women	11,300	10,900					
Regions	488,000	500,000					
Technical progress	16,586	23,997					
Groups of firms	2,800	6,029					
The handicapped	57,500	55,280					
	1,532,686	1,305,888					

XVIII. LIST OF APPLICATIONS FOR ASSISTANCE FROM THE EUROPEAN SOCIAL FUND CONCERNING "PILOT SCHEMES AND PREPARATORY STUDIES" APPROVED BY THE COMMISSION UNDER THE 1981 BUDGET .

	COMMISSION UNDER THE 1981 BUDG	ET .
WOMEN		
EP 233/81-I	Social-cultural readjustment and vocational preparation/ training of economically inactive women living isolated from social contact in rural areas.	Centro Studi 27.750.000 Lit Ricerche e Documentazione dell'Educazione Permanente CERIDEP
YOUNG PEOPLE		
EP 225/81-B	Training of young technicians with diplomas in setting up and managing small firms to repair electronic equipment and household electrical appliances	Société de 7.060.000 BF Développement des Marolles (S.D.M.) Brussels, Belgium
EP 226/81-B	Training of young unemployed workers in providing their own employment.	Association 275,000 BF "Le Grison" Cuesmes, Belgium
EP 227/81-F	"Production training and integration operation"	-Centre interpro- 273,000 FF fessionnel de Promotion de la Loire (C.I.P.L.) -Association de Gestion d'Action Sociale des Ensem-
		bles Familiaux (A.G.A.S.E.F.)
EP 243/81-D	Vocational training in building restoration techniques	Association 650.000 DM ouvrière "Compagnons du Devoir du Tour de la France", Köln

Alternance training for

young persons in the

engineering sector

EP 244/82-B

8.576.500 BF

FABRIMETAL,

Belgium

EP 199/80-D	Vocational training for young foreigners; pilot scheme on inter-firm training	Arbeiter- 1.0 Bildungs-Zentrum Bremen	095.397 DM
REGIONS			
EP 219/81-UK	Training programme for shop-keepers in rural communities of an assisted area.	Development Board for Rural Wales Powys-Wales	12.500 UKG
EP 221/81-UK	The training of local full-time development officers for the Highlands and Islands of Scotland	Community Work North, Aberdeen College, Aberdeen Scotland	86.700 UKL
EP 222/81-UK	Training of mature redundant workers for new employment in an assisted area	Dartington Institute of Community Studies, Dartington, Totnes, Devon	28,700 UK⊾
ET 289/81	Method of assessing training programmes financed by the European Social Fund in the context of development of local economic potential	Commission	18,000 ECU
EP 217/80-UK	Creation of new jobs in isolated rural zones through the mobilisation of local initiatives	Highlands and Islands Development Board (H.I.D.B.) Inverness, Scotland	49,500 UKL
SMALL AND MED	IUM-SIZED UNDERTAKINGS		
EP 247/81-GR	Management training of responsibles in small- and medium-sized Greek enterprises	"E.O.M.M.E.X." Organisme hellénique des petites et moyennes industries et d'artisanat	5.237.000 DRA
EP 248/81-GR	Training of management consultants for small-and medium-sized enterprises	"E.O.M.M.E.X." Organisme hellénique de petites et moyennes industries et d'artisanat	9,535,500 DRA
EP 228/81-F	Creation of a decentral- ized structure for helping to set up and run small non-traditional undertakings Establishment of a network of specialist instructors.	Atelier pour la création et l'expéri mentation sociales, s. Paris, France	1.560,000 FF -

512,000 FF Atelier Populaire EP 245/81-F Training in creating and developing activities in d'Urbanisme a general neighbourhood (Alma-Gare economy. Koubaix, France) 120,000 FF ET 204/80-F Study on impediments Association du to the creation of jobs Centre d Etudes et de kéalisations pour in small undertakings l'Education Permanente (ACEREP) TRAINING OF INSTRUCTORS SITEA Société 126,500,000 LIT EP 241/81-T Training of trainers for electronic Italienne Economie data-processing Appliquée NEW TECHNIQUES (Technical Progress) EP 218/81-IR Pilot programme to Anco - The Industrial 22,000 IRL assist firms in adapting Training Authority Dublin, Ireland to new technology with particular reference to training needs Teeside Polytechnic, 49.250 UKL EP 220/81-UK CADCAM training course for mature engineers Middlesbrough, Cleveland, United Kingdom 9.000.000 DRA EP 246/81-GR Training of highly "O.S.B.E.E." qualified maintenance Association d'entreprises technicians pour la Formation Industrielle et Professionnelle de leur personnel EP 231/81-F Training for supervisory Association pour la 746,600 FF jobs in the meat formation des Côtes industries du Nord EP 215/80-I Employment of women 75,250,000 LIT Région de Toscane and men in small Dipartimento horticultural nurseries Instruzione e in the province of Cultura Pistoia HANDICAPPED PERSONS EP 234/81-B Training of staff whose 3,265,178 BF Fondation syndicale role will be to promote "Travail et Santé greater stability of Mentale" employment for mentally handicapped people.

EP 251/81-F	Assistance and advice within industry to remove barriers to the employment of the handicapped.	Association nationale pour la formation professionnelle des adultes, Metz, France	358.300 FF
EP 252/81-F	Applied research on the conditions for handicapped persons working on a remote basis.	Délégation à l'emploi, Mission pour l'Insertion professionnelle des travailleurs handicapés	425,000 FF
ET 253/81-F	Study and assessment of the vocational training of adult handicapped workers in specialised centres in France in 1980.	Fédération des Associations gestionnaires et des Etablissement de Réadaptation pour Handicapés (F.A.G.E.R.H.)	114.480 FF
EP 254/81-GR	Vocational training for mentally handicapped young people	"Protypos Viotechniki Monas", Lakkia, Thessalon Greece.	DRA
EP 290/81-DK	Creation of a guidance service for handicapped persons with a view to their integration in open employment	Social of Sundheir forvaltningen er Kommunal forvalsk under Arhus Kommu	en DKR ing
EP 291/81-DK	Employment of categories of persons that are especially vulnerable on the labour market	Horsens Kommune Social Ministerie Copenhagen	112,500 DKR t,
EP 209/80-D	Vocational guidance measures for persons in trial employment who were drug addicts	Forschungsgruppe "Drogenprobleme" am Institut für Rechtsund Sozial- medizin an der F.A Berlin	753,065 DM
MIGRANTS			

EP 237/81-I Migrant workers' cooperatives Coopeonsult 70.000.000 to facilitate their return Propesca, Rome LIT to Italy.

BILAG/ANLAGE/ANNEX/ANNEXE/ALLEGATO/BIJLAGE XIX

LISTE OVER ANSØGNINGERNE GODKENT I 1981
LISTE DER 1981 GENEHMIGTEN ZUSCHUSSANTRÄGE
LIST OF APPLICATIONS FOR AID APPROVED IN 1981

LISTE DES DEMANDES DE CONCOURS AGREES EN 1981 ELENCO DELLE RICHIESTE DI CONTRIBUTO NEL 1981 LIJST VAN DE IN 1981 GOEDGEKEURDE AANVRAGEN

Land	Kategori	Ansvarlig myndighed	gennemførelses- periode	Antal personer	Kommission	ens tilskud	L
Land	Kategorie	Träger	DorchfOhrungs- zeitrauss	Anzahl der Arbeitneh-	Zuschuss v genehmigt	on der Komm	ission
Country	Category.	Responsible bodies	Implementation period	mer Number of workers	Assistance	of the Com	mission
Pays	Catégorie	Organismes responsables	Période de réalisation	Effectifs concernés	Concours a	gr é é par la	L
Paese	Categoria	Organismi responsabiliti	Periodo di realizzazione	Numero di effectivi	Contributo Commission	concesso d e	alla
Land	Categorie	Verantwoordelijke instelling	Tijdvak van uitvoering	Aantal- betrokken personen	Door de Co bijstand	mmissie toe	gekende
			·		{ n { n { m { m	.v. .w. .c. .n. .m.	
1	2	3	4	5		6	
					1981	1982	1983

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
		,			1 2 3
a	FE	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	03:012817	250	30-550.000-3
	۶E	SENTHE REPARTIR	251212817	18	345.000/0
	FE	CENTRE FEMININ DIEDUCATION PERMANENTE	12.01.81-	30	1.050.000/0
	f£	VRDUWEN OVERLEG KOMITEE	01.01.61-	50	476.300/0
	нА	FONDS NATIONAL DE RECLASSEMENT SOCIAL DES HANDICAPER.	01.01.81-	466	51.067.940/0
	J E	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.01.61-	675	19.546.565/D
	J E	OFFICE "ATTOMAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.01.81-	578	16.755.789.0
	JΕ	OFFICE HATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.31.81-	100	11-411-488-0
	JĖ	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.01.61-	143	18.144.618/O
	٦E	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI+ONEM	01.01.61-	253	72-031.289/0
	ΊĒ	FONDS NATIONAL DE RECLASSEMENT SOCIAL DES HANDICAPES	01.01.81-	6	2.114.338-0
	JF	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.01.81-	3.560	74.713.500/0
	JF	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01-01-81-	3-790	81.411.534/0
	J m	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.01.81-	3.420	107.370.900/0
	J .4	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01:01:81-	7.469	233.578.800/0
	٩I	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.01.81- 31.12.81	37	4.770.070/0
	۱.	DIENST VOOR HIGRANTEN WERENIGING ZONDEN WINSTBEJAG	01.01.81-	101	675.000/0
	~1	CEPPAC	01.09.81-	63	1.533.643.0

1	S	3	4	5	TRANCHES 1 2 3
8	· 91	MINISTERE DE LA COMMUNAUTE FRANÇAISE CCULTURE FRANÇAISE/EMPLOI ET TRAVAIL)	01.01.81- 31.12.81	4.572	5.651.625/0
	31	458L LE PIMENT	01:01:81-	89	1.316.866/0
	41	COMITE UCCLOIS D'AIDE AUX REFUGIES DU SUD EST ASIATIQUE	01.01.81- 31.12.81	37	1.539.306/0
	1 ·	FOYER DES JEUNES-ASUL	01.07.81-	555	1.848.750.0
	er 1	CONSELL CONSULTATIF IMMIGRES DE BRUXELLES	01.09.81-	347	412.500/D
	~1	CONSELL CONSULTATIF DES IMMIGRES CORGANE DE L'ADMINISTRATION COMMUNALE)	01.09.01- 31.08.82	19	142.500/0
	-11	ASSOCIATION PENAGOGIQUE D'ACCUEIL AUX JEUNES IMMIGRES	01.09.81-	33	1.185.000/0
	PT	THEN POUR LE COMPTE DE PLUSIEURES ENTREPRISES PRIVEES	01.01.81- 31.12.31	150	10.800.000/0
	₽Ť	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.21.81-	945	46.350.000.0
	PΤ	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.01.81-	7	1.135.616/0
	7 E	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.31.81- 31.12.81	315	36,362.210,0
	-€	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.01.81- 31.12.81	300	26.300.000.0
	πĒ	OFFICE NATIONAL OF L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01:01:81-	930	31.000.000/0
	ΝĒ	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMLOI POUR LE COMPTE DE PLUSIEURS ENTREPRISES PRIVEES	01:01:61:	905	54.000.000/0
	ΝĒ	FUNOC	031212617	189	12.000.000.0
	٩Ē	FOYER CULTUREL DU SART-TILMAN (ASOL)	01.01.81-	400	10.000.000.0
	31	OFFICE NATIONAL DE L'EMPLOI-ONEM	01.01.81- 31.12.81	109	9.889.620/0

,	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
0	-	BUYDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	91.01.81-	51	318,630/0
	, ,	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.01.81~		4.762.665/3
	7 =	SUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.01.81-	756	5.063.314/0
	, , ,	BERUFSFORTBILDUNGWERK DES DGB GMBH, MAUPTVERWALTUNG, POSTFACH 1637, 4000 DHESSELDORF	01.01.81- 31.12.81	20	23.608.0
		BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.97.81- 33.06.84	718	6.024.400.0
		BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.07.81-	941	7.657.422.0
	3	BUNDESMINISTER FUER BILDUNG UND WISSENSCHAFT	01.01.81-	74	730.047/3
<u> </u>	4	SUNDESMINISTER FUER BILDUNG UND WISSENSCHAFT	31.12.81	125	1.243.053.0
	,,,	SAYERISCHES STAATSMINISTERIUM FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALGRONUNG	01.01.61- 31.12.81	200	500.000/0
		BAYERISCHES STAATSMINISTERIUM FUER ARBEIT UND \$82IALORDYUNG	01.01.81-	200	500.000/0
	1- A	FREIE UND HANSESTADT HAMBURG	01.01.81-	50	80.000.0
	-4	SENATOR FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALES BERLIN	31.12.91	107	521.928/0
	P1 A	BUNDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG FUER BUNDESANSTÄLT FUER ARBEIT/ BUNDESLAENDER UND TRÆEGER DER GESETZLICHEN RENTEN- UND UNFALLVERSICHERUNG	51.31.81- 31.12.91	620	9.059.725/0
	jĒ	DIAKONISCHES WERK AN DER SAAR	01.71.81- 31.12.81	60	404.393.0
	غر	BUNDERMINISTER FUER BILDUNG UND MISSENSCHAFT	01.01.81-	68	670_854/0
	JE	BUNDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG	01.01.81-	463	1.886.794/0
	JE	BUNDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG	01.71.81-	7.285	ī1.807.000/O
	J E	BUNDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG	01.09.61- 30.06-82	5.000	1.500.000/0

, !	2	•	1 4 1	5	TRA	VCHES	
		3			1	2	3
	ΊĒ	BUNDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG	01:08:81-	10	39.555/0	39.555-0	39.555
		BUNDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG	01:07:81-	25	250.965/0	240.350/0	224.285
	γĒ	BILDUNGSGEMEINSCHAFT ARBEIT UND LEBEN/BREMERHAVEN	01.09.81-	16	203.568/0	203.568.0	203.565
	٦É	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.09.81-	5.540	35.229.150/0		
	٦E	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	31.08.81	285	1.585.712.0		~
	±€	BUYDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.39.81-	160	896.875,0		
	, F	BUNDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG	01:01:61-	143	158.584,0		
	, F	BUNDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG	01:01:81-	101	151.500.0		
	, F	HJESCH HUETTENWERKE AG-DORTMUND UND HJESCH WERKE HCHENLIMBURG-SCHWERTE AG-HAGEN	01121281-	29	37.664.0		
	۽ ر	BUNDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG	01.08.81- 31.07.82	111	100.000.0		
	۽ ر	HOESCH MUETTENLERKE AG DORTMUND Hoesch werke hohenlimburg-schjerte ag hagen	01:08:42	25	49.530.0		
	, F	BJYDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	31.08.92	230	161.650.0		
	Jē	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.79.81-	120	85.775/0		
	4.4	BUYDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG	01:01:817	1.560	308.254,0		
	, 1	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	03:01281-	940	1.277.967.0		
	14	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01:01:81-	3.850	4.925.862/0		
i	J i	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.01.81-	330	448.648,0		
	n 1	BUYDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDNUNG FUER BUYDS LAEADER UND GEMEINDEN	03:01281-	94.798	5.999.307/0		

,		3	1	5	TRANCHES
		********************************			1 2 3
Þ	. 1	SUNDESHINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDWUNG FUER Bund-laender-kommunen-Bundesanstalt fuer arbeit	01.01.81-	11.310	16.070.000/0
	ı	ERZOISTUM KOELN	01.51.81- 31.12.91	228	476.541.0
	1	BILDUNGSWERK DER ERZDIOEZESE KOELN E.V.	01.01.81- 31.12.81	1.065	1.084.500/0
	į	INTERVATIONALER BUND FUER SOZIALARBEIT JUSE-10SOZIALMERK E.V. LUDOLFUSSTRASSE 2-4-6000 FRANKFURT AM MAIN	01.01.81-	8.100	1-196.684-3
	1	MUENCHMER VOLKSHOCHSCHULE	01.01.81- 31.12.81	450	220.000/0
	ı	MANNHEIMER ABENDAKADEMIE UND VOLKSHOCHSCHULE GMBH	01.09.81- 30.06.82	110	21.150/0
	-1	91LDUNGSZENTRUM FUER INFORMATIONSVERARBEITENDE BERUFE	01.01.81-	725	1.246.614.0
	-7	INSTITUT FUER BETRIEUSORGANISATION UND INFORMATIONS- TECHNIK (INBIT)	01.01.81-	225	256.000/0
	47	STADT PIRMASENS	01.01.81- 31.12.81	55	160.839/0
,	-7	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.01.81-	630	2.151.450/0
	-7	BJ4DESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.01.81-	196	125.838/0
	7.	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.07.81-	- 313	719.726.0
	i.	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEST	01:01:81-	230	1.438.780-0
	٠٤	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01:01:81-	2+203	3.300.000/0
	ιż	SUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.01.81-	C88•2	4.383.600/0
	ع بہ	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.01.81- 31.12.81	304	1.438.780/0
	\ \$	LAND NIEDERSACHSEII	31.01.81- 31.12.91	9.324	3.681.000/0
	Pè	SEVATOR FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALES BERLIN	01.31.81-	1.300	3.837.925.0

1	2	3	4	5	TRAYCHES
				******	1 2 3
D	뒫	SEMATOR FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALES BERLIN	01.01.81-	300	90.000/0
i	4.5	SENATOR FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALES BERLIN	01.01.81-	420	471.000/0
	۱t	BUNDESMINISTER FUER ARBEIT UND SOZIALORDWUNG FUER BUNDESMINISTER FUER BILDUNG UND WISSENSCHAFT, LAND BERLIN	01.01.81- 31.12.81	75	1.290.350/0
	څ پ	LAND BERLIN - SENATOR FUER FAMILIE/ JUGEND UND SPORT -	01.01.81-	482	1.825.025.0
. !	- 5	BUYDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.09.81- 31.08.82	150	236.250.0
	\±	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.39.81- 31.08.82	3.860	16.015.800.0
	, =	SUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01.39.81-	638	2.735.745.0
		BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	01:39:81-	160	858.000/0
!	٠.	BUNDESANSTALT FUER ARBEIT	31.12.81- 31.12.81	111	522.589/0
į					
					,
		·			

1	2	3	4	5	TRA	A CHES	3
DK	÷	ARBEJOSMINISTERIET	01.01.81-	251	2.802.726.0		
!	•	SOCIALMINISTERIET FOR AMTSKOMMUNERNE> KOEBENHAVNS Kommune Samt Primaerkommunerve	01.01.81- 31.12.81	885	14.339.625/0		
	٠.	SOCIALMINISTERIET FOR AMTSKOMMUNERNE, KOEBENHAVNS Kommune samt primaerkommunerne	01.01.81-	1.773	28.211.574/0		
	٠,٠	VORDJYLLANDS AMTSKOMMIJNE	01.07.81-	500	312.500/0	525.000.0	312.500/0
;	.:	ARBEJOSMINISTERIET, DIREKTORATET FOR Arbejosmärkedsuddannelserne	01.01.81-	600	3.600.000/0		•
;	ιĖ	ARBEJDSMINISTERIET, DIREKTORATET FOR Arbejdsmärkedsuddannelserne	01.01.81-	528	3.169.438/0		
	, e	ARREJOSMINISTERIET SAMT STATEN, DE OFFENTLIGE SELVEJENDE SPECIALARGEJDERSKOLER I DE TO ANTER, AARNUS OG STOR- STROEMS ARTSKOMMUNER OG KOMMUNERNE I AMTERNE	01.01.81- 31.12.81	1.950	10.000.000.0		
!	; 4	JNDERVISHINGSMINISTERIET OG FYNS AMTSKOMMUNE	01.01.81-	1.283	3.011.577/0		
!	, F	UNDERVISHINGSMINISTERIET OG AMTSKOMMUNERNE	01.01.81-	3.295	7.752.832/0		
!	, s	ARSEJOSMINISTERIET FOR KOMMUNER	01.01.81- 31.12.91	260	458,800/0		
	Æ	ARBEJDSMINISTERIET FOR KOMMUNER	01.01.81- 31.12.91	850	1.500.000/0		
	, =	ARBEJOSMIVISTERIET SAMT STATEN, AARMUS OG STORSTROEMS Antskommuner og kommunerne i anterne	01.01.81- 31.12.81	3.025	8.000.000/0		•
!	, :	UNDERVISHINGSMILISTERIET SAMT FYNS AMTSKOMMUNE OG Kommuner inden for fyns amtskommune	01.01.81- 31.12.81	670	1.576.373.0		
	ر	UNDERVISNINGSMINISTERIET SAMT KOMMUNER OG AMTSKOMMUNER	01.01.81-	1-490	3.505.664/0		
	,•	ARBEJDSMINISTERIET FOR KOMMUNER OG AMTSKOMMUNER	01.01.81- 31.12.81	1.800	3.600.000/0		
	٠, ر	ARBEJÖSMINISTERIET FOR KOMMUNER OG AMTSKOMMUNER	01.01.81- 31.12.51	12-200	20.398.500/0		
` ;	1.	ARBEJDSMINISTERIET SAMT STATEN/ AARHUS OG STORSTROEMS ANTSKOMMUNER OG KOMMUNERNE I AMTERVE	01.01.81-	2.850	10.000.000.0		
	'1	UNDERVISNINGSMINISTERIET (KOMMUNER)	01.01.81- 31.12.81	2.760	1.380.0000		

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
04	. 1	SOCIALMINISTERIET	01:01:81-	56	424.860/0
	,	SOCIALMINISTERIET	031012817	. 56	252.090.0
	1	UNDERVISHINGSMINISTERIET(KOEDENHAVNS KOMMUNE)	01.10.81-	57	391.000.0
	٠Ł	MINISTERIET FOR GROENLAND (GROENLANDS HJEMMESTYRE)	01:01:81-	4.210	46.172.184.0
	- 6	MIMISTERIET FOR GROENLAND	01:01:81-	175	3.831.451.0
	78	UNDERVISNINGSMINISTERIET Direktoratet for erhvervsuddanmelserne	01.01.81-	277	4.841,458/0
	٦E	UNDERVISNINGSMINISTERIET Direktoratet for ernvervsuddannelserne	01.01.81-	191	1.590.040.0
	- ·	INSTITUTION KNUD RASMUSSEN HOEJSKOLEN HOLSTEINSBORG, Groemland	01.01.81-	60	1.311.000/0
	-ė	INSTITUTION SULISARTUT HOEJSKOLIAT, JULIANEHAB, JRDENLAND	01.01.81-	26	596.970.0
	٦É	ARBEJOSMINISTERIET, DIREKTORATET FOR Arbejosmarkedsuddannel serne	031012817	85ე	5.506.901.0
	-€	ARBEIDSMINISTERIET/DIREKTORATET FOR ARBEIDSMARKEDSUUDAMMELSERNE	01.01.81-	330	2.650.000.0
				`	

	!		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		TRANCHES
1	:	3	4	5	1 2 3
£		IDRYMA PROSTASIAS TYFLON VOREIOY ELLADOS "O HLIOS"	01.10.80-	30	7.197.350/0
	. 4	YPOYRGEID ETHNIKIS PAIDEIAS KAI THRISKEYMATON	15.09.81-	60	1.659.000/3
		YPOYRGEION KOINOMIKON YPIRESION	15.09.81-	265	35.813.625.0 31.322.175.0 36.827.005.0
	;-	CALLITYAN SININGPE OLEGRYCGY	10.01.81-	1.200	10.580.948/0
	,=	SELETE NPDD	01.01.81-	400	49.000.000/0
	, =	DAED-NPAA	01.01.81- 31.12.81	5.668	145.414.240.0
	,=	SHOLL TOYRISTIKON EPAGELMATON	01.01.81-	940	\$2.537.000/D
	7.5	EJAREX	01.01.81-	105	4.922.500/3
		ELLINIKO KENTRO PARAGOGIKOTITOS NPDP	01.01.81-	50	9.711.900/0
	-=	0.4.E.DNOMIKO PROSOPO DIMOSION DIKATOŸ	01.07.81- 30.06.82	7.000	82.293,750/3
	12	YPOYRGEIO KOINONIKON YPIRESION	01.09.81-	1.524	85.296.366/0 91.125.232/2 103.248.331/2
	15	YPDYRGE10 KOINONIKON YPIREÐION	01.09.81-	1 • 405	92.172.234/0 98.910.972/0 14.312.057/0
	J=	ORGANISMOS SIDIRODROMON ELLADOS A.E.(O.S.E)	01.07.81-	600	64.130.000/0
	, e	ORGANISMOS TILEPIKOINONION ELADOS A.E.	01.07.81- 31.12.81	1.050	6.256.250/0
	, e	YPOYRGEIO ETHNIKIS PAIDEIAS KAI THRISKEŸMATON	01.07.81-	100	6.050.000-0
	JE	YPOYRGEIO ETHNIKIS PAIDEIAS KAI THRISKEYMATOM	01.07.81- 30.06.82	900	24.750.000/0
	1	NOTARYSTRANT IAN ZALIDLIAG ZINIMHTE OLERFYCCY	15.07.81-	300	4.235.000/0
	:1	YPOYRGE10 ETHNIKIS PAIDEIAS KAI THRISKEYMATON	01.08.81-	700	16.035.250/0

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
		,**************************************		,	1 2 3
E	- 7	ORGANISMOS SIDIRODROMON ELLADOS (O.S.E.)	01:02:81-	16	2.310.000/0
	-1	DSBEE	01:01:81- 31:12:51	250	16.500.000/0
	٠ ٢	E.O.M.M.E.X.	01.01.81- 31.12.91	. 500	8.368.800/0
į	-т	ORGANISMOS THLEPIKOINOMION ELLADOS(OTE)	01.37.81- 31.12.81	240	2.860.000/0
	7.7	ORGANISMOS THLEPIKOINONION ELLADOS(OTE)	01.07.81- 31.12.81	580	4.468.750/0
	∵ŧ	YPOYRGEIO EMPORIKHS NAYTILIAS	12.01.81-	1.200	67.005.937.0
	٠ē	YPOYRGE10 EMPORIKHS NAYTILIAS	01.31.81- 31.12.81	2.300	20,804.786/0
	· #	YPOYRGEIO GEOOGIAS	01:01:81-	140	4.327.400/0
	٠ ٤	YPOYRGEIO GEORGIAS	01.01.81-	140	4.327.400/0
	٠. ٤	YPOYRGEIO GEORGIAS	01.71.81-	70	759.000/0
ļ	₹ £	YPOYRGE10 GEORGIAS	01.01.81- 31.12.81	160	2.200.000.0
	٠ŧ	YPOYRGEIO ETHNIKHS PAIDEIAS KAI THRHSKEYWATON	C1.01.81-	14.000	59.300.000 <i>-</i> 0
	٦É	YPOYRGEIO ETHNIKHS PAIDEIAS KAI THRHSKEVMATON .	01:01:817	56.000	315.700.000/0
į	-=	ELLMNIKH ETAIREIA EPICHEIRMSIAKON EREVNON (EEEE)	01.31.81- 30.06.81	190	1.885.680/0
į	٦.	ELLHMIKH ETAIREIA DIOIKHSEOS EPICHEIRHSEON (E.E.D.E.)	01.01.81- 31.12.81	190	4.476.562-0
	9 E	DMMOSIA EPICHEIRHSH HLEKTRISHOY (D.E.M.)	01:01:81-	64	ī1.639.650/D
	<u>. L</u>	ORGANISMOS LIMENOS PETRATOS (O.L.P.)	01.01.81- 31.12.41	246	5.690.000/0
	۲6	ORGANISHOS APASCHOLSEOS ERGATIKOV DVNAMIKOV (O.A.E.D.)	01.01.81- 31.12.81	600	77.009.511/0

, ,	ž	3	4	5	TR/	VICHES

£	٠, ۽	ORGANISMOS APASCHOLHSEOS ERGATIKOV DYNAMIKOV (O.A.E.D.)	01.01.81-	375	57-485-109/0	
	÷ e	ORGANISMOS THLEPINGINONION ELLADOS (0.1.E.)	01.01.81-	43	1.618.078-0	
	~ £	ORGANISMOS THLEPIKOINONION ELLADOS (O.T.E.)	01.31.81-	255	11.615.747/0	
	• 5	ELLHNIKO KENTRO PARAGOGIKOTHTOS (EL.KE.PA.)	01.08.19- 31.12.81	25	1.202.000/0	
1	- á	ELLHMIKO KENTRO PARAGOGIKOTHTOS (EL.KE.PA.)	01.01.81-	95	1.899.333.0	1.514.333-0
	٠.	ELLMNIKO KENTRO PARAGOGIKOTMTOS (EL.KE.PA.)	31.31.81- 31.12.83	80	1.074.333/0	1.074.333/0
	4€	ELLMNIKO KENTRO PARAGOGIKOTHTOS (EL.KE.PA.)	01.01.81- 31.12.83	216	792.000/3	792.000.0
i	4 -	ELLHNIKO KEYTRO PARAGOGIKOTHTOS (EL.KE.PA.)	01.31.81-	432	1.584.000/0	1.554.000/0
	-€	ELLHNIKO KENTRO PARAGOGIKOTHTOS (EL.KE.PA.)	01.01.81- 31.12.83	1.445	2.615.800/0	415.800/0 415.800/
1	45	ELLMNIKO KENTRO PARAGOGIKOTMTOS (EL.KE.PA.)	01.01.81- 31.12.83	720	717.200/0	717.200/0 715.000
	٦ć	ELLHNIKO KENTRO PARAGOGIKOTHTOS (EL.KE.PA.)	01.01.81- 31.12.91	75	6.765.000/0	
	- €	ELLMNIKO KENTRO PARAGOGIKOTHTOS (EL.KE.PA.)	01.01.81- 31.12.51	100	12.485.000-0	
	~€	ORGANISMOS SIDIRODROMON ELLADOS (0.5.E.)	02.01.81-	168	2.522.300/0	
	٦É	PAGANISMOS SIDIRODROMON ELLADOS (O.S.E.)	01.01.81-	195	4.334.000/0	
	n ć	ORGANISMOS SIDIROUROMON ELLADOS (O.S.E.)	01.01.81- 19.12.81	12	543.400/0	
!	48	ORGANISMOS SIDIRODROMON ELLADOS (O.S.E.)	01.01.81- 19.12.81	355	3.535,400/0	
	/=	ORGANISMOS THLEPIKGINONION ELLADOS (O T E)	31.37.81- 31.12.51	110	3.340.205/0	
	₹ 5	ORGANISMOS THLEPIKOINONION ELLADOS (O T E)	01.37.81-	316	6.266.755/0	

	2	3 .	4	5	TRANCHES	2
E		ELLHNIKO KENTRO PARAGOGIKOTHTOS (ELKEPA)	01.07.81-	199	12-210-000/0	-
		SCHOLM TOYRISTIKON EPAGELMATON (S.T.E) ORGANISMOS APASCHOLHSEOS ERGATIKOY DYNAMIKOY (O.A.E.D)	16.10.81- 31.12.81	350	4.250.812.0	
].	٦ŧ	SCHOLH TOYRISTIKON EPAGELMATON (S.T.E) ORGANISMOS APASCHOLHSEOS ERGATIKOV DYNAMIKOV (O.A.E.D)	16.10.81-	210	2.550.487.0	
	- 6	ELLMNÍKH ETAIREIA EPICHEIRHSIAKON EREVNON (E E E E)	01.07.81- 31.12.81	100	1.047.600/0	
	- 6	ORGANISMOS SIDHRODKOMON ELLADOS (O 5 E)	17.38.81-	16	426.250/0	
		•		·		:
İ	!					
					,	·

1	1 2	3	4	5	TRAN	ZAR
					1	2
٢	٠.6	POUR DEUX ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81.	116	948.755.0	12.245.0
	- 6	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL (CELLULE FSE) POUR DEUX ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	30.	257.712/0	10.288/0
İ	- 13	SHCF	01.01.81-	21	88,001/0	
	.,	MINISTERE DE L'AGRICULTURE POUR LUI MEME ET D'AUTRES MINISTERES OU ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	1.085	10-435.000/0	
	7.5	MINISTÈRE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE ESE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	360	2.654.720/0	
	 + <u>+</u>	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.04.81-	75	476.000/0	
	, .	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE ESE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01:01:81-	277	2.441.805/0	•
	PE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01-04-81-	75	824.441/0	-
	- t	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	992	1.101.162/0	
	έĘ	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION.CELLULE DU FONDS SOCIAL EUROPEEN POUR UN ORGANISME PUBLIC.RHONE.	30.11.81-	15	177.125/0	
	+ Ē	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES. RHONE-ALPES.	01.09.81-	147	336,000/0	
	۰Ę	TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION.CELLULE DU FONDS SOCIAL EUROPEEN POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS. ILE-DE-FRÂNCE.	01.07.81-	125	1.806.767/0	
	ŕé	TIVISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE DU FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS. SUD-EST.	01.07.81- 30.06.82	105	624.250/0	
	FE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION.CELLULE DU FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS. EST-CENTRE.	01.07.81- 30.06.82	93	382,580/0	
	F±	TIMISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION.CELLULE DI FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS.OUEST ET NORD	01.07.81-	210	2.737.504/0	
	FE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION-CELLULE DU FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.10.81-	186	2.403.884/0	
	+ 1	TIVISTERE DU TRAVAÎL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE DU FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES ILEMBE-FRÂNCE.	01.07.81-	86	1.173.650/0	
	+ E	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION.CELLULE DU FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES. SUD EST.	01.07.81- 30.06.82	75	416.597/0	

F + E TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE DE 130.06.82 78 626.992.0 TE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES. EST. CENTRE. 01.07.81- 97 502.000.0 TA FONDS D'ASS. DE FORM. DES TRAVAILLEURS INTELLECTUELS POUR 01.01.81- 115 125.000.0 TA LES SALARIES POUR LE CENTRE D'AIDE PAR LE TRAVAIL POUR 03.1.12.81 115 125.000.0 TA LES SALARIES DOUR LE CENTRE D'AIDE PAR LE TRAVAIL POUR 03.1.12.81 115 125.000.0 TA L'AISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01.01.81- 60 146.000.0 TA L'AISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01.01.81- 167 645.812.0 TA L'AISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01.01.81- 167 645.812.0 TA L'AISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01.01.81- 167 645.812.0 TA L'AISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01.01.81- 167 645.812.0 TA L'AISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01.01.81- 167 645.812.0 TA L'AISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01.01.81- 167 645.812.0	23
FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES. EST-CENTRE. 35.06.82 MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE DU 35.06.82 FONDS D'ASS. DE FORM. DES TRAVAILLEURS INTELLECTUELS POUR LES SALARIES DU KREMELIN BICETRE (FAFTIS) 125.000/0 15.12.81 MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE POUR 31.12.81 MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ORGANISME PRIVE (GIRPEH) 31.12.81 MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS 31.12.81 MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS 31.12.81 MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS 31.12.81 MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS 31.12.81 MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS 31.12.81	
FONDS D'ASS. DE FORM. DES TRAVAILLEURS INTELLECTUELS POUR LES SALARIES POUR LE CENTRE D'AJE PAR LE TRAVAIL POUR LES SALARIES POUR LE CENTRE D'AJE PAR LE TRAVAIL POUR 31.12.81 125.000.0 121.01.81- 13.12.81 146.000.0 146.000.0 140.000.0 1	
TAINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION TAINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS TAINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS TAINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS TAINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS TAINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	
"A CELLULE FSE POUR UN ORGANISME PRIVE (GIRPEH) "A VINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS "A VINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS "A VINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS "A VINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS "A VINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION DISTRIBUTION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS "A VINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION DISTRIBUTION DIST	
TIVISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01:01:81- 303 7-403.003/0	
lat with the season of the sea	
1.024.136.0 The cellule fee du participation of the cellule fee du	
"A VINISTERE OU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01.01.81- 0- 5.279.0 CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES 31.12.81	
74 OFFICE 'ATTONAL DES ANCIENS COMBATTANTS 01.01.81- 391- 3.616.005/0	
"4 SECRETARIAT GENERAL DE LA FORMATION PROFESSIONNELLE 01.01.81- 391 3.774.371.0	
"4 MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01.01.81- 323 2.764.213.0	
(A MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION 01.01.81- 753 6.449.831/0	1
TA CAISSE NATIONALE ASSURANCE MALADIE TRAVAILLEURS 01.01.81- 138 2.105.273.0	
TA TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION-CELLULE 81) 01-07-81- 40 736-992-0	
HA MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION-CELLULE 01-07-81- 278 1-744-930-0 DU FONDS SOCIAL EUROPEEN POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES 30-06-82 PRIVES.	į
HA MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION-CELLULE 01.07.81- 38 1.270.279,0 DU FOLOS SOCIAL EUROPEEN POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES 30.06.52	!
JE MIMISTERE DU TRAVAIL-CELLULE DU FSE POUR UN DRGANISME 01.01.81- 135 365.424/0 91/02.81	
JE MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL-CELLULE DU FSE POUR UN ORGANISME 01-01-81- 2-375 6-598.573-0	

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
f	J.:	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL-CELLULE DU FSE POUR UN ORGANISME PRIVE.	01.01.81-	2.147	6.490.231.0
	j ę	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL CELLULE FSE POUR DES ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01:01:81-	1.437	3.932.021.0
i	غ ر	TIVISTERE OU TRAVAIL CELLULE FSE POUR DES ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01:01:81-	2.147	2.015,870.0
	٦٠.	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL	01:01:81-	66	947.232.0
	1 =	TITISTERE DU TRAVAIL	01.01.81-	152	2.378.161.0
	μŧ	MIMISTERE DU TRAVAIL	01:01:81-	7.747	45.635.546.0
	ιĒ	MIMISTERE DU TRAVAIL	01:01:81-	13.000	76.570.000/0
	JΕ	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL	01:01:81-	1.280	8.293.120/0
	1 €	AFPA	01:01:81-	1.080	8.336.500.0
	Jέ	AFPA	01.01.81-	1.135	8.805.434.0
	٤,	SGFP	01.01.81-	1.080	1.512.000/0
	JĒ	SGFP	01.01.81-	1.136	1.612.018.0
	٦E	DELEGATION A LA FORMATION PROFESSIONMELLE	01:09:81-	1.696	12.550.692.0
	ıΕ	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL.CELLULE FSE POUR DES ORGANISMES	01.10.81-	30	162.719.0
	غ ر	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL.CELLULE FSE POUR DES ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01:07:81-	3	23.774/0
	JΕ	TITISTERE DU TRAVAIL.CELLULE FSE POUR DES ORGANISMES PUBLICS	15.00081-	20	203.505.0
	ıξ	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL.CELLULE FSE POUR DES ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81- 30.05.32	4	2.710/0
	1€	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL.CELLULE FSE POUR DES ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81-	560	83.500-0

1	;	3	4	5	TRANCHES 1 2	
F	25	WINISTERE DU TRAVAIL.CELLULE FSE POUR DES ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.09.81-	600	6.984.500/0	
	13	TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL.CELLULE FSE POUR DES ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.09.81-	530	2.372.050/0	
	, 5	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL-CELLULE DU FSE POUR UN ORGANISME PRIVE	01.07.81-	4	47.124/0	
	, =	MINISTÈRE DU TRAVAIL.CELLULE DU FSE POUR UN ORGANISME PRIVE	01.07.81-	260	699.800/0	
	۱,۰	TITISTERE DU TRAVAIL	31.12.91	25.580	76-740-000-0	
	,,	TITISTERE DU TRAVAIL	01:01:81-	34.445	103-337.299/0	
	1,4	TITISTERE DU TRAVAIL	03;012817	1.200	3-960-000-0	
		TITISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR ENSEMBLE ORGANISTES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	833	12-164.755/0	
	1	TITISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR ENSETHLE ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	205	245.025/3	
	-1	TITISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR ENSEMBLE ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	8.252	25.051.460.0	
•	1	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR ENSEMBLE ORGANISMES PRIVES	01:02:61-	36	150.810.0	
	1	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR ENSEMBLE ORGANISMES PRIVES	01:01:81-	405	796.840.0	
	1	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLUE FONDS SOCIAL EUROPEEN POUR ENSEMBLE ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81-	47	77.026.0	
		MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FONDS SOCIAL EHROPEE' POUR ENSEMBLE ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.61-	19	122.825.0	
	1	TIVISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLUE FONDS SOCIÁL EUROPEN POUR ENSEMBLE ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81-	84	149.043.0	
	1.1	TIVISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FONDS SOCIAL EUROPEEN POJA ENSEMBLE ORGANISHES PUELICS	01:07:81-	13	40-400-0	
-	1	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLUE FUNDS SUCIAL EMPOPEE, POUR ENSEMBLE DIUGGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	66	165.918.0	
	1	TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FONOS SOCIAL EUROPET POUR ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	24	107.525/0	

1	2	3	4	5	TRAYCYES 1 2 3
•	1	TITISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FONDS SOCIAL EUROPEEN POUR ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	312	924.652.0
	r-1	TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FONDS SOCIAL EUROPEEN POUR ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISHES PRIVES	01.07.81-	50	194,445,0
	-1	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	425	7.091.035/0
	ĿŢ	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01:01:81-	67	2,237,182,0
	7 -	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	1.329	17.395.438/0
	-1	MINISTERE DE L'INDUSTRIE	01.01.81-	121	525.000/0
	27	TIVISTERE DU TRAVAIL-CELLULE FSE POUR ENSEMBLE ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.10.81-	48ე	3.200.000/0
	٥٠	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL-CELLULE FSE POUR ENSEMBLE ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81-	188	4.456.153/0
	-7	MIMISTERE DU TRAVAIL-CELLULE FSE POUR ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.37.81-	485	5.589.551/0
•	- <u>-</u>	SECRETARIAT GENERAL A LA FORMATION PROFESSIONNELLE SGFP	01.01.81-	2.145	7.975.106/3
	≈€	AFPA	01.01.81-	1.500	15.592.500/0
	-€	SGFP	01.01.81-	1.500	9.281.250.0
	÷€	SECRETARIAT D'ETAT AUX DOM-TOM	01:01:81-	9.055	30.728.500/0
	₹	TIVISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGAINES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	364	3.901.188/0
4	4 €	TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL POUR SECRETARIAT D'ETAT AUX DOM-TOM	01.01.81-	1.364	4.041.332/0
	ΑĒ	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL POUR DIVERS ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01:01:81-	1.182	12.957.340/0
	GÉ	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL POUR SICA-ASSOBAG	01:01:81-	1.425	464.750/0
	4 E	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL POUR CCI POINTE A PITRE	01.01.81-	138	3.341.280/0

1	2	,	4	! ! 5	TRAYCHES
		3			1 2 3
F	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	4.075	25.319.159/0
	RE .	TIMISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR L'AFPA ET LE SGFP	31.12.81	1.839	33.799.705/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01:01:81-	1.879	3.988.171.0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR LE SECRETARIAT D'ETAT AUX DOM ET POUR LE SGFP	01.01.81-	1.965	26.095.265/3
	46	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSENTE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS.CC DE FORT-DE-FRANCE, CHAMBRE DE METIERS.CHAMBRE D'AGRICULTURE	01.01.81-	621	4.672.634.0
15. 5.4	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE ESE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	421	5.015.139.0
	RE	AFPA	01.01.81-	1.320	9.147.600/0
	яĒ	Safe	01.01.81-	0	5.445.000.0
	RE	AFPA	01.01.31-	1.016	14.094.542.0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMS PUBLICS	01.01.81-	340	10.626.332/0
	RE	TIVISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	493	2.916.482.0
	ЯÉ	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	1.973	12.918.677,0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	313	1.262.328,0
	ЙĒ	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	61	72.500.0
	AE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	144	2.900.000/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	260	1.164.942.0
	AE	TIVISTERE OU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	172	1.585.000/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	1.083	10.799.655/0

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES 1 2 3
F	٩E	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	144	2.294.080.0
	R€	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CÉLLULE ÉSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	75	506.500/0
	RE	TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CÉLLULE ESE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	489	11.247.882.0
	٩E	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	45	817.255/0
	RE	"INISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE ESE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01:01:81-	253	410.934/0
	R€	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE DU UN UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01:01:81-	487	2.124.351/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE ESE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	408	8.328.911.0
	4€	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	6	26.780/0
	٩E	MINISTÈRE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	146	795.720/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.51-	292	3.90i.112 <i>+</i> 0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE ESE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	55	195.125/0
	q E	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	89	2.004.150/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE ESE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	432	3.522.204.0
	q E	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.01.81-	45	37.152/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE PSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01:01:81-	12	218.040/0
	RÉ	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01:01:81-	75	223.437/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01:01:81- 31:12:81	56	204.750/0
	RE	MINISTÈRE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01:01:81-	60-	217.800/0

•

•

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
F	НE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	157	699.293/0
	HE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01101281-	45-	148.500/0
	RE	TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01101281-	110	340.200/0
	HE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE PSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	546	1.636.880/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	210	1.267.453.0
	нE	TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	457	1.382.175.0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CÉLLULLE PSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	30	46.460.0
	RE	TITISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	64	331.200.0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	114	777.312.0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	03:01:81-	599	3.162.223.0
	НE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	85	179.400/0
	R€	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.01.81-	1.059	,5.914.500/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01:01:81-	15	163.525/0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULLE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	031012817	64	529.000/0
	RE	TINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR LE SGFP	01101281-	157-	1.544.817.0
	RE	SINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CÉLLULE FSE POUR LE SGFP	01:01:81-	110	467.306/0
	ą E	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE PSE POUR LE SGPP	01:01:81-	546	1.337.250.0
	RE	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR LE SGFP	01:01:81-	210	1.450.000/0

,	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
					1 2 3
F	PΕ	TIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81-	164	450.658/0
	RE	MEN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE Pour un ensemble d'organismes publics	01:09:81-	12	136.500/0
	PE	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81-	105	421.750-0
	÷Ε	TIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81-	9	173.682/0
	e E	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01:07:81-	10	99.000/0
	¬ €	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81-	44	427,444/0
	46	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01:09:81-	123	1.242.352/0
	45	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81-	17	166.457/0 /
	- €	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PUBLICS	01.07.81-	37	261.017/0
	4€	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01:10:61-	648	686.000.0
	٩E	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSÉ POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	15	97.120/3
	4E	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	40	543.420/0
	9€	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGAVISMES PRIVES	01:07:81-	112	635.200/0
	٩E	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81- 35.06.92	60	426.888.0
	46	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	90	630.000/0
	RE	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	36	378.000-0
	46	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.10.61-	470	409,000/0
	# E	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION. CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	39	85.280/0

1	2	3	4	5	TRAYCHES 2 3
	 ∢€	MIN. DU TRAVAL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR LE SGFP	01.07.81-	99	260.920.0
	- -€	MIN. DU TRAVAL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR LE SGFP	01.09.81-	12	109.200/3
	÷E	MIN. DU TRAVAL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR LE SGFP	01.07.81-	105	275.000/0
	ΨĒ	MIN. DU TRAVAL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR LE SGFP	01.10.81-	649 <mark>.</mark>	212.000,0
	4 6	MIY. DU TRAVAL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE "SE POUR LE SGFP	01.10.81-	470	124.003/0
	4Ε	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE ESE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01:07:81-	70	157.488.0
	٦Ē	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	15	321.037.0
	4 E	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE Pour un ensemble d'organismes prives	01.07.81-	149	541.031.0
	4 E	TIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION? CELLULE FSE Pour un ensemble d'organismes privés	01.37.81-	5 6	565.000/0
	٦E	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.37.81-	478	2.872.677.0
	٦E	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	35.06.82	493	1.492.859.0
	٧E	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	85	261.041.0
1	нE	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POJR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	703	2.795.199/0
	ΑĘ	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE Pour un ensemble d'organismes prives	01.07.81-	599	858.000.0
	≈£	TIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	87	388.248.0
	A E	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE Pour un ensemble d'organismes prives	01.07.81-	63	333.329.0
	RΕ	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	305	1.479.928/3
į	RE	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81-	8.5	198.084/0

1	2	3	4	5	TRAYCHES
. ,	ÞΕ	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION, CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81- 30.06.82	72	
	46	MIN. DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSC POUR UN ORGANISME PUBLIC	01.07.81-	30	122.828.0
	16	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL ET DE LA PARTICIPATION CELLULE FSE POUR UN ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES ATION CELLULE FSE	01.01.81- 31.12.81	1.691	7.000.000.0
	16	MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL-CELLULE FONDS SOCIAL EUROPEEN POUR ENSEMBLE D'ORGANISMES PRIVES	01.07.81~ 30.06.82	293	2.468.500/0
1					
					·
	!				
	İ				
j					

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
					1 2 3
1	r G	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01:012817	403	249.909.996.0
	- 0	REGIONE AUTONOMA VALLE D'AOSTA	01.01.81-	20	i3.500.000.0
	- 1j	REGIONE VENETO	01.01.81-	1.387	824.999.998.0
	٠,	COOPSIND	01.01.81-	49	182.999.998.0
	- u	CENTRO ADDESTRAMENTO PROFESSIONALE LAVORATORI EDIL! DI BRIADISI	31.12.81	117	29.999.999,3
	4 3	SCUOLA EDILE BRESCIANA	01.01.81-	45	91.900.998,3
	٠.,	RESIONE CAMPANIA	01.01.81-	45	49.500.000/0
	≖'j	REGIONE PUGLIA	01.01.81-	216	770.000.000.0
	زه	ENTE FOMAZIONE NAESTRANZE EDILI E COMPLEMENTARI DI MILANO	01.07.31-	52	105.999.999/0
	٠.,	SCUOLA PROFESSIONALE EDILE DI CREMONA	33.06.82	20	(3,000,000,0
	- 0	COOPSIND	01.10.81-	33	70.599.999,2
	ۇ -	ENAID	01.09.81-	435	442.000.000.0
	ى د	ENAIP	01.09.81-	774	864.499.988.0
	FĘ	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01:01:81-	55	265.000.000.0
	# E	REGIONE AUTONOMA VALLE D'AOSTA	01:01:81-	50	
	FE	NEGIONE LIGURIA	01:01:81-	50	112.500.000/0
	f è	CIOFS-CENTRO ITALIANO OPERE FEMMINILI SALESIANE	01.03.81-	610	1.354.886.000/0
	Ft	SCUOLA DI PSICOSOCIOLOGIA DELL'ORGANIZZAZIONE	01:04:81-	, 30	159.000.000.0
		 		!	(

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
		***************************************			1 2 3
1	FE	SCUOLA DI PSICOSOCIOLOGIA DELL'ORGANIZZAZIONE	01.04.81- 31.03.82	3 ၁	120.000.000.0
	FE	SCUOLA DI PSICOSOCIOLOGIA DELL'ORGANIZZAZIONE	01.04.81-	30	159.000.000/0
	FE	BTE ITALIA SRL FORMAZIONE PROMOZIONE	15.01.81-	23	118.835.000/0
	Fm	STE ITALIA SRL FORMAZIONE PROMOZIONE	15.01.81- 31.12.81	23	118.835.000/0
	ŧē	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER ORGANISMI PRIVATI	01.01.81-	150	272.800.000/0
	F£	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER ORGANISMI PRIVATI	01.01.81- 31.12.91	100	197-120-000/0
	+ 6	ENAFLA	01.10.81-	50	192.500.000/0
	6 E,	REGIONE LAZIO	01.37.81- 31.12.51	300	450.000.000.0
	<i>e</i> e	REGIONE LAZIO	01.07.81- 31.12.81	56	85.170.894.3
	۴Ę	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01.07.81-	180	585.850.000/0
	FE	REGIONE EMILIA-ROMAGNA .	01.07.81- 30.06.82	235	591.527.500/0
	j٤	REGIONE MARCHE	01.05.81- 30.04.92	555	555.199.994.0
	ЗE	REGIONE PIEMONTE	01.01.81- 31.12.81	213	160.299.999.0
	€ن	REGIONE PIEMONTE	01.01.81- 31.12.81	17	25.000.000/0
	j5	REGIONE PIEMONTE	01.01.81- 31.12.81	35	33.000.000/0
	35	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01.01.81-	83	449,999,999-5
	; ; E	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01.01.81- 31.12.81	118	582.999.999/3
	ΰE	REGIONE LIGURIA	01.01.81- 31.12.81	8.5	313.599.799/3

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
					1 2 3
1	98	IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01.01.81-	299	1.143.599.990/0
	1, E	IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01.01.81- 31.12.91	887	1.356.999,991,0
,	ÞΕ	IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01.01.81- 31.12.81	53	204.000.000.0
	·2 E	REGIONE PIEMONTE	01.06.81- 31.12.81	949	1.739.999.977.0
	6 E	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01.07.81- 30.06.92	512	938.200.000.0
	.,E	REGIONE PIEMONTE	01.07.81-	245	217.499.999/0
	e €	REGIONE MARCHE	01.97.81-	371	239.999.999.0
	u E	PROVINCIA AUTONOMA DI BOLZANO	01.07.81- 31.12.81	185	92.600.000/0
	.₃€	REGIONE EMILIA ROMAGNA	01.10.81- 30.06.42	64	117.999.999-0
	, <u>e</u>	GEP1	01.37.81- 30.06.82	277	623.999.995,0
	ńE	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO PRIVATI	01.07.81-	657	884.999.996.0
	:. A	REGIONE BASILICATA	02.31.81~ 31.12.81	60	81.015.000/0
-	~A	REGIONE PUGLIA	01:01:81-	500	1.898.965.750/0
	ΨA	REGIONE EMILIA-ROMAGNA	01.01.81-	491	1.418.372.000-0
	нА	REGIONE LIGURIA	01.01.81-	795	1.944.312.085/0
	44	CONSORZIO PROVINCIALE ASSISTENZA E RIABILIT.DI GORIZIA	01.01.81-	67	231.159.958.0
	нА	CONSORZIO PROVINCIALE PER L'ASSIST.SPECIAL.DI PORDENONE	01.01.81- 31.12.81	119	336.894.234.0
	нА	CONSORZIO PER L'ASSISTENZA MEDICO PSICO PEDAGO.DI UDINE	01.01.81-	171	489.802.265/0

1	5	3	4	5 -	TRANCHES 2 3
	4	181	01:01:61-	166	986.439.946/3
	14	REGIONE MARCHE	01.01.81-	102	378.845.486.3
	-1 A	REGIONE VENETO	01.01.81-	200	189.440.000/0
	-4 à	REGIONE VENETO	01.01.51-	684	648.754.701.0
	-14	REGIONE VENETO	01.01.81-	119	113.532.073/0
	-4	ENAIP (ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE)	01.01.91-	202	700.000.000.0 750.000.000.0 800.000.000.0
	A	OPERA JUVENTUTIS	01.01.81-	80	351-111-509/0
	7- A	REGIONE PIEMONTE	01:01281-	373	497.511.877.0
	a	REGIONE PIEMONTE	01:01:61-	373	497.511.877.0
	4	REGIONE BASILICATA	01.10.81-	78	154.770.000/0
	μΔ	REGION FRIULI-VENEZIA GIULIA	01.10.61- 30-09-82	85	171.820.341/0
	-1 A	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01.10.81-	410	1.724.521.478-0
	-14	REGIONE TOSCANA	01.10.81-	200	456.000.000/0
	A	REGIONE TOSCANA	01.10.81-	997	898.055.555.0
	;- A	REGIONE TOSCANA	01.10.81-	333	296.018,519/0
	нА	REGIONE AUTONOMA VALLE D'AOSTA	01.07.81-	42	130-134.495.0 243.748.815.0
	A	REGIONE DEL VENETO .	01.10.81-	200	292.000.000-0
	A	REGIONE DEL VENETO	01.10.81- 30.09.82	385	543.739.588/0

,	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
					1 2 3
1	£	REGIONE DEL VENETO	01.10.81- 33.09.82	256	362.150.599.0
	11.0	IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01.07.81- 30.06.92	21	198.840.371.0
	-4	ENAIP	01.07.81-	200	800.000.00022
	44 А	ENAIP	01.10.81-	42	139-980-197-0
	11.6	ENAID	01.10.81~	513	1.638.667.253/3
	n A	EVAIP	01.10.81- 30.09.82	705	2,643.850.000/0
	A	PROVINCIA AUTONOMA DI TRENTO	01.10.81- 30.09.82	8 5	299.651.797.0
	-14	PADRI TRINITARI VENOSA	01.10.81-	100	486.772.442.0
	<u> ۽</u> ر	MIMISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI 9 REGIONI	01.01.61-	200	221.659.000/0
	ĴΕ	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI 9 REGIONI	01.01.81- 31.12.93	235	785.364.500.0
	J E	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI 9 REGIONI	01.01.81- 31.12.81	184	1,039.995.000/0
	٦E	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI 9 REGIONI	01.01.81-	715	2,958,317,250,0
	JΕ	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI 9 REGIONI .	01.01.81-	50	157.500.000/0
	٦E	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI 9 REGIONI	01.01.81-	493	777.686.099-0
	ĴΕ	RESIONE LOMBARDIA	01.01.81-	8.140	6,406.688.750.0
	JΕ	REGIONE MARCHE	01.04.81-	3	150.000.000,0
	31,	REGIONE MARCHÉ	01.04.81- 31.03.92	260	819.000.000/3
	ję	REGIONE LIGURIA	01.01.81-	513	3_189.281.500.0

,	2	3	4	. 5	TRANCHES
					1 2
1	, he	RESIONE DEL VENETO	01.01.81- 31.08.81	4.200	3.156.300.000/0
	ĴΕ	REGIONE PIEMONTE AI SENSI DELLA LEGGE 845/78 FONDO DI ROTAZIONE	01.01.81-	120	567.600.000/0
	JΕ	IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01.01.81- 31.12.81	75	326.598.500/0
	Jé	IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01.01.81-	703	2.537.955.866/0
l.	1€	FORMEDIL	01.01.81- 31.12.81	405	668.850.000/0
) E	FORMEDIL .	01.01.81- 31.12.91	235	779.745.000/0
	J€	CAMERA DI COMMERCIO DI BRINDISI	01.03.81-	25	81.977.500/0
	,€	CAMERA DI COMMERCIO DI REGGIO EMILIA	01.04.81-	54	214.830.000/0
	JΕ	BTE ITALIA FORMAZIONE PROMOZIONE	15.01.81- 31.12.82	20	130.718.500.0
	٦E	IAL-CISL	01.01.81-	800	1.766.879.000/3
	Jέ	CNOS-FAP CENRO NAZIONALE OPERE SALESIANE FORMAZIONE E AGGIONAMENTO PROFESSIONALE	01.01.81-	63	226.285.920/3
	٦E	COMP.INT.DELLE CARR.LETTO E DEL TURISMO-VIA GRADISCA 29-ROMA	01.02.81- 31.01.82	35	39.200.000/0
	ηE	CENTRO ITALIANO DI SOLIDARITA:	01.01.81- 31.12.81	120	401.250.000/0
	JΕ	CIDFS-CENTRO ITALIANO OPERE FEMMINILI SALESIANE	01.03.81-	625	1.673.887.236.0
) E	CIOFS-CENTRO ITALIANO OPERE FEMMINILI SALESIANE	01.03.81-	80	270.000.000-0
	JΕ	ENASCO	01.01.61-	25	30.000.000/0
	3.6	AZIENDA "LA GRASTA"/CALTANISETTA (SICILIA)	01.04.81-	80	190.080.000/0
	JΕ	REGIONE LIGURIA	01.09.81-	3.134	5.594.780.800-0

• *

1	2	3	4	. 5	TRAVCHES
					1 2 3
I	J É	REGIONE PEL VENETO-PUBBLICA AMMINISTRAZIONE	01.39.81- 31.08.92	1.200	1.272.600.000/0
	Jt	REGIONE DEL VENETO-PUBBLICA AMMINISTRAZIONE	01.09.81-	2.300	2,596.125.000.0
	J÷	REGIONE FRIULI VENEZIA GIULIA DIREZIONE REGIONALE DELLA FORMAZIONE PROFESSIONALE	01.10.81-	1.053	1.519.999.997/3
	ĴĒ	REGIONE FRIULI VENEZIA GIULIA DIREZIONE REGIONALE DELLA FORMAZIONE PROFESSIONALE	01.10.81-	980	1.272.040.000/3
-	νĒ	REGIONE UMBRIA	31.09.81-	445	707.388.000/0
	, €	REGIONE MARCHE	01.09.81-	900	1,432.200.000.0
	≟ر	RESIONE LOMBARDIA	01.07.81-	45	169.750.000/0
	۽ر	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01.07.81- 30.06.82	655	2.921.875.000/0
	٤ د	REGIONE PIEMONTE	01.07.81-	110	705.362.500/0
	۽ ر	REGIONE LIGURIA	01.10.81-	528	1,879.000.000/0
	JÉ	REGIONE LIGURIA	31.10.81- 30.09.82	630	2.138.800.000.0
. j	J E	REGIONE EMILIA ROMAGNA	01.07.817	524	1,749.279.875/0
) <u>E</u>	REGIONE LAZIO	01.07.81-	400	600.000.000.0
	J ii	REGION TOSCANA	01.10.81-	315	567.356.250/0
	۽ ر	REGION TOSCANA	31.05.87	220	410.209.250/0
	JΕ	REGION TOSCANA	01.10.81-	3.200	4.633.800.000/0
*	J E	CENTRO RICERCHE FLAT	01.07.81-	4	33.600.000/0
ļ	غاز	COFECREGOP ASSOCIAZIONE LEGA COOPERATIVE	01.07.81-	30	96.612.000/0

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
					1 2 3
1	λĒ	PROTER-PIAZZA DELLA LIBERTA 12 SPOLETO	01.08.81-	22	110.880.000/0
	JΕ	EUROSERVIZI(EUSER)	01.09.81- 31.08.82	400	1,773.867.500/0
	ıξ	CIOFS-CENTRO ITALIANO OPERE FEMMINILI SALESIANE	01.10.81-	90	\$19.750.000.0
	ţΕ	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE	01.09.81- 01.08.82	800	1.931.292.000-0
	٦Ę	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE	01.09.81-	500	1.128.575.000/0
	jΕ	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE	01.07.81- 30.06.82	280	625.762.500.0
	JΕ	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE	01.37.81-	250	498.339.000·0
	ĴĒ	CODPSINO	01.10.81-	160	665.853.750/0
	3 દ	COOPSINO	01.10.81-	42	155.925.000/3
	٤٤	UNIONCAMERE	01.09.81-	15	90.000.000/0
	JΕ	CAMERA DI COMMERCIO DI PEGGIO EMILIA	01.11.51-	35	356.600.000.0
	JΕ	IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01.37.81-	40	140-000.000-0
	٦Ę	FORMEDIL	01.07.81-	830	2.796.675.900/0
	J€	FORMEDIL	01.07.31-	1.010	2:763:130:000/0
	۽ ر	IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01:01:81-	840	784-392.000/3
	J F	EFIN	01.01.61-	70	72.105.033/0
	, F	181	01.07.81-	300	296.075.520/0
	j F	ENTE VAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE	01.07.81-	50	53.882.400.0

	n	7	2		
<u>.</u>	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE	01 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 -	160	156.748.800.0	
٦.	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE	01.27.81-	53	51.923.040.0	
7	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO E DELLA PREVIDENZA SOCIALE	31.12.81	O	272.374.390/0	
-	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO E DELLA PREVIDENZA SOCIALE	31.12.81	C	49.522.616/0	
₹	HINISTERO DEL LAVORO E DELLA PREVIDENZA SOCIALE	01.21.81-	n	33.015.078.0	
7	REGIONE DEL VEHETO	30.00.81	132	118.061.917.2	
7	ANAP LEONE XIII	31.04.81-	513	3.317.479.397.0	
-	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERI-ENTE PUBBLICO- DIREZIONE GENERALE FMIGRAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	31.09.81	7.064	28.857.623.0	
7	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERITENTE PUBBLICOT DIREZIONE GENERALE EMIGRAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	31.09.81-	C	17.118.929.3	
~	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERI-ENTE PUBBLICO- DIREZIONE GENERALE EMIGAAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	31.08.82	54.209	3.937.700.0	
~	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERI-ENTE PUBBLICO- DIREZIONE GENERALE EMISAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	31.06.82	0	36.683.420.0	
7	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERI-ENTE PUBBLICO- DIREZIONE GENERALE EMIGRAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	31.09.81	7.766	2,562,948,3	
-	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERI-ENTE PUBBLICO- BIREZIONE GENERALE EMIGOAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	01.09.81-	G	24,455,613,3	
7	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERI-ENTE PUBBLICO- DIREZIONE GENERALE EMIGRAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	01.09.81.	765	1.730.234.0	
₹.	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERI-ENTE PUBBLICO- DIREZIONE GENERALE EMIGRAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	31.06.82	o	3.668.342.0	
÷	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERI-ENTE PUBBLICO- DIREZIONE GENERALE EMIGRAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	31.09.81-	1.208	158,961.0	
: *	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTEMINENTE PUBBLICO. OINEZIONE GENERALE EMISPAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	31.06.82	C	2,690,117,0	
7	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERIFENTE PUBBLICO- DIRECTIONE GENERALE EMIGRAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	01.09.81-	6.128	360.960.0	

1	2	3	4	5	TRAYCHES
1	i	MINISTERO AFFARI ESTERI-ENTE PUBBLICO- DIREZIONE GENERALE EMIGRAZIONE E AFFARI SOCIALI	01.09.81- 31.08.82	0	30.545.061/0
	-1	INTERCOASCIT BELGIO-ENTE PRIVATO	01.09.81- 31.08.82	. 0	14.233.167.0
	i	INTERCOASCIT BONN ENTE PRIVATO	01.09.81- 31.08.82	0	2.370.972/0
j	'1	INTERCOASCIT PARIGI-ENTE PRIVAO	01.09.81-	3	1.002.683.0
	\ 1	COASCIT-LUSSEMBURGO-ENTE PRIVATO	01.09.81÷ 31.08.82	0	1.491.303/0
	.1	INTERCOASCIT OLANDA ENE PRIVATO	01.29.81-	1.001	184,611/0
	١,	INTERCOMIT GRAN BRETAGNA-ENTE PRIVATO	01.39.81- 31.08.82	0	97.896.3
	• 1	CENTRO ALCIDE DE GASPERI 38040 MONTE BONDONE-TRENTO ORGANISMO PRIVATO	01.09.81-	122	264.120.620+0
	٠1	ISTITUTO PADRE BECCARO-MILANO-VIA MARCAYTONIO COLONYA, 24 ENTE PRIVATO	01.09.81- 31.08.82	10	14.673.368/0
. :	!	COLLEGIO S.STEFANO-ISTITUTO FIGLIE DEL SACRO CUORE DI GESU 62019 RECANATI(MC)-P.ZZA S.STEFANO ENTE PRIVATO	01.09.81- 31.08.82	P	12.227.807.3
 	٠:	ISTITUTO S.CARLO-60027 OSIMO(AN) VIA MOLINO MENSA/1-ENTE PRIVATO	01.39.81- 31.08.82	32	17.118.929.0
i i	1	RESIDNE PUGLIA	01.09.81- 31.12.91	489	24.996.572/0
•	٠1	REGIONE AUTONOMA FRIULI-VENEZIA GIULIA-ENTE PUBBLICO	01.10.81- 15.06.82	163	45.438.530/3
1	-1	REGIONE DEL VENETO-GIUNTA REGIONALE-ENTE PUBBLICO	01.09.61-	391	26.998.997.0
	:1	REGIONE CALABRIA-GESTIONE DIRETTA	01.09.81- 31.08.52	124	31.821.400/0
1	11	C.S.E.R.PRESSO SCUOLA MEDIA COSENZA VIA DEGLI STADI	01.09.81-	215	22.973.603.0
	I	RESIONE ABRUZZO	01.09.81- 31.08.52	33	47.647.361/0
	1.	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE(ENAIP) ENTE PARITETICO SOCIALE	01.39.81- 31.08.52	388	123.781.107/0

•

,

-	2	3	4	5	TPAYCHES 1 2 3
- -		ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE (ENAIP) ENTE PARITETICO SOCIALE	01.09.81-	1.168	878.055/0
	-1	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE(ENAIP)	01:09:81-	223	26.569.0
	-:1	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE(ENAIP) ENTE PARITETICO SOCIALE	01:09:81-	463	317.923.0
	1	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE(ENAIP)	01:09:61:	91	89.833.0
	-1	ENTE NAZIONALE ACLI ISTRUZIONE PROFESSIONALE(ENAIP)	01.09.81-	100	1.173.869/0
	٠,	REGION LAZIO-MEZZOGIORNO	01.10.81.	97	22.856.216.0
	-1	IAL-CISL-ENTE DI EMANAZIONE SINDACALE:BOLOGNA	31.07.81-	17	7.964.704/0
	:	REGIONE DEL VENETO-PUBBLICA AMMINISTRAZIONE	01.10.81-	122	159.572.875.0
		REGIONE BASILICATA	01.77.81-	97	18.159.293/0
	i	EFMEC VIA PARAVIA 63 MILANO	01.10.81-	9	44.631.494.0
	11	REGIONE LAZIO-FESR	01.10.81-	195	45.712.433-0
		REGIONE LAZIO-ALTRE	01.10.81-	234	73.714.109/0
	·i	4.4.6.6.	01.38.81-	97	18.158.293.0
	27	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01.01.81-	542	1,398.085.000/0
!	٦٢.	REGIONE PIEMONTE	01.01.81-	215	199.375.000/0
	۵Ţ	REGIONE MARCHE	01.04.81-	9 9 0	930-200.000/3
	L 7	REGIONE LIGURIA	01.01.81-	170	451.200.000/0
	PT	REGIONE LIGURIA	01.01.81-	84	105.000.000.0

.

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
I	PŢ	COOPSIND	01-01-81-	277	692.919.581/3
	PT	COOPSIND	01:01:81-	12	31.423.260/0
	PT	IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01:01:81-	225	857.145.000.0
	PT	IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01:01:817	249	505.549.991.0
	PT	-IRI-ISTITUTO PER LA RICOSTRUZIONE INDUSTRIALE	01.31.81-	45	77.000.000/0
	PT	GEP1	01.01.81-	58	111.900.000/0
	PŤ	UNIONCAMERE PER CONTO DELLE CAMERE DI COMMERCIO LOCALIZZATE IN PROVINCE AD ALTA CONCENTRAZIONE DELLE IMPRESE DEL SETTORE LEGNO	15.03.81- 15.12.81	25	68.750.000/0
	PŤ	UNIONCAMERE PER CONTO DELLE CAMERE DI COMMERCIO LOCALIZZATE IN PROVINCE AD ALTA CONCENTRAZIONE DELLE IMPRESE DEL SETTORE LEGNO	15.03.81-	175	437.500.000.0
	PŢ	CAMERA DI COMMERCIO/INDUSTRIA/ARTIGIANATO ED AGRICOLTURA DI TEMANO	01.01.81-	240	484.000.000.0
	PТ	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI AZIENDE PRIVATE	31.12.81	1.100	2,540.000.000/0
	₽Ţ	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI AZIENDE PRIVATE	01.01.81-	600	2.440.000.000.0
	PŦ	MIMISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI AZIENDE PRIVATE	01:01:81-	60	188.250.590/0
	PT	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01.07.81- 30.06.92	456	1.123.142.200/0
	PŢ	RESIONE LOMBARDIA	01.07.81-	184	421.679.992/3
	PT	RESIONE LIGURIA	01:10:61-	182	337.759.000/0
	PT	REGIONE PIEMONTE	01-07-81-	203	243.749.999-0
•	₽Ţ	REGIONE LAZIO	01.37.81-	15	27.000.000.0
	PT	REGIONE EMILIA-ROMAGNA	01.07.81-	1.056	2.454.425.500/0

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES 1 - 2 3
1	PΤ	IRI	01.07.81-	240	759.625.000/0
	PT	UNIONE ITALIANA DELLE CAMERE DI COMMERCIO	01.09.81- 31.08.92	140	242.550.000/0
	μŢ	UNIONE ITALIANA DELLE CAMERE DI COMMERCIO	01.09.81-	8ე	278.400.000.0
	FT	JAIONE ITALIANA DELLE CAMERE DI COMMERCIO	01.09.81-	169	252.000.000.0
	PT	C.C.1. ARTIGIANATO ED AGRICOLTURA DI TAGANTO	01.09.81-	150	231.000.000.0
	PT	COOPSIND	01.09.81- 31.08.82	30	52.700.009/3
	27	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI PRIVATI	01.07.81- 33.06.82	363	099.802.000.3
	PT	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI PRIVATI	01.07.81- 30.06.82	265	423.520.000.0
	74	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI PRIVATI	01.07.81- 30.06.82	268	840.432.000/0
İ	PŤ	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI PRIVATI	01.07.81-	424	1.117.199.999/0
İ	PT	MIMISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI PRIVATI	01.07.81~ 30.06.82	0	230.000.000.0
	₹Ē	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI VARIE IMPRESE	31.12.81	6.006	16,648.632.000/0
	RE	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI VARIE IMPRESE	01:01:81-	509	1.232.680.000/0
	a E	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI VARIE IMPRESE	01.01.81-31.12.81	, 670	663.300.000/0
	AE	EFIM	01:01:81-	850	2.496.406.550/0
İ	RE	EFIM	01.01.81-	128	231.037.000>0
	RE	EAEF	01.01.81-	1.243	3.873.120.523/0
	RE	ENEL	01.21.81-	119	623.559.967.0

:

,	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
		***************************************			1 2 3
1	₽E	GEP1	01.01.81-	613	2.124.229.250/0
	₽Ē	CENTRO DI ADDESTRAMENTO PROFESSIONALE E CULTURALE PER LAVORATORI EDILI E AFFINI DELLA PROVINCIA DI BRINDISI CENTE PARITETICO SOCIALE).	01:01:81-	140	jo7.800.000/o
	HE	CASSA PER 1L MEZZOGIORNO	01.01.81-	263	4.898.379.100/0
	46	I.R.I.	01.01.81-	12.988	43.460.942.543/0
	٩E	I.R.I.	01.01.81- 31.12.81	3.720	11.393.824.567/0
	4 E	1.8.1.	01.01.81-	750	574.695.000/0
	₹€	I.R.1.	01.01.81-	800	557.280,000/0
	RE	ENI	01.01.81-	2-304	9.765.728.500/0
	~€	ENI	01.01.81-	640	4.355.736.550/0
	4 E	ENTE SCUOLA EDILE DI LATINA (ENTE PARITETICO SOCIALE)	01.01.81-	50	12.320.550/0
	RE	ENTE SCUOLA PER LE MAESTRANZE EDILI DELLA PROVINCIA DI REGGIO CALABRIA.	01.01.81-	140	61.168.107/0
	9 E	CENTRO PER LA FORMAZIONE PROFESSIONALE MAESTRANZE EDILI DI VICENZA	01.01.81-	85	20.000.000×0
	ЯE	AMMINISTRAZIONE PROVINCIALE DI TERAMO	01.01.81-	125	848.232.000/0
	RE	ANAP LEONE XIII	01:01:81-	210	808.841.212.0
	RE	CONFARTIGIANATO DELEGAZIONE CALABRIA	01:01:81-	30	138.285.840/O
	RE	REGIONE TOSCANA	01.01.81-	310	268.177.000/0
	ΑE	RESIONE TOSCANA	01.01.61-	65	292.500.000/3
	RE	REGIONE MARCHE	01.04.81-	360	936.964.000/0

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES 3
1	 ₹	REGIONE MARCHE	01:04:81- 31:03:82	200	533.000.000/0
	96	REGIONE VALLE D'AOSTA	01.01.81- 31.12.81	953	2.119.170.000.0
	ąĘ	REGIONE VALLE D'AOSTA	01.01.81- 31.12.81	169	376.371.500/0
	٦E	REGIONE PUGLIA	01.01.81-	620	1.669.529.400/0
	46	REGIONE PUGLIA	01.01.81.	165	472.930.000/0
	4E	REGIONE PUGLIA	01.21.81- 31.12.91	396	1,105,385,952/0
	9.5	REGIONE PUGLIA	01.01.81- 31.12.91	120	39.716.875.0
	98	REGIONE PUGLIA	01:01:81- 31:12:81	24ე	646.140.000.0
! !	₽Ē	REGIONE LIGURIA	01.01.81-	. 12	33,600,000,0
	9 6	REGIONE SARDEGNA	03:21:81-	2.273	4,540.038.800/0
	46	REGIONE BAŞILICATA	02.31.81-	1.079	2.488:847.950>0
	₽E	REGIONE BASILICATA	01.02.81-	30ე	169.811.977.0
	٧E	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01:012817	593	2.299.727.600/0
	٩Ę	ENTE CULTURA ORIENTAMENTO PROFESSIONALE (ECOP)	01.01.61-	40	74-172-090-0
	45	REGIONE CAMPANIA	01:212:87	301	770.908.000-0
	Q E	ASSOCIAZIONE NAZIONALE S.MARIA DELLE GRAZIE	02.31.81- 31.12.81	260	523.409.300.0
	વિદ	COOPSIND	01.01.81-	31	A1+176+755+0
	∢ દ	COOPSIND	01.01.81-	9	72.805.910/0

į	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
-					1 2
	-€	SEVEL SPA	01.03.81-	500	471.429.000/0
1	₩€	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI VARIE IMPRESSE	01.07.81= 30.00.82	6.430	19.012.224.000.0
	48	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI VARIE IMPRESSE	01.07.81-	1.895	5.190.320.000/0
!	₹E	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER CONTO DI VARIE IMPRESSE	01.37.81-	1.400	1.320.001.200/0
	٦٤	REGIONE CAMPANIA PER CONTO DI VARIE IMPRESE	01.07.81-	217	437.886.680/0
	46	RESIONE LAZIO PER CONTO DI VARIE IMPRESE	01.07.81-	1.489	1.874.410,120/0
	+ ė	REGIONE LAZIO PER CONTO DI STANDA (CIVITAVECCHIA)	01.07.81-	36	30.249.009/9
	4 E	-REGIONE AUTONOMA VALLE D'AOSTA PER CONTO DELL'IMPRESA	01.07.81-	55	132.000.000/0
!	ii E	REGIONE CALABRIA PER CONTO DELL'ASSOCIAZIONE REGIONALE COOPERATIVE DI PRODUZIONE E LAVORO	01.07.81-	150	446.193.000/3
	¬.5	REGIONE CALABRIA PER CONTO DELL'ASSOCIAZIONE NAZIONALE COSTRUTTORI EDILI (ANCE)	01.07.81-	40	147.840.000/0
	٦E	AIGRABMCJ BYOLDBP	01.07.91-	173	1.313.775.000/0
	×٤	RESIONE LOUBARDIA PER CONTO DI VARIE IMPRESE	01.07.81- 30.06.82	861	2.479.909.000/0
į	¥£	RESIONE PUGLIA	01.07.81-	1.315	1.592.655.625/0
	48	REGIONE PUGLIA PER CONTO DI VARIE IMPRÈSE	91.57.81- 30.06.82	254	798.564.800/0
	46	PROVINCIA AUTONOMADI BOLZANO .	01.10.81-	531	511.618.500/0
	ñE	IST. ADDESTRAMENTO RICHERCHE ORGANIZZAZIONE SISTEMI	01.12.81-	120	355.849.856/3
1	₽ €	REGIONE BASILICATA	01.07.81-	200	350.955.000/0
	ĸĒ	REGIONE UMBRIA	01.10.81-	545	589.134.800/3

1	2		1	,	TRAVCHES
		3	4	5	
1	- 6	REGIONE UMBRIA	01.10.81- 30.09.82	450	419-479,000/0
	75	PROVINCIA AUTONOMA DI BOLZANO	01.09.81-	497	946.593.633.0
	76	PROVINCIA AUTONOMA DI TRENTO	01.10.81-	1.153	2,058.454.580/0
	n.E	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01.09.81-	587	720.128.868.0
	- €	REGIONE VENETO	01.39.81- 31.38.32	963	1,752.309.537.0
	4€	REGIONE SICILIA	01.10.81-	12.946	13.750.000.000/0
	υĘ	REGIONE CALABRIA	01.39.81- 30.08.92	5.300	8,435.000.000/0
	- E	REGIONE SƏRDEGNA	01.10.81- 33.09.92	6.144	6,774.450.650/0
	-6	REGIONE BASILICATA	01.10.81-	3.705	2.234.608.050/0
	٩Ε	REGIONE PUGLIA	01.10.81- 30.09.92	15-470	16.719.995.050/0
	٦E	REGIONE CAMPANIA	01.09.61~	24.000	24.035.000.000.0
	٦E	REGIONE MOLISE	01.10.81-	5.000	2.197.800.000.0
	ΨĒ	RESIONE ABRUZZO	01.09.81-	7.205	7.671.423.100/0
	πE	RESIONE LAZIO	16.39.81-	3.156	4.022.931.550/0
	÷Ε	IRI	01.07.81-	533	1.755.160.811.0
	٩£	IRI	01.07.81- 33.06.82	1.672	2.290-172.634/0
	÷€	IRI .	01.07.81- 30.06.82	1.000	877.500.090/0
	96	IRI	01.07.81-	1.000	965.250.000/3

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES 1 2 3
1	4 5	ENEL	01.07.81-	187	901.003.488/0
	r ë	ENEL	01.07.81-	972	2.571.694.627/0
	aΕ	EFIM	01.07.81- 30.06.82	699	2.256.966.750/0
	~€	EFI4	01.07.81-	81	162.465.000.0
	3 ξ	EFIM	01.09.81- 31.03.82	30	26.730.000.0
	٠.٤	GEP1	01.07.81-	185	490.867 . 100/J
	- ĕ	UNIONCAMERE	01.09.81- 31.08.82	10	57.500.000/0
	c F	UNIONCAMERE	01.09.81-	32	is4.000.000/o
	45	COOPSIND	01.10.81-	205	796.488.750/0
	4.5	COOPSIND	01.10.81-	896	2.754.939.000/0
	- 5	CENTRO FORMAZIONE MAESTRANZE EDILI MESTRE	01.07.81-	250	95.500.000/0
	46	CENTRO PROFESSIONALE PER LA FORMAZIONE DELLE MAESTRAN- ZE EDILI À PALLADIO VICENZA	01.07.81-	130	45.000.000/0
	÷ €	ENTE SCUOLA PER L'INDUSTRIA EDILIZIA E AFFINI DELLA PROVINCIA DI VITERBO	01.07.81-	30	70-000.000/0
	₽E	CENTRO FORMAZIONE MAESTRANZE EDILI DI BARI	01.10.81-	72	50.297.500/0
	٩E	ENTE SCUOLA INDUSTRIE EDILIZIE E AFFINI DELLA PROV. DI CASLIARI	15.09.81-	85	467.500.000/0
	٩E	ENTE NISSENO CASSA E SCUOLA EDILI	01.07.81-	60	114.422.000/0
	₹€	ENTE SCUOLA EDILE CATANIA	01.10.81-	150	212.107.500/0
İ	٩E	ENTÉ SCUOLA EDILE DELLA PROVINCIA DI LATINA	01.10.51-	25	10.285.000/0

, !	2	3	4	5	TRAYCHES
					1 2 3
	ΨE	CENTRO DI ADDESTRAMENTO PROFESSIONALE CULTURALE PER. LAVORATORI EDILI E AFFINI DELLA PROVINCIA DI BRINDISI	01.09.81- 35.06.82	185	98.450.000/0
	٨Ē	ENTE SCUOLA PROFESSIONALE EDILE TRAPANESE	01.10.81- 33.06.82	108	in4.500.000/0
	÷ē	REGIONE TOSCANA	33.09.81-	583	883.684.000/0
	., E	REGIONE PIEMONTE AI SENSI DELLA LEGGE 845/78	01.07.81-	500	240.000.000/3
	- €	REGIONE PIEMONTE AI SENSI DELLA LEGGE 845/78	01.07.81-	150	391.375.000/0
	٩E	REGIONE SARDEGNA	01.10.81-	1.552	3,321.781.100.0
1	4.6	REGIONE SARDEGNA	01.10.81-	1.455	3.925.874.000/3
1	۽ د	REGIONE FRIULI VENEZIA GIULIA	01.07.81-	450	499.375.000/0
	- £	REGIONE PUGLIA	31.12.91	385	620.933.500/0
1	7 €	RESIONE LOMBARDIA	01:01:81-	285	575.890.000.0
-	T E	PROVINCIA AUTONOMA DI BOLIANO	01.01.81-	60	180.000.000.0
	τ €	REGIONE MARCHE	01.04.61-	293	528.400.000.0
	7 E	GEPI	01:01:81-	150	270-369.000-3
	75	GEPI	01.01.81-	300	317.340.100.0
	ΤÉ	GEPI	01.01.81- 31.12.81	142	372-227-000-0
1	16	COMUNE DI FANANO	01.01.81-	45	140-400-000-0
	T s	ENI	31.12.81	750	5.205.610.311/0
i	TE	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER OPERATORI PRIVATI	01.01.61-	473	1.296.915.000/0

	! !		t		TRANCHES
1	?	3	4	5	1 2 3
I	7 6	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER OPERATORI PRIVATI	01.01.81- 31.12-81	478	746.319.600/0
	1 =	MINISTERO DEL LAVORO PER OPERATORI PRIVATI	01.07.81- 32.06.82	367	696.978.099/0
	τ=	ENTE NAZIONALE IDROCARBURI	01.10.81-	173	399.630.000-3
	₹ê	REGIONE LOMBARDIA	01.07.81- 30.06-92	463	792.515.100/0
	7 5	COOPSIND	01.29.81-	135	572.200.000/0
	7 5	REGIONE LIGURIA	01.10.81-	32	98.000.000/0
	7 5	REGIONE LIGURIA	01.10.81- 30.09-82	50	\$5.007.000/0
	7 €	REGIONE EMILIA-ROMAGNA	01.37.81- 30.06.92	183	283.728.500/0
		·			
					·
		•			
	!		!	!	

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
Iq	. ,	UDARAS NA GAELTACHTA STATE SPONSORED BODÝ	01.01.81-	845	326.332.0
į	- 7	NATIONAL REHABILITATION BOARD	01.01.81- 31.12.81	156	239.892.3
	fé	ANCO-THE INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY	01.01.81-	64	142.450/0
į	+ c	ANCO-THE INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY	01.01.81- 31.12.81	104	95.238/0
i 1	ŧē	ANCO-THE INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY	01.01.81-	30	25.112.0
į	fε	ANCO-THE INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY	01.01.81- 31.12.81	15	41.572.0
į	r- A	REMABILITATION INSTITUTE	01.21.61. 31.12.81	1.200	2.293.500/0
į	Д	COUNTY WEXFORD COMMUNITY WORKSHOP LTD	01.01.51- 31.12.81	95	99.153.0
	1- 4	ST.JOSEPHS INDUSTRIES WORKSHOP	71.71.81- 31.12.81	5 9	26.902.0
		MILL LANE TRAINING CENTRE	01.01.61-	30	64.550/0
; ;	-4	IRISCH WHEELCHAIR ASSOCIATION	01.01.81- 31.12.91	120	. 37.796/3
	., 4	PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED AND DISABLED DRIVERS ASSOCIATION	01.01.81- 31.12.81	40	6.600.0
į		ORDER OF MALTA	01.01.81-	34	15.000/0
į	4	NATIONAL REHABILITATION BOARD FOR VOLUNTARY BODIES	01.01.81- 31.12.91	4.570	3.567.975.0
	r A	NATIONAL REHABILITATION BOARD	01.01.81-	8.451	5.545.176.0
	٦£	NATIONAL MANPOWER SERVICE	01.01.81-	16.310	255.108.7
i !	jΞ	THE INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY (ANCO)	01.01.61- 31.12.81	11.560	12.250.700.0
	٦Ē	DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION	01.31.81- 31.12.81	6.505	1.518.000/0

, !	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
					1 2 3
IR	RE	SHANNON DEVELOPMENT COMPANY	31.12.81	100	31.900/0
İ	RE	SHANNON DEVELOPMENT COMPANY	01.01.81-	60	24.750/0
	RE	SHANNON DEVELOPMENT COMPANY	01.31.81- 31.12.81	100	13.200/0
	RE	AER LINGUS	01.01.81- 31.12.81	108	276.983/3
	R£	AN BORD TASCATCH MHARA TRISH SEA FISHERTES BOARD	01.01.81- 31.12.81	60	117.257.0
İ	RE	AN BORD LASCAIGH MHARA IRISH SEA FISHERIES BOARD	01.01.81-	144	147.308/0
į	RE	ELECTRICITY SUPPLY BOARD (ESB)	01.06.81- 18.12.81	18	35.614/0
İ	ĄĒ	ELECTRICITY SUPPLY BOARD (ESB)	05.31.81- 31.12.81	120	182.029.0
İ	КĒ	ELECTRICITY SUPPLY BOARD (ESS)	09.72.61-	20	7.723.0
į	AE	ELECTRICITY SUPPLY BOARD (ESB)	02.02.61-	12	2.728.9
į	₽€	ELECTRICITY SUPPLY BOAPD (ESB)	23.33.81-	45	17.059.0
į	RE	ELECTRICITY SUPPLY BOARD (ESB)	05-10-81- 27-11-81	16	5.128,3
İ	RÉ	ANCO-THE INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY.	01:01:81-	15.850	15.608.450/0
İ	RE	ANCO-THE INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY.	01.21.81-	652	660.000/0
į	RE	NATIONAL MANPOWER SERVICE	01.01.81-	15.850	140.002/0
	RE	DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENT	01.01.81- 31.12.81	652	69.850/0
	RE	DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION	01.01.81-	652	724.790.0
į	RE	AER LINGUS	01.07.81- 23.06.82	18	52.705/3

,

1	<u>2</u>	3	4	5	TRAVCHES 1 2 3
1a	1.	DEPARTMEN OF EDUCATION	01.09.81-	7.300	7.055.840/0
) %	MATIONAL MANPOWER SERVICE	01.09.81-	2.110	2.877/3
	ء ر	NATIONAL MANPOWER SERVICE	01.01.81-	7.750	1.698.320/0
		VATIONAL MANPOWER SERVICE	01.01.51-	6•000	1.716.000/0
	, ·	DEPARTMENT OF EQUCATION	01.01.81-	2.418	382.976/3
	۱ ر	DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENT	01:01:81-	333	190.476/0
	د ر	NATIONAL MANPOWER SERVICE	01.01.81-	1.202	286.000.3
	ı	NATIONAL MANPOWER SERVICE	01.01.81-	310	244.040.0
	7 E	NATIONAL MANPOWER SERVICE	01.01.81-	130	27.500/0
	4 દે	INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY (ANCO)	01.31.81- 31.12.81	8.800	6.225.037/0
	મં હે	INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY (ANCO)	01.01.81- 31.12.81	5.900	272.800/0
	٦Ě	INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY (ANCO)	01.01.81.	3.272	136.400/0
	≯€	INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY	01:01:01:	5.272	5.653.038/0
	a ij	SHANNON DEVELOPMENT COMPANY	01.01.81-	150	330.000/0
	٠Ē	KILKENNY DESIGN WORKSHOPS	01:01:81:	12	55,343/0
	¥€	IRISH MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE	01:01:81-	810	352.000/3
	٠.٤	ANCO-THE INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY	01.01.81-	10.000	685.850/0
	÷Ę	ANCO-THE INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTHORITY	01.01.81-	1.064	237,600/0

.

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES
19	AE	ACOT	01.09.81- 31.08.82	72	78.257/0
	R€	DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION	01.09.81- 31.08.82	800	54.010/0
	RE	CERT LTD.	01.09.81- 31.08.52	1.275	1.030.700/0
	9 €	CERT LTD.	01.39.81- 31.38.92	700	313.500/0
	a E	CERT LTD.	01.09.81- 31.05.82	204	117.700/0
	9.6	CERT LTD.	01.09.81- 31.08.82	. 90	20.350/0
	₹6	DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION	01.09.81-	1.275	663.051/0
	₹5	DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION	01.09.81- 31.08.82	104	53.957/0
	TE	INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTORITY (ANCO)	01.01.81+ 31.12-81	895	456.369.0
	TE	INDUSTRIAL TRAINING AUTORITY (ANCO)	01.01.81- 31.12.81	D	21.360-0
				1	
	_	,			
!					
					·
					·
		·			
!					

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES	
L	·- A	OFFICE DE PLACEMENT ET DE REED-TRAV-HAND.	01.01.81-	5	291,672/0	
	***	ASSOCIATION D'ASSUPANCE CONTRE LES ACCIDENTS.	01.01.81-	o	54.340/0	
	3.6	MINISTERE DE L'EDUCATION NATIONALE	01.01.81-	9	69.932.0	
	J E	MINISTERE DE L'EDUCATION NATIONALE	01.01.81-	150	11.594.000/0	
	J F	ADMINISTRATION DE L'EMPLOI (MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL)	01.01.81- 31.12.81	17	357.218/0	
	3 6	ADMINISTRATION DE L'EMPLOI (MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL)	01.01.81-	387	7.949.880-0	
	۳.	ADMINISTRATION DE L'EMPLOI (MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL)	01.01.81-	129	1.700.391/0	
	۳۱	-ADMINISTRATION DE L'EMPLOI (MINISTERE DU TRAVAIL)	01.01.81-	106	1.391.229/0	
					·	
		·				
		·				
						•

i					
				,	2
	.9 7	STICHTING ONTHINKELINGS-EN SAVERINGSFONDS VOOR DE	31.12.81	2	4,697.3
	<u></u>	DIRECTORANT-GENERAAL VOOR DE ARBEIDSVOORZIENING JVERMEIDSDIENST	01:012:81-	609	335,303.0
	<u>"</u>	DIRECTORANT-GENERAL VOOR DE ARJEIDSVOORZIENING OVERMEIJSOIENST	31-12-81-	125	0.000.386
	4	DIGECTIE COMPLEMENTAIRE SOCIALE VOORZIENIVGEN	01.31.81-	80	1.096.364.3
	<u> </u>	DIRECTIE COMPLEMENTAIRE SOCIALE VOORZIEWINGEN	31.12.81	263	3,289,093,0
	<u></u>	DIRECTORALT-GENERAL VOOR DE ARBEIDSVOORZIENING Overheidsdienst	31.12.91	125	6,275,3
	w 7	STICHTING OPVANG EN VORMINGSCENTRUM VOOR JONGEREN ULT SURINAME TE UTRECHT	01.01.81.	Ç	273.000.3
	4	MINISTERIE VAN ONDERWIJS EN KETENSCHAPPEN	31.12.81-	009	1,839,000,0
	<u>"</u>	SINISTERIE VAN ONDERNIJS EN METENSCHAPPEN	31.12.81	136	398,449,0
	w	MINISTERIE VAN ONDERLIJS EN LETENSCHAPPEL	31.12.81	240	725,000.0
	w T	MINISTERIE VAN SOCIALE ZAKEN, DIREKTORAAT GENERAAL VOOR DE ARBEIDSGOORZIENIG, TEN GUZSTE VAN EXDERIMENTELE DRENTSE GEDRIJVEN	31.12.81	25	719.534.0
	<u>.</u>	SERERAL VOOR DE ARBEIDSVOORZIENING	31-12-81	2.850	2.640.000.0
	7	MINISTERIE VAN GNDERELJS EN METENSCHAPPEN.	01.01.81-	120	3,247,160,0
	<u> </u>	DIRECTORALT-GENERAL YORR DE ARBEIDSYGORZIENING Overheidsbienst	31.12.31	1.150	3.680.000.0
		DIRECTORANT GENERAAL VOOR DE ARBEIDSVOORZIENING OVERMEIDSDIENST	01,21,81	056	4.767.500.0
		DIRECTORAL GENERAL VOOR DE ARBEIDSVOORZIENING Overmeidsbienst	01.01.81-	2.2	0.000.525
	w J	PIRECTORART GENERAAL VOOR DE ARBEIDSVOORZIENING Overheidsbienst	01.01.81- 31.12.81-	386	1.847,402.3
	w .	DIRECTORART GENERAAL VOOR DE ARBEIDSVOORZIENING OVERHEIDSDIENST	31.12.81	1.025	1.025 6.843.750.0

,	† †	- Company and a straight Spice of Straight Spice of Spice			
					•
	•				
~					1
_					
Ĭ					
2	106.250.0				
-					
	0 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2				1
	9				
	•				
	•				
	1 0				
2	, v				
•					
		•			•
	1 1e	··			
	F +F 000 				
•	0.0				
	1 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C				
• (•				
	: U : Z : ⊷				
	0 >				
	1				
	t w 1 m 1 c				
n	i -				
	1 0 1 0				
	>				
	1 4				
	: <u>.</u>				
	92 9				
	1 40 1 40				
	1 60 1 0⊶ 1 FW				
				·····	
~ ;			•		
-		. p. m. , p. 1911 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -		··	
i	i ≥ ≥				
_				,	

1	5	3	4 ,	5	TRAY	CHES 2	3
UK	Fig	MANPONER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	01,01,81-	80	224,522/0	. ~	
	FE	LAMBETH WOMEN'S WORKSHOP	01:04:81-	49	20.724.0		
i	FE	THE MATFIELD POLYTECHNIC	27.34.81-	so	51.000/0		
	fé	SRADFORD COLLEGE	02.03.81-	36	14.565/0		
	٤٠.	CHELMER INSTITUTE OF HIGHER EDUCATION	01.01.81-	. 30	C+826+5		
	F G	EAST LEEDS WOMENS WORKSHOP	05.10.617	120	33.486/0	35.170/0	36.639/
	FE	LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT	01.07.81-	7	3.878/0		
	f 6	CHELMER INSTITUTE OF HIGHER EDUCATION	28.09.81-	40	70.450/0		
	ņ€	PORT OF LONDON AUTHORITY	01:01:81-	173	135.637/2	38.996.0	44.662/
	4	STOTHERS OF CHARITY	01:01:81-	110	342.810-0		22000
	нА	DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES	01:04:81-	150	95.150/0		
	44	DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES	01:34:81-	75	82.392/0		
	44	DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES	01:04:81-	1.005	677.779.0		
	HÅ,	SOUTHERN HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD	01:04:81-	240	304.623/0		
	на	WESTERN HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD	01:04:81-	383	347.195/0		
	нА	INDUSTRIAL THERAPY ORGANISATION (ULSTER) LTD	01.01.81-	310	19.140/0	76.560-0	
	1- Д	MORTHERN IRELAND COUNCIL FOR ORTHOPAEDIC DEVELOPMENT	01:03:81-	۰۵	5.390/0	21.560.0	
	'nА	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (ESD)	01.01.81-	3.619	4.800.000/0		

					76A	NCHES
1	5	. 3		5	1	2
Ŀκ	1 🛆	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (ESD)	01.01.81-	877	712.500/0	
	44	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (ESD)	01:01:81-	293	237.500/0	
	,, 44	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (ESD)	01.01.81-	235	227.500,0	
	1, Д	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (ESD)	01:01:81-	437	422.500.0	
	-A	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (ESD)	01.01.81-	585	25.200.0	135.000/0
	-4	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (ESD)	01.01.81-	715	30.800.0	165.000/3
	1. 3	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	01.04.81-	1.920	2.887.289.0	·
	-1.3	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	01.04.81-	524	788.636.0	
	A	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	01.04.81-	524	1.093.978.0	
	es &	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	01.04.81-	483	1.009.826/3	
	πA	CITY OF BRADFORD METROPOLITAN COUNCIL	01:04:81-	200	46.210/0	41.660/0 41.260/0
	ня	COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF SOUTH TYNESIDE	01.04.81-	15	28.705,0	
	~ A	NORTHERN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY .	01:03:17	910	274.600,0	
	HÁ	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES	01.04.81-	561	646.121/0	
	44	MANPOWER SREVICES COMMISSION - EMPLOYMENT SERVICES DIVISION.	01:07:81-	720	91.777.0	
,	на	DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES SOARD FOR TWO PUBLIC BODIES	01.07.81-	1.850	1.076.272.0	
	A	TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL	31.07.92	17	14.560/0	
	٦A	BARNSLEY LOCAL EDUCATION AUTHORITY	01.09.81- 31.07.92	25	17.238.0	

-	7-9 0 1 1 1		•	•			in
3			01.07.81	18.	70.675.3	71-800-0	73.125.0
	· :	CLEVELAND SPASTICS SOCIETY	03107281-		3.750.0		
	₩ ``	MANPONER SERVICES COMMISSION 150	03127881-	C09	200.000.0		
		AALPOLER SERVICES CORNISSION 150	31.12.81	531	632.430.0		
		MALPOLES SERVICES COREISSION 150	31.12.91	\$	5.462.0		•
	<u> </u>	SAFOLER SERVICES CORRISSION 750	31.512.81	761	36.538.0		
		DEPOSED SERVICES CONTINUES ASSOCIATED	31.01.01.01.01.01.01.01.01.01.01.01.01.01	150	75.00070		
	<u></u>	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES	31.04.81.	14.612	13.215.821.3		
	** **	CONTRERN DEGLAND TRAILLES EXECUTIVES	31.01.81	372	158.006.3		
	<u></u>	COSTMERN IRELAND TRAINING EXECUTIVE	31.03.81-	300	21,15943	484.475.0	
	<u>.</u>	TOSTHERN IRELAND TRAINING EXECUTIVE	31.03.92	C	15.885.2		
	<u> </u>	COAMUNITY SERVICE VOLUNTRERS	31.03.82	C 46	22.400.0		
	* 	COMPUNITY SERVICE VOLUNTEERS	31.043.62	152	37.740.0		
	~ 	COSPUBITY SERVICE VOLUNTERS	31.03.82	Ç,	10,069.0		
	<u></u>	SUMPERLAND BOROUGH COUNCIL	31.12.91	100	47.385.0		
	¥	TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL	30.06.81	40	15.730.0		*
	1 <u>U</u>	COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF SOUTH TYNESIDE.	31.03.82	Ç	102,340,0		
	¥	Stabford College	05.05.81-	\$	15.605.0		

1	2	3	4	5	TRAVCHES
					23
UK	Jέ	TAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01:01:81-	\$5.900	16-207-500/0
	٦Ę	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	0];0];8];	91.500	11.234.020,0
	J€	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01.01.81- 31.12.81	13.390	7.169.787#0
	1=	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01.01.81-	4.313	3.171.613.0
	3 -	DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION FOR NORTHERN INELAND	01.09.81- 31.08.82	2.130	1.584.134/0
	ا ير ا ا	MORTHERN IRELAND TRAINING EXECUTIVE	01.09.81-	977	840.779,0
	J <u>t</u>	YANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (TRAINING SERVICES DIVISION)	01.08.81- 31.07.82	600	230.000.0
	25	DEPT OF MANPOWER SERVICES	01.07.81-	500	770.000/0
	15	DEPT OF MANPOWER SERVICES	01.07.81-	600	187.500/0
	۽ز	DISTRIBUTIVE INCUSTRY TRAINING BOARD	35.06.12	20	13.850/0
	٦٤	DISTRIBUTIVE INDUSTRY TRAINING BOARD	01.07.81- 35.06.82	40	29.700-0
	ָב ַ ר	JEST CUMBRIA TRAINING ASSOCIATION	17.08.81-	30	51.217.0
	76	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01:07:81:	350	185.500/0
	, :	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01:08:81-	5	1.875.0
	JĖ	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01.08.81.	25	9.375/0
	J E	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01.09.81-	250	\$05.000/0
	, e	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01.09.61-	250	125.000/0
	٦٤	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	01.07.81-	2.226	2.288.196.0

1	2	3	4	5	TRANCHES	
					12	3
Ur	JÉ	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	01.07.81- 30.06.82	1.248	1.173.063/0	
	J.F	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES	01:04:81-	1.000	115.919-0	
	٦۶	NORTHERN IRELAND TRAINING EXECUTIVE	01.04.81-	60 <u> </u>	14.630/0	
	J.F	COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF SOUTH TYMESIDE.	01.04.81-	50	38.147.0	
	۽ ر	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	31.12.91	\$1.500	12.063.375.0	
	۴ ر	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01:01:51-	27.415	4.057.992.0	
	۶۶	DEPT OF MANPOWER SERVICES	01.07.81-	600	69,397,0	
	۶ ر	TID GLAMORGAN COUNTY COUNCIL	01.07.81-	43	9.051.0	
	ء ر	CLEVELAND COUNTY COUNCIL	01.10.81-	150	31.575.0	
	, F	ROCHPALE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL	01.07.81-	50	21.050/0	
	۽ر	WEST CUMBRIA TRAINING ASSOCIATION	17.06.81- 16.08.82	5	809.0	
	JF	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	01.07.81- 30.06.82	299	194.773.0	
	J.4	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION .	31.01.81-	4.790	1.531.503.0	
	بدر	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01.01.81-	1.035	330.919.0	
	٦,4	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES	01:04: ⁸ 1-	951	207.141.0	
	j:4	SUNDERLAND BOROUGH COUNCIL	01.01.81-	100	31.487.0	
	۰,۲	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01.01.81-	13.000	1.547.449/0	
	J-4	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01.01.81-	13+390	2.449.280/0	

,	ž		4	5	TRAN	ICHES
		3		. , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	1	2
. !	. ,	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01:01:81-	5.000	773.724,0	
	٠, ر	MANPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01:01:81-	4.010	733.503.0	
		DEPT OF MANPOWER SERVICES	01:07:81-	100	17.811-0	
!	٠,	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01.07.81-	325	68.413.0	
	,.	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION	01.07.81-	150	31.575/0	
!	11	HOME OFFICE AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES	031.12.81	15.839	357,525,0	
1	'1	HOME OFFICE FOR ITSELF, SCOTTISH OFFICE AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES	01.01.81-	909	161.356/0	
	4,1	THE NATIONAL CENTRE FOR INDUSTRIAL LANGUAGE TRAINING	01.01.81-	100	46.500/0	
1	'1	MAMPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	01:01:61-	1.190	151.809/0	
	1	BRADFORD METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL	03:06:81-	100	12.000/0	9.000/0
	۱,۱	BRADFORD METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL	01.03.91-	30	6-600/0	
	٠1	HOME OFFICE	01:07:81-	150	22.000/0	
	11	CLEVELAND COUNTY COUNCIL (PUBLIC AUTHORITY)	31.08.81	114	17.075.0	
	"1	LOTHIAN REGIONAL COUNCIL-PUBLIC AUTHORITY	218006.61-	40	21.750/0	
į	41	CAMPEN COMMITTEE FOR COMMUNITY RELATIONS (REGISTERED CHARITY)	35.06.81	96	94.498,0	
	P 7	MEPWORTH AND GRANDAGE LIMITED	01:01:81-	240	32.944,0	32.944/0 13.775
	21	ENGINEERING INDUSTRY TRAINING BOARD	01:01:81-	2.600	800.000/0	
i	PT	ENGINEERING INDUSTRY TRAINING BOARD	01.01.81-	106	90.484.0	

.

1		3	4	5			
		***************************************			1		3
υ<	£ {	CERRICK AND JEFFERSON LIMITED	01:01:61-	25	1.160.0	•	
	-7	SPOTTISHOODE BALLANTINE LIMITED	01:01:81-	336	7.623/0		
	et	R.W.HOURD AND SON LIMITED	01.01.81-	98	6.850/0		
	6.7	R.ACKRILL LIMITED	01:01:81:	70	9.875/0	12.350.0	14.000/0
	21	W.E.BERRY LIMITED	01.01.81-	44	2.525/0	3-150-0	3.422/2
	-7	A. WHEATON AND COMPANY LTD	01.04.61.	. 117	10.213/0		
	PT	THE BIRMINGHAM POST AND MAIL LIMITED	01:01:81-	360	110.350/0		
	÷ 7	LANCASMIRE & CHESMIRE COUNTY NEWSPAPERS LIMITED	30.00.81-	6	260-0		
	-1	THE NORTH WESTERN NEWSPAPER CO.LTD.	01.01.81-	110	e.000/3		
	PT	MEREFORD AND WORCESTER COUNTY TRAINING CO-OPERATIVE	01.01.81-	310	425.000/0		
	۲ -	THE GENERAL ELECTRIC COMPANY LIMITED	01.07.51- 33.06.84	1.452	143.632/0	139.825/0	150,118,
	٠٦	NATIONAL WATER COUNCIL	031110812	59	132.417.0	į	
	-7	GREATER MAYCHESTER YOUTH ASSOCIATION	035.00.62	15	40.327.0		
	÷ E	BRITISH MATIONAL OIL CORPORATION	01.01.81-	30	38.780-0		
	٦٤	CONSTRUCTION 178	01.01.81-	480	109.500/0		
	4 5	DISTRIBUTIVE INDUSTRY TRAINING SOARD	01.01.81-	600	284.200-0	49.500/0	26.300-0
	-6	CLOTHING AND ALLIED PRODUCTS INDUSTRY TRAINING BOARD	01.01.81- 31.12.83	130	10.000/0	25.000/0	25.000/0
	4.5	CENTRAL ELECTRICITY GENERATING BOARD	01.01.81- 28.07.83	10	29.250/0	13.622.0	4.519/0

					SUTUPER
-	7		7	\$	
š	",	SETTISH RAIL	031-012-81	2,723	530.318.0
	'#' '	95C (IMDUSTRY) LTD ON BEHALF OF PRIVATE FIRMS	91.063.82	2.800	2.800.000.0
	1 1.	MERSEYSIDE COUNTY COUNCIL	03101281-	1.700	450.000.0
	<u>u</u>	*ERSETSIDE COUNTY COUNCIL	01:01:81-	723	200-000.3
	ب	DEFARITENT OF ELECOVERNT FOR PRIVATE COMPANIES 1% RECEIPT OF TAANNING ASSISTANCE UNDER SECTION 7 OF	51.04.81	3.633	3.000.000.0
	't'	SCOTTISM DEVELOPMENT AGENCY	03:24:812	873	176.000.0
	ų	MIGHLANDS AND ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT BOARD	31.12.81	\$60	0,000,000
	†	HIGHLANDS AND ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT BOARD	03121281	1.533	118.829.0
	u. r	#ELS# DEVELOPMENT AGENCY	01.34.81-	633	286.000.0
		COUNCIL FOR SMALL INDUSTRIES IN RURAL AREAS	30.01.81	1.050	76.800.0
	u.	MAYPOLER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	31.03.87	152	214,590/3
	ul :	MANPOAER SERVICES COMMISSION (150)	31.03.92	2.173	4,573,592,0
	w n	MANPOLER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	31.03.42	3.383	2,563,518,0
	444	444POLER SEAVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	03:04:81-	53	0.205.0
	w .	**************************************	31.03.82	2.391	4,335,278,0
	1) ·	WAYPOLER SERVICES COMMISSION (ESD)	31.03.81-	5.245	2.500.000.0
	ui i	444651ER SERVICES COMMISSION (ESD)	01.21.81-	\$33	256.000.0
······································	41 12	NORTHERN IRCLAND TRAINING EXECUTIVE	31.03.92	Č.	11.648.3

1	2	3	6	5	TRAY	CHES	3
U⊀		NORTHERM IRELAND TRAINING EXECUTIVE	01:01:81-	30	13.365/0		
	45	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR PRIVATE INDUSTRIAL UNDERTAKINGS IN NORTHERN IRELAND	01:01:81-	4.320	1.925.000/0		
	वद्	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01:04:81:	4.285	3.280.602/0		
	યક	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01.04.81-	2.700	1.019.975/0		
	ωē	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01.04.61-	6.143	1.049.745/0		
	, ,	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01.04.81-	150	30.127.0		
	72	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01:04:61-	173	195.888/0		
		DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01:04:81-	10	23.432/0		
	-4	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01.04.81-	16	3.532/0		
	√£	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01.01.81- 31.12.91	12	28.270/0		
	45	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01.04.81- 31.03.82	4	10.947/0		
	~ e	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01.04.81-	190	47.025/0		
	76	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01.04.61-	140	302,665/0		
	٦Ē	INJORK CRAFT PRODUCTS LIMITED	01:02:81-	50	15.930/0		
	٦٤.	RASCOCK POWER LTD	01.01.617	49	3.385/0		
	RE	NORTHERN COMPRESSORS LIMITED	01.01.81-	150	9.000/0	10.350/0	11.592.
	÷Ę	M.E.LA DIVISION OF PHILIPS INDUSTRIES	01.01.81-	217	5.226/0	3.221/0	8.978,
	ခင	MULLARD DURHAM LTD	01.01.81-	195	6.385/0	1.368-0	8.349/

1	2	3	4	5	TRA\	CHES	
							3
UK	· E	JEBBS POULTRY PRODUCTS LTD	01.01.81-	234	9.506-0	13.881/0	17.675/0
		CALEDONIAN AIRMOTIVE LTD	01.01.81-	480	13.200.0	10.120-0	10.164/0
	=	PLESSY MARINE	01.31.81.	300	13.650/3	8.085/0	•
	<u>.</u>	DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION FOR NORTHERN IRELAND	01.09.81- 31.08.92	536	359.766/3		
		DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES	01.07.81-	60ე	146,520/0		
		VORTHERN IRELAND TRAINING EXECUTIVE	01.08.92	916	377.759/0		
		DERWENTSIDE DISTRICT COUNCIL	01.07.61-	250	107.000/0		
		-CITY OF BRADFORD METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL	01.07.81-	72	179.388/0	33.451/3	16.136/3
	÷	DEPARTMENT OF MANPOWER SERVICES	21.77.81-	100	60.500/0		
	4 £	SARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL	01.07.81-	50	17.000/0		
	√ E	COUNCIL FOR SMALL INDUSTRIES IN RURAL AREAS	01.07.61-	1.601	148,938,3		
	. :	PRIVATE COMPANIES IN RECEIPT OF TRAINING ASSISTANCE UNDER SECTION 7 OF THE INDUSTRY ACT 1972	01:10:81- 35:06:82	750	500.000.0	-	
	<u>i.</u>	CENTRAL ELECTRICITY GENERATING BOARD	01.07.81-	161	93.277/0		
	ų.Σ	BABCOCK POWER LTD.	01.07.81-	60	25.200.5		
	. €	FIRTH BROWN LIMITED	01.09.81-	10	15.000/0		
	¬ €	INJORK MECHANICAL PRODUCTS LIMITED	01.10.81-	19	12.000-0		
	- =	MULLARD SIMONSTONE	01.57.81- 31.12.82	108	5.289/0	3.967/0	
	~ E	R H M FOODS LIMITED	01.77.81-	679	6.70,7/0	4.801/3	

				-	11111111111111111111111111111111111111		
	, ;					2	,
5		45 LTD.	 -		4.276		6.491.3
		TAYPOWER SERVICES COMMISSION (TSD)	31.27.831	1.01	1.748.349.0		
	4† 	TOJER HAMLETS TRAINING FORUM	32.04.92	232	132,793.3		
	.'	40RTMLRU IRELAND TRAINING EXECUTIVE	31.09.81	123	70.749.3		•••••
			10 s des séculos es		·		
							·
					٠		
				• •••• ••• •••			
							
							P 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
		·					